Wellfleet Selectboard

Note: Start Time of 6pm
The Wellfleet Selectboard will hold a public meeting on Tuesday, May 25, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. This
meeting will be held via Zoom Video Conference in accordance with the temporary suspension and
enhancement of the Open Meeting Law requirements by Governor Baker. Instructions for a Zoom video
conference meeting which also allows phone dial-in are given below:
1. Watch a livestream on Wellfleet’s YouTube Channel located at the following link:
www.youtube.com/c/wellfleettownmedia.
Join the meeting hosted in Zoom by using the following link:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85689604806?pwd=blpl VFFBZzViQ0xNWkZKMm9iMVdrdz09

2. Audio, video, chat, and screen sharing functions will be disabled during the public session. Request to
participate by using the “raise hand” function. Meeting ID: 856 8960 4806 | Passcode: 611877

a. Raise hand in smartphone app — touch bottom of your screen and select “more” - hit “raise
hand” button

b. Raise hand on computer — hit “participants” button on bottom of screen — hit “raise hand”
button on bottom of participants panel

c. Please make sure you properly identify yourself before speaking, rename yourself by selecting
the participants button and choosing “more” (or by holding down on your name on a
smartphone app) and selecting “rename” - full, legal names only.

d. Please join the meeting on time.

3. You may also listen to the meeting by calling in on a phone to +1 929 205 6099 and enter Meeting
ID: 856 8960 4806 | Passcode: 611877 Landline callers can participate by dialing *9 to raise their
hand.

4. You may submit questions and comments to the Town using the following email:
executive.assistant@ wellfleet-ma.cov Comments made during the meeting via e-mail will be sent to
Selectboard members AFTER the meeting.

5. Meeting materials are attached to this agenda, available online at Wellfleet-ma.gov. It is recommended
that phone participants access materials in advance of the meeting.

6. Please follow the following general instructions:

a. Keep your phone muted at all times when not talking; no one is allowed to unmute themselves
during the meeting.
i. Selectboard meetings are NOT interactive. If public comments are allowed that’s all,
comments only, not questions.
ii. If the Chair is allowing comments during the meeting the number of comments will be
limited and may be no longer than one minute.
b. Do not use speakerphone; do not use Bluetooth devices; mute all background noise.
¢. Please do not speak until the Chair asks for public comments or questions and you have been
recognized by the moderator and unmuted.
d. After the business section is complete no public comments are permitted. Future agenda items
are from the Selectboard, no one else.

7. Itis anticipated that the meeting will be recorded by the Town. Anyone else desiring to record the

meeting may do so only after notifying the chair and may not interfere with the conduct of the meeting

in doing so.
Town of Wellfleet 1 Selectboard Agenda
Meeting materials are available on the Town of Wellfleet web site: hiip fl cov. Motions may be offered and votes

may be taken by the Board on any agenda item except for Announcements & Public Comment



I. Announcements, Open Session and Public Comments
Note: Public comments must be brief. The Board will not deliberate or vote on any matter raised
solely during Announcements & Public Comments.
IL COVID-19 Updates and Recommendations
A. Any updates, new information, or recommendations will be given from the Health Agent or
Chair of the Selectboard.
II.  Public Hearings
A. Transfer and Pledge of Inventory of the seasonal all alcohol license at 842 State Highway,
Route 6 from Bocce Italian Grill, Minina Benevento, manager, to New Fleet Corporation,
Jefferey Baker, Manage
Iv. Use of Town Property
A. Mayo Beach Parking Lot ~ June 17, 2021 3pm-5pm ~ Nancy O’Connell
B. DPW Parking Lot ~ October 2, 2021 1pm — 3pm ~ Blake Olson
C. Memorial Garden ~ August 8, 2021 3pm ~ 5pm ~ Beth Treffeisen/Aaron Bacon
D. Town Pier ~ June 13, 2021 3pm — 7pm ~ Rev. Frank J Alexander
V. Board/Committee Appointments and Updates
A. Herring River Executive Council ~ Deborah Freeman
B. Terri Smith ~ Bike and Walkways Committee term ending 6/30/2022
VI.  Business
Terminating Maria Broadbent’s appointment from Herring River Executive Council
Special Officers Reappointment/Full Time Officers Reappointment ~ Chief Mike Hurley
High Toss Road ~ Carole Ridley/Brian Carlstrom National Seashore
Discussion with Historical Commission ~ Merrill Mead-Fox
Nature’s Alternative, extension of Community Host Agreement ~ Ben Zehnder
Discussion regarding Mass DOT projects ~ Main Street/Rt 6 & Route 6 Repaving ~ TA
Charlie Sumner
. Discussion on management letter and 2020 Audit ~ Powers & Sullivan
VIL Selectboard Reports
A. Board Member Wilson to discuss doodle poll for Round table meeting
VIII. Town Administrator’s Report
A. Letter from Beth Albert, Barnstable County Administrator ~ American Rescue Plan — Fiscal
Recovery Fund
Topics for Future Discussion
Minutes
e May 12,2021
XI. Adjournment

"HEIOR

P!

o

Town of Wellfleet 2 Selectboard Agenda
Meeting materials are available on the Town of Wellfleet web site: hitp i vov. Motions may be offered and votes
may be taken by the Board on any agenda item except for Announcements & Publlc Comment




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

COVID-19 UPDATES AND RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUESTED BY: Chair DeVasto/Health Agent Lemos

DESIRED ACTION: | Discuss any new updates or information

PROPOSED TBD
MOTION:

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST II I
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021
PUBLIC HEARINGS ~ A
REQUESTED BY: New Fleet Corporation
DESIRED ACTION: | To transfer and pledge of inventory of the seasonal all alcohol
license at 843 State Highway, Route 6 from Bocce Italian Grill,
Minina Benevento, manager, to New Fleet Corporation, Jefferey
Baker, Manager
PROPOSED I move to approve the transfer and pledge of inventory of the
MOTION: seasonal all alcohol license at 842 State Highway, Route 6 from
) Bocce Italian Grill, Minina Benevento, Manager, to New Fleet
Corporation, Jefferey Baker, Manager
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




TOWN OF WELLFLEET
PUBLIC NOTICE

In accordance with M.G.L. Chapter 138, notice is hereby given that the Wellfleet Board of
Selectmen will hold a virtual public hearing on Tuesday May 25, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. to

consider the following:
Application received April 27, 2021 for a Transfer and Pledge of Inventory of the

Seasonal All Alcohol license at 842 State Highway, Route 6 from Bocce Italian
Grille, Minina Benevento, Manager to New Fleet Corporation, Jeffrey Baker,

Manager.
WELLFLEET BOARD OF SELECTMEN



Applicant:

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
TOWN OF WELLFLEET

APPLICATION PROCESSING FORM FOR LIQUOR LICENSE

New Fleet Corporation dba Flair

Jeffrey Baker, Manager

Address:

842 State Highway

Date Received:

April 27, 2021 1:25 p.m.

Application for: (check one)

(O Restaurant - all alcohol

( Restaurant - beer & wine

() Package Store - all alcohol

() Package Store - beer & wine

() Innholder - all alcohol

() Innholder - beer & wine

() New License

(X) Transfer of License

(X) Transfer of Stock

(0 New Officers/Directors/Stockholders
() Change in Description of Premises
() Seasonal to Annual

() Change of Manager

() Change of Hours

Police: ’/’/) l?// /;/

’ S
Date:, ) ~ S o/ Comments: C//(

Date: 5//;75' / ;@) Comments: 0

Date: Comments:

Zoning: 11



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3, Chelsea, MA 02150-2358
www.mass.gov/abcc

APPLICATION FOR A TRANSFER OF LICENSE

Municipality ‘Wellﬂeet l

1. TRANSACTION INFORMATION » o

Pledge of Inventory [[] Change of Class
Transfer of License X Pledge of License [ Change of Category
[] Alteration of Premises [J Pledge of Stock . Change of License Type

[] Change of Location
[T] Management/Operating Agreement [Jother | o

Please provide a narrative overview of the transaction(s) being applied for. On-premises appllcants should also provide a description of
the intended theme or concept of the business operaticn. Attach additional pages, if necessary.

(§12 ONLY, e.q. “club” to “restaurant”)

‘Transfer of a Section 12 Restaurant All Alcohol License from Bocce Halian Grill LLC to New Fleet Corporation for the restaurant located at 842 State l
Highway Route 6, Wellfleet, MA 02667. The applicant, New Fleet Corporation is comprised of twe shareholders, Donna DiGiovanni and Paresh Patel.
Jeffrey Baker is the proposed Manager of the License. There is a Pledge of License/Inventory to the applicant's lender, Rockland Trust Company. No
alteratlons tothe locatlon The theme of the restaurant will be new american hlgh scale pub fare with a generous tap list and creative cocktails.

2. LICENSE CLASSIFICATION INFORMATION o -
ON/OFF-PREMISES  TYPE CATEGORY

ON/OFF-PREMISES ~ TYPE =~ CATEC C
|0ﬁ-Premises—15 ‘ [512 Restaurant All Alcoholic Beverages | Annual

3. BUSINESS ENTITY INFORMATION o
The entity that will be issued the license and have operational control of the premises.

| Current or Seller's License Number |00013-R5-1348 FEIN ‘86-3448582
Entity Name ‘New Fleet Corporation
DBA |Flair | Manager of Record ‘Jeffrey Baker

Street Address 842 State Highway Route 6, Wellfleet, MA 02667 ‘

Phone (201) 562-2829 | Email ‘pareshpateh 2@yahoo.com ‘
Add'Phone  |N/A Website |N/A
|

4. DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES
Please provide a complete description of the premises to be licensed, including the number of floors, number of rooms on each fioor, any
outdoor areas to be included in the licensed area, and total square footage. If this application alters the current premises, provide the
specific changes from the last approved description. You must also submit a floor plan.

One floor, twelve indoor rooms with an outdoor patio and bocce court, 4,130 square feet, four entrances, four exits.

— - = A T =R L)

: - T e
Total Sa. Footage 4,130 Seating Capacity [125 J Occupancy Number |125 I

Number of Entrances |4 Number of Exits |4 J Number of Floors 1




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I \ /
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

USE OF TOWN PROPERTY ~ A

REQUESTED BY:

Nancy O’Connell

DESIRED ACTION: | To approve the use of Mayo Beach Parking lot

PROPOSED I move to approve the use of Mayo Beach Parking Lot to Nancy
9 - -
MOTION: O’Connell; on June 17,2021 from 3pm-Spm
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO USE TOWN OWNED PROPERTY

TOWN OF WELLFLEET
300 MAIN STREET
WELLFLEET, MA 02667

Applicant NAU(?L! 0' Lonvnie L Affiliation or Group Mﬁ‘&"\ﬂ\éf ‘PW"N '

Telephone Number 508 757 (D)4 Mailing Address 25 BELLAM v LAMZ
Email address_ CAdm fam @ Lo cast, net WELLALEEZT MA  pze4

Town Property to be used (include specific area) MA})D Besrp  + pm-bmé é)
Moo Btan ¢ _havbor E
Date(s) and hours of use: (ﬂ_}|7 [20 2| 3:00"6;00 P

Describe activity including purpose, number of persons involved, equipment to be used, parking arrangements,
food/beverage service, etc. Also, please indicate if fees will be charged by applicant.

Pf Mgy i gl jmfhﬁr‘nfg v Dzl Krauss 19 reng Ol g
of ARL hutihery - shetlfsh  mdustig colltuy e,
ity amyd f’;)q‘{fmﬁl‘ o

Describe any Town services requested (police details, DPW assistance, etc.)

y : B

NOTE TO APPLICANTS: All applications must be accompanied by a non-refundable $50.00 processing fee.
Applications must be received at least 30 days prior fo the first event date to ensure that all reviews can be completed

prior to the event. This application is only for permission to use Town property. Any additional licenses, such as food
service permit, etc., may be required and it is the applicant’s responsibility to secure the same,
Action by the Board of Selectmen:

Approved as submitted

Approved with the following condition(s):

Disapproved for following reason(s):
D e
. 17 . . . H
Date: '7M MZ&I % zlua U Processing Fee: $50.00 ()Au,i
U H Fee:

(over)



APPLICANT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND INSPECTION,

Health/Conservation Agent: Inspector of Buildings:
/
Comments/Conditions: \ Comments/Conditions:

. . N\ . .
Permits/Inspections needed: \ Permits/Inspections needed:
i ! J

iV Fire Department:

]

Comments/Conditions:

/

Zd

//2/%4
Comments/Conditions:
gL

( 7 7 2 ‘-L }
DPW: Community Services Director:
c?/éa-g( GNP
Comments/Condifions Comments/Conditions:
[ : Y e
Harbormaster: Shellfish:
o2
Comments/Conditions il Comments/Conditions b ? A
chpr T 4
Recreation: Town Administrator: /
/
Comments/Conditions Comments/Conditions /

ohry

{’ 2}’9)




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I \ /
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

USE OF TOWN PROPERTY ~ B

REQUESTED BY: Blake Olson

DESIRED ACTION: | To approve the use of DPW Parking Lot

PROPOSED I move to approve the use of the Department of Public Works
MOTION: Parking lot located at 220 West Main Street Wellfleet to Blake
) Olsen On October 2, 2021 from 1pm to 3pm

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




APPLICATION FOR PERMIT.TO USE TOWN OWNED PROPERTY

TOWN OF WELLFLEET
300 MAIN STREET
WELLFLEET, MA 02667

Applicant U)\D\\(Q/ O\Sc AN Affiliation or Group
Telephone Number 774 %Q 2211 Mailing Address 3 E,\ TASCS \,\/c\)/
Email address \.5\«\’-L Olsen 8‘1@ ?)r\o\]\ oM \«)J{QMC A
Town Property to be used (include specific area) Vo ks AS \o\'- ot DP W
\:w\\ Yre 20 wisk Meip S(}'J

Date(s)andhoms-ifuse: O(A- b\: o l )DD\ \\'QO - 3:& .{»M

Describe activity including purpose, number of persons involved, equipment to be used, parking arrangements, food/
beverage service, etc. Also, please indicate if fees will be charged by applicant.

M?g ‘G‘\a\f\cﬂ. QK\cXT D\;l\ ON \Aqv\l\g) o g!v\a\\\ thLA\aQ‘. AC

(AN ¢ _{'\'(O{L“l‘}f '\r\«_ﬁg we = 0w }"\ A’\’\L— Rr'éwr\j r\’ng
f\?\cu\'\\mr‘\’\OoJ\ @u\J\ we. \,Jbu..\GQ \:L—f’_ -‘—o mrh e

Q?ff%}\MﬁX'(\\f, \S“QO Ceg s WA JrLL D?\J \04" -Col‘ Q\ﬁo\d“ an \'\ou
Ee\s%f'l%ee'arg}l:‘ogv’; semt% reqt%es%ed ([‘;Xﬁ}e o'\erPe“Vggs*sme, 4.3%5\.)\LS Lo&_‘TL-
Nene _ -

NOTE TO APPLICANTS: All applications must be accompanied by a non-refundable $50.00 processing fee.
Applications must be received at least 30 days prior to the first event date to ensure that all reviews can be completed
prior to the event. This application is only for permission to use Town property. Any additional licenses, such as food
service permit, etc., may be required and it is the applicant’s responsibility to secure the same.

Action by the Board of Selectmen:
Approved as submitted
Approved with the following condition(s):
Disapproved for following reason(s):

Dana: E @ E u v E Processing Fee: $50.00 ,’M

n
MAY 17 2021 l_U) Fee:

(over)




Health/Conservation Agent: - Inspector of Buildings r
Comments/Conditions: X # Comments/Conditions
| / ‘
| Permits/Inspections needed: 3 Permits/Inspections needed:
\
L - |

[E)lice Department:

="

W

Comments/Conditions: t/
| ﬂ

Fire Departme:t:

oL § 2ot

| DPW: - Community Services Director:
| 5-o8 A |
Comments/Conditions Comments/Conditions: \ / '
. [ ?\ i
@@uﬁ/ ~ |
[ !
 Harbormaster: Shellfish: B
Comments/Conditions / Comments/Conditions "\ //
L ) N
N\ |
| — - -
Recreation: Town Administrator: : : }
Comments/Conditions

Comments/Conditions \/ //
/ \ i




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I \ /
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

USE OF TOWN PROPERTY ~ C

REQUESTED BY: Beth Treffeisen & Aaron Bacon

DESIRED To approve the use of the Memorial Garden

ACTION:

PROPOSED I move to approve the use of the Wellfleet Memorial Garden

MOTION: located beside Preservation Hall on Main Street Wellfleet to

) Beth Treffeisen & Aaron Bacon on August 8, 2021 from 3pm to

Spm

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO USE TOWN OWNED PROPERTY
TOWN OF WELLFLEET

300 MAIN STREET
WELLFLEET, MA 02667

Applicant Beadn TeeBeisend Ausor Bocen  Affiliation or Group
Telephone Numberﬂli-ﬁﬁm Mailing Address :i Mo , D

Email mm&bdﬁ:%ekm&&mm];ﬁm Sotn Dennic, HA _D4eo
Town Property to be used (include specific area) _Ui21{Cepd Momeiul Cruplen

Date(s) and hours of use: &}"Tf' 28 Lazl 3130 405 °COp.M.

Describe activity including purpose, number of persons involved, equipment to be used, parking arrangements,
food/beverage service, efc. Also, please indicate if fees will be charged by applicant.

Wl hope v we <tne Garden 3 dne MLMJ c,'ti"' a8 (areeleliny;
< i
Twere will be w {ew chairs ded w, ot wosie, eocuate cull be
< v
._54—anc0m53. bl alie plen A0 incopente a chippan, Sudd uy (il

bnne wn-s it . Aovnstullubos e pacued. oo 100 ‘Mpkwnuaﬁwwﬁ.
Peaptc wull ol ke o thodie or Jurta of rap fre wheed -
Describe any Town services requested (police details, DPW assistance, etc.)

NOTE TO APPLICANTS: All applications must be accompanied by a non refundable $50.00 processing fee.
Applications must be received at least 30 days prior to the first event date to ensure that all reviews can be completed

prior to the event. This application is only for permission to use Town property. Any additional licenses, such as food
service permit, etc., may be required and it is the applicant’s responsibility to secure the same.

Action by the Board of Selectmen:
Proof of Insurance Required
Approved as submitted

Approved with the following condition(s):

)
Processing Fee: $50.00 [O&vzdz’:

Ay 20 2024

Fee: TBD




APPLICANT NSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

Health/Counservation Agent: Inspector of Buildings:
edo- 21
omments/Conditi omments/Conditions: . L
,Cf{-’ Mmﬁ'&m@W6 > "f"’b;-llw Comments/ 5%% 2‘@./3/
P responsible Permits/inspections needed:

bﬂ—
G/ VLol . Lor8BD CAN
et f’o 4zo many preaple m
. aﬁ'nn{ (F Mo)me ol

Police Deparlment Fire Department: M /
7./

Comments/Conditions: po _ } Comments/Conditions:
' ‘ J/J A 2 /
DPW: Community Services Director:

S FO— A Jvtz.:g,,.
Comments/Conditions < Comments/Conditions: \

Harbormaster: Shellfish:
/ 7
Comments/Conditions Comments/Conditions
[
—
Recreation:

Comments/Conditions

—



g} MARKEL AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY
— P.O. Box 908, Pewaukee, Wisconsin 53072-0806

(800) 236-2862 www.martkelamerican.com
Special Event Liability Insurance Policy Declarations Page

Policy Number! MELODO00582531 | Date of Issue: |05/10/2024 | EventDate: |o08/28/2021
Policy Perlod: 08/28/2021
Named Insured: BETH TREFFEISEN
56 MEADOWSPRING DRIVE
Malling Address: South Dennis, MA 02680
. - BETH TREFFEISEN
Honoree(s): N BACON
Insured Event: Waedding Ceremony, Reception, and/or Rehearsal
Policy Premium: $75
Surcharges and Taxes $0.00
Multi Policy Discount Not Applicable
Total: $75.00
Event Location 1: WELLFLEET MEMORIAL GARDEN
335 MAIN ST
Hosting Facility Insured Extension: [
(coverage applies If box checked) Wellflest MA 02667
Event Location 2:
Hosting Facllity Insured Extsnsion: [
(coverage applies If box checked)
Event Location 3:
Hosting Facility Insured Extension: [
(coverage applies If box checked)
Policy Coverage Limit: Deductible:
General Aggregate $500,000 $0
Each Occurrence $500,000 $0
Property Damage Included $1,000
Administered by: MARKEL SERVICE INCORPORATED
P O BOX 906
Agency 90700 - 00DO004 PEWAUKEE, W1 53072-0906
800-236-4252 7
For Policy Questions Call Toll Free: 800-236-4252
For Claims Call Toll Free: 800-236-3113
Pollcy Form(s): $¥L100-0708,EVL129-0904,EVL1 38-0708,,MIL1214MA-09
Host Liquor Liabiity is excluded

Forms and endorsements mads a part of this policy at inception are those which numbers are entered above.

EVL102-0708




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I \ /
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

USE OF TOWN PROPERTY ~D

REQUESTED BY: Rev. Frank J Alexander ~ Grace Chapel Assembly of God
Church
DESIRED ACTION: | To approve the use of the town pier
PROPOSED I move to approve the use of the Town Pier located at 255
MOTION: Commercial Street Wellfleet on June 13, 2021 from 3pm to 7pm
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO USE TOWN OWNED PROPERTY

TOWN OF WELLFLEET
300 MAIN STREET
WELLFLEET, MA 02667

, Oac. Ghafu,(
f /"" "
Applicantés V 1 I'CU-’"\KQ‘—A \t Ad LA Affiliation or Group;&{bSEW_lb[ p2 dfé‘l' _ f_wA_ Ch(/ r C»a\
Telephone NumberSU§-24Yq- 4233 Mailing Address P 0- (BDK (oS
Email addm~<€*ML¢L‘£&f£ Netzerd Com So- el ﬂggt' WMo 036G 3
Town Property to be used (include specific area) 4SS / ,/Dn’l L ial SC @)WLL Pl M}
Thae Stao« 4 |
e 44 7Pm. fl)f"efmf' T =7 Aeatd own—
Date(s) and hours of use: >y /0 H;z’_-T{N £ LA A0 Y-l m- él/é_ﬂz:
Tohal. 3-9
Describe activity including purpose, number of persons involved, equipment to be used, parking arrangements,
food/beverage service, etc. Also, please indicate if fees will be charged by applicant.

Approx

Grepl Churck event- 2oy " Fyupmunt-Sond. - -
No food - AJp Mcggi_-_— - -

Describe any Town services requested (police details, DPW assistance, efc.)

NOTE TO APPLICANTS: All applications must be accompanied by a non refundable $50.00 processing fee.
Applications must be received at least 30 days prior to the first event date to ensure that all reviews can be completed
prior to the event. This application is only for permission to use Town property. Any additional licenses, such as food
service permit, etc., may be required and it is the applicant’s responsibility to secure the same.
Action by the Board of Selectmen:
___Proof of Insurance Required
_ Approved as submitted

Approved with the following condition(s): — .

Disapproved for following reason(s): o o =

Date: 5 — .0 "C._Q 0| - Processing Fee: $50.00 / _::f';-_-‘_;!;"; "

Fee: TBD



APPLICANT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

| Health/Conservation Agent: | Inspector of Buildings:
Comments/Conditions: \ Comments/Conditions: Z %
a1-!
Permits/Inspections needed: ~ / Permits/Inspections needed:
a'fl

{

Ir
Police Department: Fire Department:
Comments/Conditions: Comments/Conditions:

~ -0t
5%(,%(

Community Services Director:

DPW:
Comments/Conditions Comments/Conditions:
~ 01
5. p1-° ” -~/
Harbormaster: - Shellfish:
Comments/Conditions Comments/Conditions
Recreation: N - o -

Comments/Conditions




N
A|C0R, > CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MWDDIYYYY)
05/20/2021

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: I the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may raquire an endorsement.
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

or be endorsed.
A statement on

PRODUCER GME[lIVAV‘:.T Sharon A Marquardt L - .
Church Mutual Insurance Company Pwﬂggg'zm: 3 .goo.ss4.2m OP‘]DE 1 r’%‘m 8559643320
3000 Schuster Lane i‘g"ﬁ”k'ﬁ-ss: customerservice@churchmutual.com R )
P.O. Box 357 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE —— .. NAC#
Meril . Wi 54452 | wsurera: Church Mutual Insurance Company | 1a767
INSURED GRACE GHAPEL ASSEMBLY OF GOD INSURER 8 ] i
INSURER G :
25 LIEUTENANT ISLAND RD "
INSURERE : o .
WELLFLEET MA 02667-8200 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMRBER: REVISION NUMBER:

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIEED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

R ADBLISUBH] y : -
ki3 TYPE OF INSURANCE s ' POLIGY NUMEER | BNy (A | LMTs

If yas, describe under

. DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS below . E.L.DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT : $

1
t
i
1

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY !EAcHoocURRENcE .$ 1,000,000
! | CLAMS-MADE OCCUR PR]Ewm_iFgEgglzR“ELogmﬁL $ 1,000,000
/I - MEDEXP (Any oneperson) 10,000 _
Al ] B N 0217987-02-217147 05/01/2021 05/01/2022 PERSONAL&ADVINJURY |$ 1,000,000

| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: ! GENERAL AGGREGATE  $ 3,000,000
' X poucy %8s [ e ; ‘ | PRODUETS - coMPIOP AGG | § 1,000,000
__ OTHER: N - i _ $
AToNGBIE LAY | EMERENAECAT Ty

1 ANY AUTD o BODILY INJURY (Per pesson)  $

e e s —
¢ lAUTOSOMLY f__ AUTOS ONLY . Pevacuenty oo |#
H 4 3 o ‘ i $

UMBRELLALIAB | | accur  EACH OCCURRENCE I's

EXCESS LIAB | cLaMS-MADE AGGREGATE .8
| DED | RETENTIONS 1 1§
{WORKERS COMPENSATION “PER © BT
| AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIK | —STATJTE _ iﬂ_ }
{ ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE |
{OFFICERMEMBEREXCLUDED? D iNIA] i ELEACHACCIOENT ___ |8 —
‘{Mandatory In NH) v | EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $

L . $ |

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 104, Additiona! Remarke Schedule, may be attachad if mere spres s nquln-pd)
Evidence of Liability insurance for worship service on June 13th, 2021 at Wellfleet Town Pier. SAAP566

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE

Town of Wellieet MA ACCORDANCE WITH THE PCLICY PROVISIONS.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

DELIVERED IN

300 Main St IPRESENTATIVE

Wellfleet MA 02667-7438 SHarsn %@M

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1
© 1988-2015 ACORT'CORPORATION. All rights reserved.,




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST \ /
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

BOARDS/COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS AND UPDATES
A

REQUESTED BY: Board Member Helen Miranda-Wilson

DESIRED ACTION: | To appoint Deborah Freeman to the Herring River Executive

Council
PROPOSED I move to approve the appointment of Deborah Freeman to the
MOTION: Herring River Executive Council for an indefinite term
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




TOWN OF WELLFLEET
APPLICATION FOR TOWN BOARDS & COMMITTEES MEMBERSHIP

Wellfleet depends on its citizens to carry out many of our government’s activities. Your community
needs your help. Please volunteer.

FILL OUT THE FORM BELOW and mail it to:
Wellfleet Selectmen’s Office, Town Hall, 300 Main Street, Wellfleet, MA 02667

2 Name De borah 3. FI’-&WVI Date 5///7/2‘ {

Mailing Address F 0. B oX 45

W&//F/&fﬂ‘f, MA oze6 7
Phone (Home) 508-349-7815 (cell) Feo- 933 -0(95
E-mail débpmhﬁ’lémﬂj_@ comeast. ne

0 Please describe briefly any work experience, including volunteer service, that you feel would be
useful to the Town: T- have. served on several Towr committees

the Fersonnel Task Foree the Tersonnel Board Cetaiv),

1he Chavter Review lommi #tee (chai r) 4te Couserviar—

Fon Commiission Cmember +Chaivr). T pave also served a5
a Trustee of the WellCleetAppservation Truwstand as a
Board Mewmper(Cierk) g The Frieads of Herring River,

0 Please add any other information that you think may be useful, including education or other
formal training, specialized courses, professional licenses or certifications, etc.:

Tam a lawyer and practficed civil trial Jaw Fov
3551&5””3'

0o Committees/Boards of Interest:1) Hernr VL_";’( River Ex e,obt’h Ve Commu Hee.
2)
3)




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

BOARD/COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS AND UPDATES
B

REQUESTED BY: Principal Clerk

DESIRED ACTION: | To appoint Terri Smith to the Bike and Walkways committee

PROPOSED I move to appoint Terri Smith to the Bike and Walkways
MOTION: Committee for a term of one-year ending June 30, 2022

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




TOWN OF WELLFLEET
APPLICATION FOR TOWN BOARDS & COMMITTEES MEMBERSHIP

Wellfleet depends on its citizens to carry out many of our government’s activities. Your community
needs your help. Please volunteer.

FILL OUT THE FORM BELOW and mail it to:
Wellfleet Selectmen’s Office, Town Hall, 300 Main Street, Wellfleet, MA 02667

o Name Theresa (Terri) Smith Date 05/14/2021

Mailing Address 130 Village Lane Welifleet, MA 02667

Phone (Home) (cell)(508) 241-4067

E-mail tsmith.coastal@omail.com

0 Please describe briefly any work experience, including volunteer service, that you feel would be
useful to the Town:

Volunteer. Town Of Wellfleet: Election Inspector, GIS consultant for the Biks and Walkways Committee

Research geologist, hydrographer and GIS technician, Center for Coastal Studies
Term Contractor for USGS Woods Hole, to eonduct the Massachussetts Shoreline Change 2012 Update

@ Please add any other information that you think may be useful, including education or other
formal training, specialized courses, professional licenses or certifications, etc.:

M.S. Geology, University of Rhode Island. 2010. Thesis: Laurentide Deglaciation of Southem Rhode Istand

B.S. Coastal and Marine Policy and Management. University of Rhode Isiand, 2007.
Technical skills: GIS (ArcGIS Pro. ArcGIS Online), Graphic Deslan/Cartoaraphy (Adobe Hlustrator Photoshop)

a Committees/Boards of Interest:1) Bike and Walkways Committee
2)
3)




SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021 v
BUSINESS ~ A
REQUESTED BY: Selectboard
DESIRED ACTION: | To terminate Maria Broadbent former Town Administrator’s
appointment from The Herring River Restoration Executive
Council
PROPOSED I move to approve the termination of Maria Broadbent’s
MOTION: appom.tment from The Herring River Restoration Executive
Council
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD !

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021
BUSINESS ~B
REQUESTED BY: Police Chief Michael Hurley
DESIRED ACTION: | To reappoint The Town of Wellfleet’s Special Officers
PROPOSED I move to approve the reappointment of The Town of Wellfleet’s
. Special Officers listed below from the period of July 1, 2021

MOTION: through June 30, 2022

Michael Valora W. Russell Hughes

Seth DiGiacomo Christopher Hartsgrove

Eric Trudeau Christopher Anderson

Meghan Farrell Ryan Wright

Scott Higgins Marc Spigel

Ronald L. Fissette Alex Flaxman

Desmond Keogh
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




//
/4
/
/
/

Town of Wellfleet
Police Department

May 17, 2021

To: Wellfleet Select Board
From: Chief Michael P. Hurley

Subject: SPECIAL POLICE OFFICERS REAPPOINTMENT

Due to the large portion of Wellfleet being part of the National Park it is common for law
enforcement personnel of the National Park Service assist us in different law enforcement
ventures. This provides us the opportunity for co-jurisdiction and a valuable resource

that has flourished over the past twenty plus years.

I request the following individuals be appointed / reappointed as a Special Police Officer:

Appointment Period: July 1.202] through June 30. 2022

Michael Valora Christopher Hartsgrove Christopher Anderson
W. Russell Hughes Eric Trudeau Meghan Farrell

Seth DiGiacomo Ryan Wright

Respectfully SI?mittcd for your information and consideration,

12// ( g

/ 34.{{',/ /{; 20 5

Michael P. Hurley,
Chief of Police

7
/
cc: Charles Sumner, Interim Town Administrator
Jennifer Congel, Assistant Town Clerk



Town of Wellfleet
Police Department

May 17,2021

To: Wellfleet Select Board
From: Chief Michael P. Hurley

Subject: SPECIAL POLICE OFFICERS REAPPOINTMENT

I request the following individuals be reappointed as a Special Police Officer:

Appointment Period: July 1. 2021 through June 30. 2022
Scott Higgins Marc Spigel Desmond Keogh
Ronald L. Fisette Alex Flaxman

Respectfully submitted for yous information and consideration.

. /:f_'," 7 .f? : /
/ / /// Az,
v fle

" Michael P. Hurley,
Chief of Police

cc: Charles Sumner, Interim Town Administrator
Jennifer Congel, Town Clerk



SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I ‘ /
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021
BUSINESS ~B

REQUESTED BY: Police Chief Michael Hurley
DESIRED ACTION: | To reappoint The Town of Wellfleet’s Full Time Police Officers
PROPOSED I move to reappoint the following Full-time officers for the period
MOTION: beginning July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

Mark Braun Nicholas Daley

Edward Garneau Jerimiah Valli

Robert Pimentel Michael Allen

Matthew McGue
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




Town of Wellfleet
Police Department

May 17, 2021

To: Wellfleet Select Board
From: Chief Michael P. Hurley

Subject: FULL TIME POLICE OFFICERS REAPPOINTMENT
Full time police officers require annual appointments for the first 5 years of their career,
and thereafter they are tenured and require no further appointments.

1 request the following individuals be reappointed as a Full Time Police Officer:

Appointment Period: July 1. 2021 through June 30. 2022
Officer: Initial Appointment

Mark Braun 4/04/2016

Nicholas Daley 10/19/2017

Edward Garneau 12/04/2017

Jeremiah Valli 3/26/2018

Robert Pimentel 2/25/2019
Michael Allen 12/16/2019

Matthew McGue 2/17/2020

Respectfully submitted for ;our information and consideration.

U

Chief of Police

cc: Charles Sumner, Interim Town Administrator
Jennifer Congel, Town Clerk



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

BUSINESS ~C

REQUESTED BY:

Carole Ridley/Brian Carlstrom (National Seashore)

DESIRED ACTION:

To accept the layout of High Toss Road

PROPOSED
MOTION:

I move that the Selectboard vote its intention to lay out High Toss Road,
between Pole Dike Road and Duck Harbor Road as a town way, as shown
on a plan entitled “Plan of Land High Toss Road, Wellfleet, MA Being a
40’ Public Way as Laid Out by the Town of Wellfleet,” dated April 6, 2020
prepared by Outermost Land Survey, Inc., and that the Selectboard
forward the layout petition and plan to the Planning Board for its

comments and recommendation pursuant to G.L. c. 41, §§81G and 811

9

ACTION TAKEN:

Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED:

Yea Nay Abstain




()~ o)

TOWN OF WELLFLEET

300 MAIN STREET WELLFLEET MASSACHUSETTS 02667
Tel (508) 349-0300 Fax (508) 349-0305
www.wellfleetma.org

Ms. Kara Runsten May 7,2021
Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness Manager

Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs

100 Cambridge Street, Suite 900

Boston, MA 02114

Re: MVP Action Grant Proposal - Herring River Restoration Project Final Construction Plans
and Bid Specifications

Dear Ms. Runsten:

Thank you for your consideration of the Town of Wellfleet's above referenced proposal. The
proposal requests $589,960 in MVP funds to complete final construction plans and bid -
specifications for six infrastructure elements of the Herring River Restoration Project. The
Project is a community resilience priority identified in the Wellfleet/Truro MVP Action Plan
(2019).

This letter serves to confirm the required match commitment of 26%, or $203,224. The match
will be provided in a combination of cash grant contributions and in-kind technical support as
follows:

1. A total of $171,000 in grants received by Friends of Herring River, Inc. (FHR) will be
contributed as cash match to this project. The grant funds come from the NOAA Restoration
Center and the National Fisheries and Wildlife Foundation. A letter of match commitment
from FHR is enclosed.

2. A total of $12,749 in in-kind technical support from FHR will be contributed as in-kind
match support. Further detail on this in-kind support is provided on the enclosed letter of
match commitment from FHR.

3. A total of $19,474 in technical support from Town of Wellfleet personnel will be
contributed as in-kind match support. This includes contributions from the following
departments: Conservation/Health, Public Works, Harbormaster, and Administration.

The above referenced match does not involve state funding and is not used as match for
another government program. All match will be contributed within the grant contract period
and reported as required.

Thank you for consideration of this funding request.
Sincerely

Rebecca Slick

Wellfleet Assistant Town Administrator



Memorandum

To:  Wellfleet Planning Board

Fr:  Carole Ridley, Herring River Restoration Project Coordinator
Date: May 20, 2021

Re:  Town lay out of ngh Toss Road

The Town lay out of High Toss Road from Duck Harbor Road to Pole Dike Road is needed to
demonstrate the Town’s legal ability to undertake work proposed for the Herring River
Restoration Project, and is a requirement of many potential project funders. The proposed layout
is shown on the attached plan by Outermost Land Survey.

Although it is a private way, High Toss Road has effectively functioned as a public way and has
been maintained by the Town of Wellfleet for many years. The intended lay out of the road as a
town way will not alter the customary use or maintenance of the road. The Town will continue
to plow the road as it has always done. The Town will, further, be responsible for major repairs
of the road — which was not previously the case.

The Selectboard is taking this action in preparation for work proposed to occur in connection
with the Herring River Restoration Project. Proposed work includes, but is not limited to: (1) the
removal of High Toss Road where it crosses the marsh between Duck Harbor Road and roughly
Way #672 (aka Rainbow Lane); and (2) elevation of High Toss Road from Way #672 (aka
Rainbow Lane) to just east of Hopkins Drive).

Because the elevated road will remain in its current alignment, vegetation clearing will be kept to
a minimum. The remainder of High Toss Road from east of Hopkins Drive to Pole Dike Road
will remain at its current elevation and alignment.

The lay out of High Toss Road as a town way requires the Town to follow the process specified
in Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 82, Sections 21-24. To date, the following actions have
occurred:

On April 29, 2021, the Selectboard voted its intention to lay out High Toss Road, between Pole
Dike Road and Duck Harbor Road, as a town way and to refer the layout plan to the Planning
Board for a report. The vote requested that the Planning Board provide its report by May 21%.

On May 19, 2021, the Planning Board considered the requested referral from the Selectboard,
and voted to support the acceptance of the Town layout of High Toss Road.

On May 25, 2021, the Selectboard is scheduled to hold a public meeting in order to vote to
approve the layout of the town way and the layout plan. Letters were sent to abutters explaining
the process and alerting them to the meeting dates, including the May 25 public meeting of the
Selectboard to take this action.

The vote approving the layout and layout plan must be filed with the Town Clerk at least 7 days
prior to the June 26, 2021 Town Meeting.



On June 26, 2021 Town Meeting will be asked to vote to accept the layout and authorize the
Selectboard “to acquire on behalf of the Town by gift, purchase, or eminent domain an easement
to use High Toss Road” from abutting property owners.

If Town Meeting votes to accept the layout, the Selectboard will then have 120 days to execute
and record an order of taking of easements from those abutting property owners who have an
interest in High Toss Road. The Town has determined that the acquisition of easements for the
purpose of laying out High Toss Road as a public way will not result in damage to the abutting
property owners, and, accordingly, compensation will not be awarded for the takings.



£340 | Jesyg \

[ _ (dOL) £ 40 £ 1904S /

-
. ii‘
. ¥
A
HOSHVH ¥0Na

.
AT - -

* AV I8Ny o
AVOY SSOL HOH =

TN

—_avoy

RO umoy |

PIeH
Buneeyy umo) 1e pejdedsse sem noAe| sy

790288 §1d 00d L PiB:
s b mw: s\b&
PI20QIOsIaS JO9HIIeM JO UMmOL By Aq peaoclddy si Jnoke) siuL ‘gag) "9 Laf

PRSARI PUB 9.6} ‘| 'VET DARIGRR SuGEAINEAL
$p0Q 1 AusiBaY Bip Y CoUSRIE U

aue sBupeag Aeans uni pjey e uo paseq sy ueid siy {}
180JON uB|d

NOOVQN.* m_o parndaid sem ueid S0 1 e Ageay |
020z ‘9 ludv 00} = .} 9[Eog OO ——
1O8YJII9M JO uMOL Byt $102/91/L @Y8P @AJOBY3 [EEZ0DLO0SZ # 19U YT UO Umoys
J0) pasedaid §8 U0Z Iy 2t UL sjje) peoy ssol YBIH Jo tnoke 0F syL (v
"uoRE20] J0f
PI2OGIORIDS 19BYIIBM 10 UMOL 8L Aq Piay asem v aBed '9cS %00 UBld pue ‘g6 8Bag ‘gg¢ H00g UBld
o ple| se Aep 2lland 0 € Butaq ¢ abad ‘229 yoog ueld ‘8aze ueld ﬁo pue (g i
. . Jnoke) 100} o
YN ‘198)j|19M ‘peoy ssol yBiH pasodolg 8y} JO BUILBIIED 6} 0} 818 SEBlY Jawases [eosed (2 |
pueT Jo ueld "WNjEP 1EIU0ZLOH E8AYN SUl ey |
|
|




| €102 le0yg

W 146,36

N29%12%00
—7

200623 slo
020z ‘9 |Hdy 0F = .| 8jedg
199l{IaMm Jo umol ey}
10} pasedaud

paeOgloB{aS J98lIaM JO UMO) By} Aq
Ino pie| se Aep dlignd 0 e Bujsg
VI 193I9M ‘peoY ssot ybiy
pue jo ueid

Wbg I = \
VANV ININRYS “rorg |

ousEag [BUOREN POD 8D / il
[IR=E g3y \\

b8 ¥390'¥1 = VIV INTWISYS .

1408 ¥0RE'YS &
YIEY AINSNASYI
SBIZE 9O 'Lk 07

¥EIERLD

P 0L UBIH S21

20636162 \
PUOORIEYE | P,
WRHISM jo ma)

1
»

2 .
(eo0ey zoog IR L] 4 L2,
sociealEz N b 3 w. ,U._.Niu
»  PHOND OO0 & & Ny
. 7 . * @y
[R2-2
SROAVNGLLL = AT
1319 JALLIILOUS MONNNV TVOLLVIA
NI NS T3S 20 SOL JVIIKONEE

VY.

"WbE 7604’2 = VALY ANINISVA

BEHRIZE 07 °96 W07
SS0ENLD
4Q SuUpdoH 22

‘2801 ‘9 ey

PORADI PUS B/GL '} "LEP SAIAR SUORERSA
050010 A19iD3r] O4p L SOLERI0 LY
pansdaid som und i) joeg Afeo K@i |

390JMIAD3H YOI




€i0¢ uoomm

UPRFLL'Y =

A . V3UY ININIEVE

PRESEd 1100
aseLz
2L §T
AA0YY ‘d ueqay

N A 7 W H ugeior

$ET-TH
€1 7130Uvd

art

[
P ety
Pr T L L_.\SF/. - - - -

s

o el B S

R e

LbS 70912 = VIR INSNIBVS
\ JouEzE 0N 19T

by ¥eie'08 =
W3V ININZSVA

LIOLARSG [FUORBN POD dBD
§17130%w

e
LOLBE MulhVS.L88

oze ]

.

!

@ioi(s2eg (Ruopey pog adeD . t
#1 1308vd

hg 720002 =
V3V INSWISYI

o=

| ‘@861 9 ver
POTARI DUB 98} '} ‘uBl SARaYR sUdheDas
2pe8C} 0 AnsiBoy sy gy sauspicads G _
Povedoud ss imid ks e Kiguao Agauay |

38N AYLSIOTY HO4

VIHV ININ3SVA seteey 4 / WW _____
@uoyseeg FUAREN PeJ edeD opoz=y | | &
S1 130y .1 ___
X
\ H ______
[ O
| &/
! {
{ |
/
—_ e - . B e e e it s ———— e ——— __
/ ! A ——
/ \ \ 408 #EE'E = YUY INGNIEYA a o > e
f \ .W b ESB9EE 491’5 07
/ A \ £/99612
/ \ \ uny Heng 01
. / W q vewysnD Auoguy
IS RS = VI LNV / 1468 FEPL'L 2 VI INGNTSVE 2 / e iz
/ 99882 € ‘26 ¥ 09 W / B-5R9ZE 407 65 10 / Z Py
| 4282420 / 4482120 v@ X
g wupidob; 062 J 0PSO 08T -
| AL "B PieT Hiug [ A PIED S o, N Zroeey
| 82z-zh ! 0522L g
| 2730Uvd 2 T3 . P q
|
y
/' ubswony = vauy iNawIsvE ‘ /
V 899825 40 239
6c61220 j
umey yend 0z /
" prosnay SORISNUL ™ EMION @ M 1OGOY SRIOH f \
Zor 2k / \
04 120vd f . 8 \
il 6 ZELTy / ﬂswu;”.mu-”“._;s.. ,f 106 v =
N A S T T T / VRV ININZSYa )
%) e T
. S e 5
..... 7= 8. 200¥6.L# sio
SE T s 020z ‘9 [Mdy 0F = .} 91895
!

Joj pesedeud

198}}{IsM JO umoy 8y

P1eoqgis|ag J93jl[aM JO umol ay) Aq
ino pie| se Aepp oljand 01 & Buieq
VI ‘1e3ljilom ‘peoy ssol ybiHy

pue Jo ueid

FonEN | FOT
e «..nn.]xn\lv\ul\..x\n* —lm T T T eI
w o #l Sy .

i . SELEL . 07,685 GEECL py 5y
Wbg wig'ee = ) EEE9L MPbOVs ~ELEL,
Y3V INGWESYE B0ezy 2w

Sioysseg muogeN pop odug

&1 1304vd




Attachment D

TOWN OF WELLFLEET
LAYOUT, ACCEPTANCE AND ACQUISITION
OF TOWN WAYS

CHECKLIST OF PUBLIC WAY PROCEDURES

This checklist sets forth the steps a town must take by statute to lay out and accept a way as a
public way, and to acquire rights in such way. ' G.L. c.82, §§21-24. This checklist also contains
several recommendations, which are in italics.

I LAYOUT

A

A petition is submitted to the Selectboard” to lay out a way as a public way, or the
Selectboard may initiate the layout. G.L. c. 82, §21.

The petitioner provides the Selectboard with a layout plan that shows the metes
and bounds of the layout, or the town prepares such a plan. A plan that is already
on record (usually a subdivision plan) may be used as a layout plan provided that
the recorded plan accurately describes the way that is constructed on the ground.
A legal description may be used instead.

The petitioner provides the Selectboard with a title certification prepared by an
attorney licensed in Massachusetts, or town counsel conducts title research. Title
research is required to ascertain who owns the fee in the way and the abutting
lots (if drainage, slope, utility or access easements are required on such lots) so
that land and/or easements are acquired from the proper parties. Title research
is also done to determine if there are mortgages or other monetary encumbrances
that, if foreclosed upon, would terminate the municipality’s rights. Since the
services of town counsel are ofien required in the layout process to prepare
and/or confirm the title certification and/or to conduct such research, and the fees
fo record easements, takings, and plans (at $75 per plan sheet) are often high, we
recommend that the petitioner be asked to pay for the Town’s costs.

The Selectboard votes its intention to lay out the way as public and refers the
petition and layout plan to the planning board. G.L. c.41, §81G and §811.

1) The planning board has 45 days from referral to make a non-binding
report to the selectmen. A public hearing is not required by statute, unless
separately required by charter, bylaw, or custom. The planning board’s

! The procedures to alter the layout a public way and to relocate a public way are the same as the procedures to lay
out a way as a public way. The checklist does not, therefore, address layout alterations or relocations specifically.

2 Where the authority over town ways is vested in the road commissioners, the reference to the Selectboard in this
checklist should be taken to mean such commissioners.



2)

report may be brief.

The public way proceedings may continue only if the planning board has
made its report or 45 days have passed since the referral without a report,
whichever is earlier.

The Selectboard gives written notice of the meeting at which the selectmen will
consider the layout to the landowners from whom the Town intends to acquire
land and/or easements by eminent domain. G.L. c.82, §22.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5

The Town must give notice at least 7 days prior to the meeting at which
the layout will be voted.

The notice is left at the usual place of residence of the landowner or
delivered in person to the owner or the owner’s tenant or authorized agent.
Notice can be sent by registered mail to create a record. If an owner does
not reside in the Town and has no known tenant or agent, the notice of the
meeting must be posted in a public place in the Town at least 7 days prior
to the layout meeting.

There is no statutory requirement for notice to be given to landowners
from whom the Town does not intend to acquire land or easements by
eminent domain. However, since the need for eminent domain may not
become apparent until later in the layout process, we recommend that
notice be given to all landowners from whom the Town needs an
easement. Charters and bylaws should be reviewed to determine if there
are additional notice requirements.

The notice must identify the way to be laid out and state the date, time and
place of the meeting at which the layout will be adopted. We recommend
that the notice contain a description of the physical location and
dimensions of the way. If a plan has been prepared, the notice could refer
to the plan instead and state where it may be viewed (usually, the town
clerk’s office), or, if the layout plan is already on record, refer to the
registry of deeds’ plan book and page numbers. We recommend that a
copy of the plan be filed with the town clerk.

The notice may also request landowners to donate the land/easements to
the Town, and include a Waiver of Appraisal and Damages, in case the
Town elects to take the land/easements by eminent domain.

Provided that the planning board has submitted a report, or 45 days have elapsed
since the referral to the planning board, and notice has been given to the
landowners, the Selectboard holds a public meeting and votes to approve the
layout as shown on the layout plan. A public hearing is not required unless
otherwise specified in a local charter or by-law. We recommend that the



Selectboard request owners to grant land/easements voluntarily for nominal
consideration, if such request has not been made already.

The vote approving the layout and the layout plan must be filed with the town
clerk at least 7 full days prior to town meeting.

Towns should establish the anticipated acquisition costs prior to this point, either
by negotiation or by appraisal, so that they know how much is to be appropriated
and can identify a source of funds. If land/easements are to be taken by eminent
domain, an appraisal is required to determine the amount of damages. We
recommend that landowners be asked to sign a Waiver of Appraisal and
Damages.

IL. ACCEPTANCE

A.

The Selectboard places an article on the town meeting warrant regarding the
acceptance of the way. If land/easements need to be acquired, the acceptance
article should authorize the acquisition of land/easements by purchase, gift, and/or
eminent domain and, if necessary, appropriate funds therefor.

Town meeting may not vote to accept the way sooner than 7 days after the layout
vote and plan have been filed with the town clerk. G.L. ¢.81, §23.

Town meeting votes to accept the way as public.

1) A majority vote is required to accept a way that is shown on an approved
subdivision plan. G.L. c.41, §81Y.

2) A two-thirds vote is needed to accept any other way. G.L. c.41, §81Y.

3) A two-thirds vote is needed to appropriate funds to acquire land/easements
by purchase or eminent domain. G.L. ¢.40, §14.

II. ACQUISITION

A

Within 120 days after the close of the town meeting at which the way was
accepted, the Selectboard is required under G.L. ¢.82, §24 to:

1) Acquire the necessary land/easements by purchase or gift; or

2) Adopt an order of taking under G.L. ¢.79 and award damages, if any; or
3) Institute proceedings for a taking under G.L. ¢.80A.

If an order of taking is adopted, the order must be recorded in the registry of

deeds for the county in which the property lies within 30 days from the date of the
order. G.L. ¢.79, §3.



SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST \ / I
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021
BUSINESS ~D
REQUESTED BY: Merrill Mead-Fox
DESIRED ACTION: | To update the Selectboard about the work of the Historical
Commission and the openings they will have as of July 1, 2021
PROPOSED No Action Required
MOTION:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




Board of Selectmen

Request for Placement on Agenda

Neme: __Mernl] Meqd- Fix
address: 35 Pie “Foul Wad o Wellfief— C"OHC
Company or Organization Representing: //@/ﬁk{# tHhenT ul  Conamisdin
Phone Number_(¢ [7-S/9- P14

Email AddressMﬂﬁ,lQ_gm@ tle ¢ (e

SpecificRequest. 7 would ke wload~ 5 mMuiutz
of s~ —pare By apada?. T St odou]
Lot DL vl of TPt IO, ond vrfleovy
Ahe. D) hal- e wdl have Fhree
q,pméga asr of 7/!{/ 202/

To be Filed out by Dept.

Applicant Notified: Date of Hearing:

Date Request Completed:

Request for Placement on Agenda Form 09/11/06 - EGH



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST ‘ / I
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

BUISNESS ~E

REQUESTED BY: Nature’s Alternative, Ben Zehnder

DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss and possibly approve the extension of the Community

Host Agreement

PROPOSED I move to approve an extension of the Community Host

MOTION: Agreement between the Town of Wellfleet and Nature’s
Alternative

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




TOWN OF WELLFLEET AND
NATURE’S ALTERNATIVE, INC.
HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT

This Host Community Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this  day of May,
2021 by and between NATURE’S ALTERNATIVE, INC., a Massachusetts corporation, and any
successor in interest, with a principal office address of 20 Centerville Road, Warwick, RI 02886
(the “Company”), and the TOWN OF WELLFLEET, a Massachusetts municipal corporation with
a principal address of 286 Main St, Wellfleet, MA 02667 (the “Town”), acting by and through its
Selectboard in reliance upon all of the representations made herein (the Company and Town,
collectively the “Parties”).

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to locate an approximately 3,130 square foot Adult
Use Retail Marijuana Establishment on an approximately 101,192 square foot parcel of land at
the property located at 2393 State Highway and as Assessor’s Map/ Parcel ID 23-211, more
accurately described by the deed recorded with the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds Book
11494, Page 218 (the “Property™), solely for the retail sales of adult use marijuana and marijuana
products, with approximately 724 square feet of administrative space, 1,494 square feet of retail
space, 484 square feet of storage/warehouse space, and 60,000 square feet of parking (the
“RME”), in accordance with and pursuant to applicable state laws and regulations issued by the
Cannabis Control Commission (“CCC”), or such other state licensing or monitoring authority, as
the case may be (each a “Licensing Authority,” and collectively “Licensing Authorities”),
including, but not limited to 935 CMR 500.000, and such approvals as may be issued by the
Town in accordance with its Zoning Bylaws and other applicable local regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Company anticipates that the Town will incur additional expenses and
impacts on the Town’s road and other infrastructure systems, law enforcement, fire protection
services, inspectional services, permitting and consulting services and public health, as well as
unforeseen impacts, both quantifiable and unquantifiable on the Town;

WHEREAS, the Company intends to provide certain benefits to the Town in the event that
it receives the requisite license from the CCC or such other Licensing Authorities, as the case may
be, to operate the RME and any and all required local permits and approvals from the Town;

WHEREAS, the Parties intend by this Agreement to satisfy the provisions of G.L. ¢.94G,
§3(d), applicable to the operation of the RME, such activities to be only done in accordance with
the applicable state and local laws and regulations in the Town,;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the Company and the Town agree as follows:

1. Recitals

The Parties agree that the above Recitals are true and accurate and that they are incorporated herein
and made a part hereof.



2. Annual Payments

In the event that the Company obtains the requisite licenses, permits and/or approvals as may be
required for the operation of the RME, including but not limited to an occupancy permit from the
Town’s Building Commissioner and a final license and approval to operate from the CCC, and at
the expiration of any final appeal period related thereto, said matter not being appealed further,
which permits, approvals and/or licenses allow the Company to locate, occupy, and operate the
RME in the Town, then the Company agrees to provide the following annual payments as
described in this Section 2 (the “Annual Payments”); provided, however, that if the Company
fails to secure any such other license and/or approval as may be required, or any of the required
municipal approvals, the Company shall reimburse the Town for its legal fees associated with the
negotiation of this Agreement. These Annual Payments shall be in addition to and separate from
any local sales tax required to be paid to the Town pursuant to G.L. c. 64N, §3.

A. Community Impact Fee

The Company anticipates that, as a result of the Company’s operations of the RME, the Town will
incur additional expenses and impacts on the Town’s road and other infrastructure systems, law
enforcement, fire protection services, inspectional services, permitting and consulting services,
administrative services, public health education, and substance abuse counseling services, and any
necessary and related legal and enforcement costs, as well as unforeseen impacts on the Town.
Accordingly, in order to mitigate the direct and indirect financial impact on the Town and use of
Town resources, both quantifiable and unquantifiable, the Company agrees to pay an annual
community impact fee to the Town, in the amount and under the terms provided herein (the
“Annual Community Impact Fee”):

1. Company shall pay an Annual Community Impact Fee in an amount equal to three
percent (3%) of the gross sales from marijuana and marijuana product sales at the
RME. The term “Gross Sales” shall mean the total of all sales transactions of the
RME without limitation, whether wholesale or retail, and shall include but not be
limited to all sales occurring at the RME, including the sale of adult use marijuana,
marijuana infused products, paraphernalia, and any other products sold by the
RME.

2. The RME shall be deemed to have commenced operations upon receipt of both
an occupancy permit from the Building Commissioner and the issuance of a
final license from the (“Commencement of Operations”). The Annual
Community Impact Fee shall be made in quarterly installments per the Town’s
fiscal year (July 1 - June 30) on September 30, December 31, March 31, and
June 30 with the first payment due thirty (30) days after the close of each quarter
following the Commencement of Operations.

3. The Annual Community Impact Fee for the first (1%") year of operation shall be
prorated based on the number of months the RME is in operation provided,
however, that in no event shall the Town be responsible for the return of any



Annual Community Impact Fee or portion thereof already provided to the Town
by the Company.

4. The Annual Community Impact Fee shall continue for a period of five (5) years
from the date of the Commencement of Operations, and shall be subject to
renegotiation for successive terms for as long as the RME remains in operation.
At the conclusion of each of the respective five (5) year terms, the Parties shall
negotiate in good faith the terms of a new Annual Community Impact Fee as an
Amendment to this Agreement; provided, however, that if the parties are unable
to reach an agreement on a successor Community Impact Fee, the Annual
Community Impact Fee specified in Paragraph 2.A.1 of this Agreement shall
remain in effect and shall not be reduced below the amount set forth above until
such time as the Parties negotiate a successor Community Impact Fee.

5. The Town shall use the above referenced payments in its sole discretion, but shall
make a good faith effort to allocate said payments to offset costs related to road
and other infrastructure systems, law enforcement, fire protection services,
inspectional services, public health and addiction services and permitting and
consulting services, as well as unforeseen impacts upon the Town. The Company
acknowledges and agrees that the Town is under no obligation to use the
Community Impact Fees in any particular manner.

6. Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 94G, §3(d), a “community impact fee shall be reasonably
related to the costs imposed upon the municipality by the operation of the
marijuana establishment...” (“Town Costs”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Parties acknowledge the difficulty in computing actual Town Costs and have
agreed to utilize a fixed percentage of Gross Sales as specified in Paragraph 2.A.1
above in lieu of attempting to determine actual Town Costs incurred. The
Company acknowledges that the impacts of its operation may be impracticable to
ascertain and assess as impacts may result in budgetary increases though not
separately identified, and consequently, the Company acknowledges that the
payments due under this Agreement are reasonably related to Town Costs and
waives any claims to the contrary.

7. Annual Community Impact Fees are expressly included as “other municipal
charges” pursuant to M.G.L. c. 40, § 57. A Town licensing authority may deny,
revoke or suspend any license or permit, including renewals and transfers, of the
Company or agent thereof if the Company’s name appears on a list furnished to
the licensing authority from the Town Collector of individuals delinquent on
their taxes and/or water bills.

B. Annual Community Benefit Payments




In addition to the Annual Community Impact Fee, the Company agrees to additionally make an
annual community benefit payment to the Town which shall be in the form for of a donation in the
amount and under the terms provided herein (the “Annual Community Benefit Payment”).

1.

For as long as the RME is in operation, the Company shall pay to the Town
an Annual Community Benefit Payment in an amount equal to ten thousand
dollars ($10,000.00).

The Annual Community Benefit Payments shall be made in quarterly
installments per the Town’s fiscal year (July 1 - June 30) on September 30,
December 31, March 31, and June 30 following the Commencement of
Operations. The Annual Community Benefit Payment for the first year of
operation shall be prorated based on the number of months the RME is in
operation.

The Town shall use the Annual Community Benefit Payments in its sole
discretion. The Parties hereby recognize and agree that the Annual
Community Benefit Payments to be paid by the Company shall not be
deemed an impact fee subject to the requirements or limitations set forth in
G.L. ¢.94G, §3(d).

C. Annual Charitable/Non-Profit Contributions

The Company, in addition to any funds specified herein, shall annually contribute to local
charities/non-profit organizations in the Town of Orange in an amount no less than ten thousand
dollars ($10,000.00) said charities/non-profit organizations to be determined by the Company. The
Annual Charitable Non/Profit Contribution shall be made annually beginning on the first
anniversary following the Commencement of Operations at the RME, and shall continue for the
term of this Agreement. The Company shall provide the Town with evidence of such payment
within thirty (30) days of the annual anniversary of the Commencement of Operations.

The Parties hereby recognize and agree that any Annual Charitable Non/Profit Contribution to be
paid by the Company shall not be deemed a community impact fee subject to the requirements or
limitations set forth in G.L. ¢.94G, §3(d).

A. Additional Costs, Payments and Reimbursements

1. Permit and Connection Fees: The Company hereby acknowledges and accepts,

and waives all rights to challenge, contest or appeal the Town’s building permit
fee and other permit application fees, sewer and water connection fees, and all
other local charges and fees generally applicable and of the same rates and fees
chargeable to other comparable commercial developments in the Town.

2. RME Consulting Fees and Costs: The Company shall reimburse the Town for

any and all reasonable consulting costs and fees related to any land use
applications concerning the RME, negotiation of this and any other related



agreements, and any review concerning the RME, including, but limited to,
planning, engineering, legal and/or environmental professional consultants and
any related reasonable disbursements at standard rates charged by the above-
referenced consultants in relation to the RME. Any Town legal fees and costs
associated with the RME, including the cost to negotiate this Agreement, shall be
paid from a $5,000 contribution made by the Company to the Town within thirty
(30) days of the execution of this Agreement. Legal fees and costs exceeding the
$5,000 contribution shall be reimbursed to the Town within thirty (30) days of the
Town’s request for the same.

3. Other Costs: The Company shall reimburse the Town for the actual costs
incurred by the Town in connection with holding public meetings and forums
substantially devoted to discussing the RME and/or reviewing the RME and for
any and all reasonable consulting costs and fees related to the monitoring and
enforcement of the terms of this Agreement, including, but not limited to
independent financial auditors and legal fees.

4. Late Payment Penalty: The Company acknowledges that time is of the essence
with respect to its timely payment of all funds required under Section 2 of this
Agreement. In the event that any such payments are not fully made with five (5)
days of the date they are due, the Company shall be required to pay the Town a
late payment penalty equal to five percent (5%) of such required payments;
provided, however, that the Town, in its discretion, may agree to waive said
penalty, for good cause.

B. Annual Reporting for Host Community Impact Fees

The Company shall notify the Town within seven (7) days of when the Company Commences
Operations. The Company shall annually submit written reports to the Town Administrator, no
later than July 1st each year, with a certification of: (1) its annual Gross Sales, and (2) all other
information required to ascertain compliance with the requirements of this Agreement. During the
term of this Agreement the Company shall, upon request of the Town, appear before a meeting of
Selectboard to review compliance with the terms of this Agreement. Such meeting shall occur no
later than thirty (30) days following written notice from the Town.

The Company shall maintain books, financial records, and other compilations of data pertaining
to the requirements of this Agreement in accordance with standard accounting practices and any
applicable regulations or guidelines of the CCC and the Department of Revenue (DOR). All
records shall be kept for a period of at least seven (7) years. Upon request by the Town, the
Company shall provide the Town with the same access to its financial records (to be treated as
confidential, to the extent allowed by law) as it is required by the CCC and DOR for purposes of
obtaining and maintaining a license for the RME.

Upon request of the Town, during the term of this Agreement and for three (3) years following the
termination of this Agreement, the Company shall, upon request of the Town, have its financial
records examined, copied, and audited by an Independent Financial Auditor, the expense of which



shall be borne by the Company. The Independent Financial Auditor shall review the Company’s
financial records for purposes of determining that the Annual Payments are in compliance with the
terms of this Agreement. Such examination shall be made not less than thirty (30) days following
written notice from the Town and shall occur only during normal business hours and at such place
where said books, financial records and accounts are maintained. The Independent Financial Audit
shall include those parts of the Company’s books and financial records which relate to the payment,
and shall include a certification of itemized Gross Sales for the previous year, and all other
information required to ascertain compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The independent
audit of such records shall be conducted in such a manner as not to interfere with the Company’s
normal business activities.

3. No Off-Set Payments

If the Town receives additional payments from the Company, or from the DOR or any other source,
the funds for which have been collected by assessment against the Company, including, but not
limited to taxes, imposed by an act of the legislature of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or a
mandate from the Town for said payments, the amounts due from the Company to the Town under
the terms of this Agreement shall not be reduced by the amount of such other payments.

4. Local Vendors and Emplovment

To the extent such practice and its implementation are consistent with federal, state, and municipal
laws and regulations, the Company shall use its best efforts in a legal and non-discriminatory
manner to give priority to local businesses, suppliers, contractors, builders and vendors in the
provision of goods and services called for in the construction, maintenance and continued
operation of the RME when such contractors and suppliers are properly qualified and price
competitive. The Company shall use its best efforts to hire Town residents and make reasonable
efforts to utilize women-owned, minority-owned, and veteran-owned vendors within the Town.
The Company shall report annually to the Selectboard on the number of Wellfleet residents
employed at the RME.

Best efforts shall include, at a minimum, actively soliciting bids from Town vendors through local
advertisements and direct contact, advertising any job expansion or hiring of new permanent full
time employees first to Town residents before advertising through all typical regional employment
advertising outlets, as well as hosting annual employee training programs for career advancement,
cannabis career advancement, management training, business financing, entrepreneurship and/or
diversity training.

The Company’s annual report to the Selectboard shall include information concerning the number
of Wellfleet residents employed at the RME and a description of the measures taken to fulfill this
workforce hiring commitment. The Company shall furnish the Town with such further information
and documentation as the Town may reasonably request to support and document compliance with
this Agreement.

5. Approval of Manager




The Company shall provide to the Town, for review by the Town Administrator, the name and
relevant information, including but not limited to the information set forth in 935 CMR 500.030,
or such other state regulations, as the case may be, of the person(s) proposed to act as on-site
manager(s) of the RME. The submittal shall include authorization and all fees necessary to
perform a criminal history (CORI) check or similar background check. The Town Administrator
shall may consult with the Police Chief, and if the person proposed to act as on-site manager is of

unsuitable character to-aet-as-on-site-manager, the Town may, in its discretion atits-eptien, require

the Company to appear before the Select Board to drscuss the select10n of the on-srte manager

remeved—rﬁth%ma&ager—rs—ef—tm&u&abl%eh&r&eter— If after sa1d appearance, the Select Board

determines that the proposed on-site manager is unsuitable, the Company shall immediately,
within two (2) weeks, replace the on-site manager. In no event shall any on-site manager approved
by the CCC be proh1b1ted from actmg as on-site manager durmg the pendency of any Town review,

sa&able—mﬂess—aﬁd—mml—deemed—uﬂs&}table—her&ﬁ ThlS approval process shall also apply to any
change of on-site manager.

6. Educational Programs

The Company also shall use best efforts to provide staff to participate in ten (10) hours annually
of educational programs on public health and drug abuse prevention in Town, and to work
cooperatively with other Town public safety departments not mentioned in the Agreement. The
Company’s annual report to the Selectboard shall include information concerning the number of
educational programs provided.

7. Local Taxes

At all times during the Term of this Agreement, property, both real and personal, owned or
operated by the Company shall be treated as taxable, and all applicable real estate and personal
property taxes for that property shall be paid either directly by the Company or by its landlord
and neither the Company nor its landlord shall object or otherwise challenge the taxability of such
property and shall not seek a non-profit or agricultural exemption or reduction with respect to
such taxes.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) if real or personal property owned, leased or operated by the
Company is determined to be non-taxable or partially non-taxable, or (ii) if the value of such
property is abated with the effect of reducing or eliminating the tax which would otherwise be paid
if assessed at fair cash value as defined in G.L. c. 59, §38, or (iii) if the Company is determined to
be entitled or subject to exemption with the effect of reducing or eliminating the tax which would
otherwise be due if not so exempted, then the Company shall pay to the Town an amount which
when added to the taxes, if any, paid on such property, shall be equal to the taxes which would
have been payable on such property at fair cash value and at the otherwise applicable tax rate, if
there had been no abatement or exemption; this payment shall be in addition to the payment made
by the Company under Section 2 of this Agreement.



8. Security

To the extent requested by the Town’s Police Department, and subject to the security and
architectural review requirements of Department of Public Health and the CCC, or such other
Licensing Authorities, as the case may be, the Company shall work with the Town’s Police
Department in determining the placement of exterior security cameras and reviewing and
approving all security plans prior to the Commencement of Operations.

The Company agrees to cooperate with the Police Department, including but not limited to periodic
meetings to review operational concerns, security, delivery schedule and procedures, cooperation
in investigations, and communications with the Police Department of any suspicious activities at
or in the immediate vicinity of the RME and with regard to any anti-diversion procedures to ensure
that marijuana and marijuana products are not being transferred to the illegal market or to minors.

To the extent requested by the Town’s Police Department, the Company shall work collaboratively
with the Police Department to implement a comprehensive diversion prevention plan to prevent
diversion, such plan to be in place prior to the Commencement of Operations at the RME.

The Company shall promptly report the discovery of the following to Town Police within twenty-
four (24) hours of the Company becoming aware of such event: diversion of marijuana; unusual
discrepancies identified during inventory; theft; loss and any criminal action; unusual discrepancy
in weight or inventory during transportation; any vehicle accidents, diversions, losses, or other
reportable incidents that occur during transport; any suspicious act involving the sale, cultivation,
distribution, processing, or production of marijuana by any person; unauthorized destruction of
marijuana; any loss or unauthorized alteration of records related to marijuana, registered qualifying
patients, personal caregivers, or dispensary agents; an alarm activation or other event that requires
response by public safety personnel; failure of any security alarm system due to a loss of electrical
power or mechanical malfunction that is expected to last longer than eight hours; and any other
breach of security.

9. Traffic Mitigation

The Company agrees to cooperate with Town officials on traffic management, including, but not
limited to the Police Department, to ensure that sufficient traffic control measures are in place to
mitigate traffic impacts. The Company shall pay for all customary traffic control measures
required by the Town and shall also, at its own expense, employ a police detail, if deemed
necessary by the Town, to manage traffic at the site. In the event that there is traffic queuing at
the RME that cannot be accommodated through existing parking and police detail, the Company
shall provide off-site parking and shuttle service to the RME to alleviate traffic issues. The
Company further agrees to maintain sufficient spaces on site for customer parking. The Company
shall also make arrangements for employee parking off street and off site, and shall provide the
Town with documentation regarding its employee parking plan.

10. Hours of Operation




The Company agrees that in no event shall the RME be open for business, nor shall any
distribution, delivery or transportation of marijuana occur at the RME outside the hours of 9 A.M.
through 8 P.M. Monday through Sundays.

11. Waste Disposal

The Company shall ensure that no fewer than two agents witness and document how the marijuana
waste is disposed or otherwise handled (recycled, composted, etc.) in accordance with 935 CMR
500.105. When marijuana products or waste is disposed or handled, the Company will create and
maintain a written or electronic record of the date, the type and quantity disposed or handled, the
manner of disposal or other handling, the location of disposal or other handling, and the names of
the two Company agents present during the disposal or other handling, with their signatures. The
Company shall keep these records for at least three (3) years.

12. Odor Control

The Company shall ensure that odor from the RME is not released so as to constitute a nuisance
to surrounding properties and shall use a vented odor control system so as not to release or
introduce any outdoor air into the RME, nor allow any indoor air to escape. The Company shall
employ odor control technology to remove odors and harmful volatile organic compounds (VOCs)
from the RME. The Company shall ensure proper maintenance of all odor mitigation equipment
to ensure maximum efficiency. In the event that the Town receives complaints concerning the
presence of odor from the RME, the Company shall address such complaints and may be required
to introduce new measures to control odor emanating from the RME.

In the event the Town receives five (5) or more complaints with respect to odor impacts in relation
to the operation of the RME, the Company shall be required to meet with the Selectboard, which
may require that additional mitigation measures be taken, at the Company’s sole expense, to
address the specific nature of the complaints, including, but not limited to, having its odor
prevention mechanism and technologies reviewed and assessed by Independent Engineer, to
address the specific nature of the complaints to the satisfaction of the Selectboard. The Company
agrees and acknowledges that if odor mitigation is not addressed to the satisfaction of Selectboard,
the Company shall immediately, within thirty (30) days of notice cease all outdoor cultivation
upon the request of the Selectboard.

Nothing set forth herein, shall limit the authority or jurisdiction of the Building Inspector, Board

of Health, or any other local enforcement official from enforcing applicable state laws and
regulations, the Town’s local bylaws and regulations, with respect to odor violations.

13. Community Impact Hearing Concerns

The Company agrees to employ its best efforts to work collaboratively and cooperatively with its
neighboring businesses and residents to establish written policies and procedures to address
mitigation of any concerns or issues that may arise as a result of its operation of the RME,
including, but not limited to any and all concerns or issues that are raised at the Company’s



required Community Outreach Meeting relative to the operation of the RME. In addition, at the
request of the Selectboard, the Company shall hold community forums for discussion with
neighboring residences and businesses owners in order to address community feedback and
neighborhood concerns with respect to the operation of the RME; the Company shall establish or
update its written policies and procedures to address concerns raised. Said written policies and
procedures, as may be amended from time to time, shall be approved by the Selectboard prior to
Commencement of Operations and reviewed annually by the Selectboard as part of the Company’s
annual report to ensure compliance with the policies and procedures and to address any further
impacts requiring mitigation. The policies and procedures addressing community impact
mitigation adopted by the Company and presented to the Selectboard shall be incorporated herein
by reference and made a part of this Agreement, the same as if each were fully set forth herein.

The Company further agrees and acknowledged that in the event the Town receives complaints
with respect to the failure to mitigate conditions at the operation of the RME, the Company shall
be required to meet with the Selectboard, which may require that additional mitigation measures
be taken, at the Company’s sole expense, to address the specific nature of the complaints to the
satisfaction of the Selectboard.

14. Additional Obligations

A. Retained Authority of the Municipality

This Agreement does not affect, limit, or control the authority of the Town boards, commissions,
and departments to carry out their respective powers and duties to decide upon and to issue, or
deny, applicable permits and other approvals under the statutes and regulations of the
Commonwealth, the General and Zoning Bylaws of the Town, or applicable regulations of those
boards, commissions, and departments or to enforce said statutes, bylaws, and regulations. The
Town, by entering into this Agreement, is not thereby required or obligated to issue such permits
and approvals as may be necessary for the RME to operate in the Town, or to refrain from
enforcement action against the Company and/or the RME for violation of the terms of said permits
and approvals or said statutes, bylaws, and regulations.

B. Annual Reporting

The Company shall file an annual written report with the Selectboard in connection with its annual
financial submissions on July Ist of each year for purposes of reporting on compliance with each
of the terms of this Agreement and shall, at the request of the Selectboard, appear at a regularly
scheduled meeting to discuss the Annual Report.

C. Annual Inspections

The Company agrees that it will voluntarily submit to a minimum of one (1) annual inspection by
the Police, Fire and Building Departments to ensure compliance with the terms of this Agreement
and other local approvals. This provision shall not preclude the municipality or any of its
departments from conducting inspections at other times during the year to address enforcement

10



matters or respond to complaints. A reasonable provision of access to the RME by local inspecting
agents shall be provided in accordance with state regulations concerning access to the RME.

D. Limitations on Other Uses

The Company agrees that it will not allow or engage in the on-site social consumption of adult use
marijuana and adult use marijuana products. The delivery of adult use marijuana and adult use
marijuana products directly to consumers shall only be permitted in compliance with state law,
subject to required local approvals with prior written approval of the Selectboard, and either
amendment of this Agreement or negotiation of a new Host Community Agreement to address
such use.

E. Senior Discount

To the extent such practice and its implementation are consistent with federal, state, and municipal
laws and regulations, the Company shall stock a designated and affordable line of products for use
by senior citizens and shall apply a senior citizen discount of at least fifteen percent (15%) on
products for customers ages sixty-five (65) years old and older.

F. Improvements to the Property

The Company shall make capital improvements to the site at which the RME is located such that
the property will match the look and feel of the Town, and be of construction standards at least at
the quality of other nearby businesses. The Company agrees to comply with all laws, rules,
regulations and orders applicable to the RME, such provisions being incorporated herein by
reference, and shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary licenses, permits, and approvals
required for the performance of such work.

15. Re-Opener/Review

The Company or any “person or entity having direct or indirect control” in the Company, as
defined in 935 CMR 500.002, shall be required to provide to the Selectboard notice and a copy of
any other Host Community Agreement entered into for any marijuana establishment in which the
Company, or any person or entity having direct or indirect control in the Company, has any interest
and which is licensed by the CCC as the same type of establishment as the entity governed by this
agreement.

In the event the Company or any controlling person enters into a Host Community Agreement for
a retail marijuana establishment, either individually or as co-located uses, with another
municipality that contains financial terms that are superior to what the Company agrees to provide
the Town pursuant to this Agreement, then the parties shall reopen this Agreement and negotiate
an amendment resulting in benefits to the Town equivalent or superior to those provided to the
other municipality. The re-negotiation of the Host Community Agreement under this provision
would not preclude the Company from operating during the negotiation of the successor
agreement, provided the Company is in full compliance with all other terms of this Agreement.

11



16. Municipal Support

The Town agrees to submit to the CCC, or such other Licensing Authorities, as the case may be,
the required certifications relating to the Company’s application for a license to operate the RME
where such compliance has been properly met, but makes no representation or promise that it will
act on any other license or permit request, including, but not limited to any zoning application
submitted for the RME, in any particular way other than by the Town’s normal and regular course
of conduct and in accordance with its rules and regulations and any statutory guidelines governing
them.

17. Term and Termination

Except as expressly provided herein, this Agreement shall take effect on the date set forth above,
and shall be applicable for as long as the Company operates the RME in the Town with the
exception of the Community Impact Fee, which shall be subject to the five (5) year statutory
limitations of G.L. ¢.94G, §3(d).

In the event the Company has not secured a final license from the CCC and all necessary local
permits from the Town and commenced operations at the RME within two (2) years from the date
this Agreement takes effect, this Agreement shall expire at the option of the Selectboard, and the
Company shall be required to negotiate a new Host Community Agreement in order to operate the
RME within the Town. The Selectboard, in its discretion, may agree to an extension of the two (2)
year expiration, for good cause, which shall include the time required to pursue or await the
determination of an appeal of any permits required for the operation of the RME, the special permit
or other legal proceeding.

The Town may terminate this Agreement for cause by providing written notice to the Company in
the event that: (i) Company with willful or gross negligence violates any laws of the Town or the
Commonwealth with respect to the operation of the RME, and such violation remains uncured for
thirty (30) days following the Town’s issuance to Company of written notice of such violation; (i)
Company fails to make payments to the Town as required under this Agreement, and such failure
remains uncured for ten (10) days following the Town’s issuance to Company of written notice of
such violation; or (iii) there is any other material breach of the Agreement by the Company, which
material breach remains uncured for thirty (30) days following the Town’s issuance to Company
of written notice of such violation.

In the event of termination of this Agreement, the Company shall immediately cease all operations
at the RME.

18. Successors/Assigns

The Company shall not assign, sublet, or otherwise transfer its rights nor delegate its obligations
under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent from the Town, and
shall not assign or obligate any of the monies payable under this Agreement, except by and with
the prior written consent of the Town. This Agreement is binding upon the parties hereto, their
successors, assigns and legal representatives.

12



Events deemed an assignment include, without limitation: (i) Company’s final and adjudicated
bankruptcy whether voluntary or involuntary; (i1) the Company’s takeover or merger by or with
any other entity; (iii) the Company’s outright sale of assets and equity, majority stock sale to
another organization or entity for which the Company does not maintain a controlling equity
interest; (iv) or any other change in ownership or status of the Company; (v) any assignment for
the benefit of creditors; and/or (vi) any other assignment not approved in advance in writing by
the Town.

19. Notices

Any and all notices, consents, demands, requests, approvals or other communications required or
permitted under this Agreement, shall be in writing and delivered by hand or mailed postage
prepaid, return receipt requested, by registered or certified mail or by other reputable delivery
service, and shall be deemed given when so delivered by hand, if so mailed, when deposited with
the U.S. Postal Service, or, if sent by private overnight or other delivery service, when deposited
with such delivery service.

To: Town Administrator
Town of Wellfleet
300 Main Street
Wellfleet, MA 02667

Copy To: Carolyn M. Murray, Esq.
Town Counsel
KP Law, PC
101 Arch Street, 12th Floor
Boston, MA 02110

To Licensee: Nature’s Alternative, Inc.
20 Centerville Road
Warwick RI 02886
By e-mail: m.wilkes@terps.com

Copy to: Benjamin E. Zehnder, Esq.
La Tanzi, Spaulding & Landreth, LLP
8 Cardinal Lane
Orleans, MA 02653
By email: bzehnder@latanzi.com

20. Severability
If any term of condition of this Agreement or any application thereof shall to any extent be held

invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and
enforceability of the remaining terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be deemed

13



affected thereby unless the Town would be substantially or materially prejudiced. Further, the
Company agrees that it will not challenge, in any jurisdiction, the enforceability of any provision
included in this Agreement; and to the extent the validity of this Agreement is challenged by the
Company in a court of competent jurisdiction, the Company shall pay for all reasonable fees and
costs incurred by the Town in enforcing this Agreement.

21. Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and the Company submits to the jurisdiction of any of its
appropriate courts for the adjudication of disputes arising out of this Agreement.

22. Entire Agreement

This Agreement, including all documents incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the entire
integrated agreement between the Company and the Town with respect to the matters described
herein. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and representations, either
written or oral, and it shall not be modified or amended except by a written document executed by
the parties hereto.

23. Amendments/Waiver

Amendments, or waivers of any term, condition, covenant, duty or obligation contained in this
Agreement may be made only by written amendment executed by authorized representatives of
both Parties to this Agreement, prior to the effective date of the amendment.

24. Headings

The article, section, and/or paragraph headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference
only, and shall in no way affect, modify, define or be used in interpreting the text of this
Agreement.

25. Counterparts

This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts all of which taken together, each of
which is an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any party
hereto may execute this Agreement by signing one or more counterparts.

26. Signatures

Facsimile or electronic signatures affixed to this Agreement shall have the same weight and
authority as an original signature.

27. No Joint Venture

14



The Parties hereto agree that nothing contained in this Agreement or any other documents executed
in connection herewith is intended or shall be construed to establish the Town, or the Town and
any other successor, affiliate or corporate entity as joint ventures or partners.

28. Nullity

This Agreement shall be null and void in the event that the Company does not locate the RME in
the Town or relocates the RME out of the Town; provided, however, that if the Company decides
not to locate the RME in the Town, the Company shall reimburse the Town for its legal fees
associated with the negotiation of this Agreement. Further, in the case of any relocation out of the
Town, the Company agrees that an adjustment of Annual Payments due to the Town hereunder
shall be calculated based upon the period of occupation of the RME within the Town, but in no
event shall the Town be responsible for the return of any funds provided to it by the Company.

29. Indemnification

30. The Company shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Town harmless from and against any
and all claims, demands, liabilities, actions, causes of actions, defenses, proceedings and/or
costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, brought against the Town, their agents,
departments, officials, employees, insurers and/or successors, by any third party arising
from or relating to the development of the Property and/or RME. Such indemnification
shall include, but shall not be limited to, all reasonable fees and reasonable costs of
attorneys and other reasonable consultant fees and all fees and costs (including but not
limited to attorneys and consultant fees and costs) shall be at charged at regular and
customary municipal rates, of the Town’s choosing, incurred in defending such claims,
actions, proceedings or demands. The Company agrees, within thirty (30) days of written
notice by the Town, to reimburse the Town for any and all costs and fees incurred in
defending itself with respect to any such claim, action, proceeding or demand. Third-
Parties

Nothing contained in this agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action
in favor of a third party against either the Town or the Company.

31. Representation of Authority

The Company represents and warrants that it is duly organized and existing and in good standing,
has the full power, authority, and legal right to enter into and perform this Agreement, and the
execution, delivery and performance hereof and thereof (i) will not violate any judgment, order,
state law, bylaw, or regulation, and (ii) does not conflict with, or constitute a default under, any
agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which the Company may be bound
or affected.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year
first written above.

15



TOWN OF WELLFLEET NATURE’S ALTERNATIVE, INC. by:

Michael DeVasto Patrick J. Casey, 111
Chair of the Selectboard President

On behalf of the

Town of Wellfleet

16



. 1.a Tanzi

Spaulding

8 Cardinal Lane 14 Center Street, Suite 4 3010 Main Street, Suite 2F

& Landreth Orleans Provincetown Barnstable

Benjamin E. Zehnder
508.255.2133 ext. 128
bzehnder@latanzi.com

May 4, 2021

Michael DeVasto, Chair
Wellfleet Select Board
300 Main Street
Wellfleet, MA 02667

Via hand delivery on May 5, 2021 and email to Rebekah Eldridge
<Rebekah.Eldridge@wellfleet-ma.gov>

Re:  Nature’s Alternative Inc. / Request for Approval of Host Community Agreement
Dear Mr. DeVasto and Select Board Memebers:

[ am writing to request that the Select Board approve a new Host Community
Agreement for my client Nature’s Alternative, Inc. (“NA”). As the Board is aware, NA
entered into a Host Community Agreement dated December 11, 2018, which expired on
its terms as NA did not commence operations within two years of that date.

Since December of 2018, NA has applied for and obtained Board of Appeals
approval for operation at 2393 State Highway, has obtained a building permit and
substantially completed its buildout, and is expected to receive Cannabis Control
Commission approval to commence operations, possibly as early as May 13, 2021.

[ have attached hereto in accordance with the Select Board’s March 24,2020
Town of Wellfleet Marijuana Host Community Agreement Policy, 8 copies of the
following:

1. The recorded Board of Appeals Special Permit, which includes a
description of the premises and a detailed operational description and operational
conditions;

2. Ownership structure of NA as previously approved by the Select Board,;
and

3. A Proposed Host Community Agreement, in the form most recently
approved by the Select Board for the Old Bank property at 10 Main Street.

I ask that you place this matter on your May 12, 2021 agenda for review and

U Legal Beacon. since 1969

MAILING: P.O. Box 2300, Orleans, MA 02653 T: 508.255.2133 F: 508.255.3786 www.latanzi.com



action. I will plan on attending to answer any questions and will have available a
representative of my client as well.

Thank you and my regards,

_eryTpuly yours, //7
( P

| . P,
\ | .
\\_\.\ Y

Benjamin E. Zehnder
BEZ/
cc via email only:
Rich Pauley, Acting Town Administrator
Michael DeVasto

client



Bk 32397 Pgl73 #51932
10-21-2019 @ 03:31p

Zoning Board of Appeals
Town of Wellifleet
Town Hall

300 Maln st. Wellfleet Ma 02667

Certification of the Town Clerk

I, Jennifer Congel, Acting Town Clerk, Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts, do hereby certify that
Twenty(20) days have elapsed since the filing with this office of the Decision of the
Wellfleet Zoning Board of Appeals in:

Special Permit 19-23

Nature’s Alternative, Inc.

2393 State Highway.

Map 23, Parcel 211

Book 11494, Page 218

And that no notice of appeal of said decision has been filed with me, or if such appeal has been

Filed, it has been dismissed or denied.

Dated Od‘ob’/\ 1'7‘ 20109

Signed%‘mﬁw




Bk 32397 Pgl74 #51932

WELLFLEET ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

B A
LRI k4 P-'__,"’

220 West Main St., Wellfleet, MA 02667 “ SRR
FOIE] .
September 25, 2019 MOCI 1 P2 1y
DECISION OF THE WELLFLEET ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS. 4. 4717, 7] Err

19-23 Nature’s Alternative, Inc., 2393 State Highway, Map 23, Parcel 211, Application for a
Special Permit for retail marijuana use operation pursuant to the WZB s. 5.4.2 (Use Tables) and
S. 5.4.13 (more than one principle use)

Pursuant to a Notice of Petition and Public Hearing, which was published in The Cape Codder
newspaper on 08/23/19 and 09/30/19, and which was posted in the Town Hall from 08/29/19 to
09/12/19 and which was sent to abutters and parties in interest on 08/21/19, the public hearing of
the petition cited above, for the property cited above, was held on Thursday, September 12, 2019
at 8:05 pm.

The Board consisted of Sharon Inger, Mick Lynch, Manny Heyliger, Bruce Drucker, and Jan
Morrissey. Also in attendance were Board members Wil Sullivan and Reatha Ciotti. Attorney
Ben Zehnder represented the applicant and provided an overview of the project. Ryder Wilcox
were at the table. Attorney Zehnder stated there are a number of leased spaces in the building
and the old antique store will be converted into the marijuana retail space. There will be no
alterations to the building, other than the front facade of the building to provide a secure frontage
to the facility. The corridors will provide access for delivery. He gave an overview of the
interior space, identifying the employee areas, security, retail space, etc. There is a community
host agreement with the town. Lisa Toomey, Cove Rd., questioned where the deliveries will be
made, hours of operation, expressed concern with lighting facing her home, odor control, how
will smoking outside in the parking park be secured, people “hanging around”, as well as
entrance and egress from the parking lot. The hours will be 9:00 am to 8:00 pm; deliveries will
be either from the front door or side door which faces the Post Office. There will be down
lighting. Nancy Sheldon stated the area will be monitored by cameras 24 hours and the police
will frequently monitor the store/area. There will be no odor from the products since there is no
cultivation and the products are packaged in plastic, and under displayed under glass in the store.
There was no traffic study performed because it is the same use, and there are 4 entrances / exits
near the Cove Road area. From the audience, Beth Singer stated the parking lot is also a school
bus stop for both the am and pm (before and after school). She is concemned with the traffic
danger and difficulty accessing Route 6. A letter of opposition from Jim and Marcia Armold was
read expressing concern with traffic, safety, and impaired drivers.

Wil Sullivan questioned the use of the school buses on the property and Attorney Zehnder stated
the owner of the property had never restricted the use as long as the tenants didn’t have any
problems. Attorney Zehnder stated he didn’t think the location of the marijuana store would
impact the children since they could not purchase any products. Ms. Sheldon stated there will be
a liaison with the police department to ensure they are always informed. There will be a parking
person to direct traffic, and if necessary due to a large number of customers, sales will be an



Bk 32397 Pgl75 #51932

appointment only schedule. The company will make arrangements with the tenants, police, and
other agencies to ensure safety. Attorney Zehnder suggested a condition for a detailed police
presence during the first month. He believed the turnover of people buying products would be
approximately 15 minutes (in and out). Off-site parking could be made available if necessary.
The company has to go the Cannabis Control Committee. Bruce Drucker stated most of the
problems with traffic will be in the summer months and we cannot predict what will happen. He
stated this is a political issue. He stated he feels the abutters should get together with the
Selectmen to make sure the town works with the police, the owners, etc. and the funding
received from the sales per the Host Agreement supports the efforts of the agencies. Attorney
Zehnder stated a school bus stop doesn’t have required limited distance to marijuana stores
(schools have 500 feet). There are approximately 123 parking spots on the property. Jan
Morrissey expressed concern with the number of accidents in the Cove Road area. She stated a
traffic report was done and recommendations were made, but never implemented, She
questioned the use of the outside door for entrance to the rest room, and Ms. Sheldon stated there
will be security at both the doors to the store. Mick Lynch moved for Findings of Fact; seconded
by Manny Heyliger; passed 5-0

In connection with the granting of this Special Permit, pursuant to Section 8.4.2 of the Bylaw,
the Board found the benefits of the proposed use of the property as an Adult Use Marijuana
Establishment for the operation of a marijuana retail establishment will outweigh any adverse
effects on the Town, based on the following findings:

1. The property comprises approximately 101,192 square feet of land and 300 linear feet of
frontage on Route 6 State Highway in the Commercial zoning district where 40,000 square
feet of land and 200 feet of frontage are required,

2. The property is improved with a two-story brick commercial structure with approximately
16,833 square feet of floor area containing a Dunkin’ Donuts establishment, hair salon, a
former antique store, thrift store and self-storage units.

3. The structure is conforming as to lot coverage, height, and all building sideline setbacks
save for the south side which is 25.3 feet from the sideline where 35 feet is required.

4. The property is nonconforming with regard to parking area setback requirements — the
parking areas being 0 feet from Cove Road where 10’ are required, and 15’ from Route 6
where 35 feet are required.

5. The applicant proposes establishing a marijuana retail store in 3,130 square feet of the first
floor presently the location of a retail antique store.

6. The use of the space as a retail store is not changing.
7. The remaining uses of the building are not changing.
8. The site plan shows 107 parking spaces where 77 are required.

9. The building is well set back from Route 6 — being 215.7 feet, and from Cove Road, being
76 feet.



Bk 32397 Pgl76 #51932

10. The property provides two entrance / exits onto Route 6 and affords relatively straight and
clear sight lines,

11. The property also provides entrances onto Cove Road and the adjacent Post Office /
Theatre property, both of which provide nearby access to Route 6.

12. Retail sales of marijuana is not separately defined or regulated by the Wellfleet Zoning
Bylaw but is rather a Retail Trade use permitted in the Commercial Zoning District by

special permit.

13. The proposed use is not a change of use of the building, and therefore the Parking
Requirement provisions of Section 6.3 and Landscaping requirements of Section 6.12 do
not apply to this application

14. The proposal is projected to provide significant additional revenue to the Town of
Wellfleet.

15. Route 6 provides adequate access and other public services to the property.

16. There is no reasonable likelihood of environmental damage from the proposal since the
exterior of the building and the parking areas will remain the same.

17. The proposal will beneficially increase the diversity of services available locally as it will
create a new and dynamic business.

18. There will be a seasonal increase in traffic due to numerous factors during the summer-
tourist season but given the volume of traffic and use of Route 6 and adjoining roads, the
increase is not projected to be significantly detrimental.

19. The proposal will create needed year-round employment as 18 employees at maximum
shift are anticipated.

20. There will be no impact on any scenic views from the proposal.
21. The proposal provides for adequate delivery and service areas.

22, The proposal will not affect public access to or along the shoreline.
23. There were 3 objections to the application.

24. The proposal will not be substantially more detrimental to the neighborhood than current
uses and structures at locus, and the applicant has demonstrated that the benefits of the
proposal will outweigh any adverse effects on the Town and the vicinity after considering
the Special Permit Granting Objectives as set forth in Section 8.4.2 of the Wellfleet Zoning
Bylaws.

Bruce Drucker moved the Findings of Facts; seconded by Mick Lynch, passed 5-0. Mick Lynch



Bk 32397 Pgl?77 #51932

moved to grant the Special Permit with the following conditions; seconded by Manny Heyliger,
passed 5-0.:

The Board grants this approval for a Special Permit subject to the following conditions:

1. The adult use Marijuana Establishment shall be permitted to operate between the hours of
9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. for adult use man_luana retail purposes.

2. This Special Permit is limited to the operation of a faclhty as an adult use marijuana retail
establishment for the sale of adult recreational marijuana and marijuana products directly
to adult consumers.

3. The adult use marijuana retail establishment may not operate, and the Special Permit will
not take effect, until the Applicant has obtained all final license approvals from the
Cannabis Control Commission (the “CCC”).

4, Prior to commencing operations on the Property for the sale of adult recreational
marijuana and marijuana products, the Applicant shall provide the Building
Commissioner, Health Agent, Fire Chief, Police Chief and the Board with a copy of the
applicable Final License from the CCC for an adult use marijuana retail establishment,

5. The Applicant shall provide an annual report of its operations to the Board and other
Town officials no later than January 31st of each year, including a copy of all current
state licenses and demonstrating continued compliance with the conditions of this special
permit. Any change in ownership of the property or change in management staff and
individuals with key access to the marijuana establishment shall also be reported within
30 days of such change.

6. This Special Permit is not transferrable or assignable to another party or entity and shall
remain exclusively with the Applicant for the operation of the facility as an adult use
marijuana retail establishment for the sale of adult recreational marijuana and marijuana
products directly to adult consumers. Events deemed a transfer or assignment of the
Special Permit shall include, without limitation: (i) the Applicant’s takeover or merger by
or with any other entity; (ii) the Applicant’s outright sale of assets and equity, majority
stock sale to another organization or entity for which the Company does not maintain a
controlling equity interest; (iii) or any other changes to a majority of the founding
member ownership or status of the Applicant. A Special Permit may be transferred or
assigned only with the approval of the Board in the form of an amendment to the Special
Permit.

7. Smoking, burning and consumption of mar{iuana or marijuana infused products on the
premises for personal or consumer use is prohibited.



Bk 32397 Pgl78 #51932

8. The permit holder shall notify the Building Commissioner, the Health Agent, the Fire
Chief, the Police Chief, and the Board in writing within forty-eight hours of the cessation
of operation of the adult use marijuana retail uses or the expiration or termination of the
license holder’s Final License CCC.

9. The Special Permit shall lapse upon the expiration or termination of the Applicant’s
license by the Cannabis Control Commission.

10. There shall be a valid Host Community Agreement in effect at all times during the
operation of the adult use marijuana retail establishment.

11. The Security Plan and Emergency Procedures shall be approved by the Police Chief and
Fire Chief prior to commencing operations. Any changes to the Security Plan and
Emergency Procedures shall be reported, in writing, to the Police Chief and Fire Chief
within 14 days of such changes taking effect.

12. The Applicant shall provide to the Building Inspector and Chief of the Police
Department, the name, telephone number and electronic mail address of a contact person
in the event that such person needs to be contacted afier regular business hours to address
an urgent issue. Such contact information shall be kept updated by the permit holder.

13. No deliveries will be made to the facility from the Cove Road side of the property.

14. The applicant will employ a detail officer to control traffic for the first few months of
operation or as deemed necessary by the chief of police.

2 = ) i

Sharon Inger, Chair Christine Bates, Committee Secretary



Bk 32397 Pgl79 #51932

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

TOWN OF WELLFLEET e
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS Tun L T Rene

Certificate of Granting of Special Permit BYOETIT P 24 Y
(Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40-A, Section 11) o ‘

*

The Zoning Board of Appeals of the Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts hereby’ Ceitifies @S o }':.EZ-E-:T
Special Permit has been granted to the following:

Special Permit 19-23

Nature’s Alternative, Inc,

2393 State Highway.
Map 23, Parcel 211
Book 11494, Page 218

Retail marijuana use operation and more than one principle use on property

And the said Zoning Board of Appeals further certifies that the Decision attached hereto

is a true and correct copy of its decision granting said Special Permit, and that copies of

said Decision, and of all plans referred to in the Decision, have been filed with the Town
Clerk.

The Zoning Board of Appeals also calls to the attention of the owner and/or applicant that
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40-A, Section 11 (last paragraph) provides that no
Special Permit, or any extension, modification or renewal thereof, shall take effect until
the Decision bearing the certification of the Town Clerk that twenty days have elapsed
after the Decision has been filed in the Office of the Town Clerk and no appeal has been
filed or that, if such appeal has been filed, it has been dismissed or denied, is recorded in
the Barnstable County registry of Deeds and indexed in the grantor index under the name
of the owner of record and noted on the owner’s certificate of title. The fee for such
recording or registering shall be paid by the owner or the applicant.

o3y Cliohy Bt

Sharon Inger, Chair Date Christine A. Bates, Clerk

JOHN F. MEADE, REGISTER
BARNSTABLE COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS
RECEIVED & RECORDED ELECTRONICALLY



Nature's Alternative

Ratall paco Renovation for




Nature’s Alternative, Inc. — Corporate and Operational Structure Since Organization on
11/3/2017 — Prepared by Benjamin E. Zehnder 04-21-2020

November 3, 2017:

President — Stuart Bernstein

Treasurer — Ashley Esper

Secretary — David Miller

CEO - David Miller

Directors — Stuart Bernstein, Ashley Esper, David Miller
Equity Holders — N/A*

January 5, 2018:

President — David Miller

Treasurer — David Miller

Secretary — Jeff Bilodeau

CEO - David Miller

Directors — David Miller, Jeff Bilodeau, David Couture, Michael Gookin
Equity Holders — N/A*

*The organization was formed without ownership. Ownership was created upon stock transfer,
Stuart Bernstein held equity for duration of transfer.

December 14, 2018:

President — Andrew J. Medeiros

Treasurer — Nicholas Salvadore

Secretary — Nicholas Salvadore

CEO — Andrew J. Medeiros

Director — Nicholas Salvadore

Permitting and Licensing Consultant — David Miller

Equity Holders — Medeiros Family Trust (majority), Patrick Casey, Nicholas Salvadore

Current as of April 21, 2020 :

President — Patrick J. Casey, I1I

Treasurer — Nicholas Salvadore

Secretary — Nicholas Salvadore

CEO - Patrick J. Casey, III

Director — Nicholas Salvadore

Director — Patrick J. Casey, III

Director — Jill E. Moniz

Equity Holders:

Stock Owned 99.99% by Aspen Blue, LLC, a Rhode Island limited partnership
.01% by Andrew J. Medeiros.

Ownership of Aspen Blue, LLC is as follows:

| Nicholas A. Salvadore | 25.00%




TOWN OF WELLFLEET

300 MAIN STREET WELLFLEET MASSACHUSETTS 02667
Tel (508) 349-0300 Fax (508) 349-0305
www.wellfleetma.org

June 29, 2020
To Whom It May Concern:

On April 28, 2020 the Wellfleet Sclectboard voted unanimously to approve the corporate
ownership of Nature’s Alternative, Inc. by Aspen Blue, LLC (99.99%) and Andrew J.
Medeiros (0.01%).

Aspen Blue, LLC (a Rhode Island LLC)
72 Pine Street, Suite 1

Providence, RI 02903

Fed. ID# 84-1984766

Daniel R. Hoort
Wellfleet Town Administrator



Patrick J. Casey, IIl 25.00% ]
Francesca Turner, LLC [1] 25.00%
Mal Salvadore 5.00%
Wilma Properties, LLC [2] 10.00%
Wolf Den Holdings LLC [3] 5.00%
Ralph Shuster Metals, Inc. | 5.00% j

The ownership of Francesca Turner, LLC [1] is as follows:

| Jill E. Moniz B [ 100% \

The ownership of Wilma Properties, LLC [2] is as follows:

| Andrew Wilkes | 100%

The ownership of Wolf Den Holdings LLC [3] is as follows:

| Frank Zaino, 111 | 100% |

The names, addresses, telephone numbers, email addresses, and, where relevant, corporate
information for each applicant is as follows:

Aspen Blue, LLC (a RI domestic LLC):

RI Corporations ID 001695595; EIN 84-1984766

72 Pine Street, Suite 1

Providence, RI 02903

(401) 286-2119

mwilkes85@gmail.com (Matthew Wilkes, VP Licensing & Compliance)

Nicholas A. Salvadore:

6 Betty Drive
Narragansett, R 02882
(401) 500-7478
nick.salvadore@gmail.com

Patrick J. Casev, III:

3 Twin Oak Drive
Warwick, RI 02889
(401) 633-4984
pic3home(@verizon.net

Francesca Turner LLC (a RI domestic LLC):
RI Corporations ID 001703700

Attn.: Jill E. Moniz

97 Bluff Avenue




END

Edgewood, RI 02905
(401) 640-4546
iill.e.moniz(@email.com

Mal Salvadore:

400 Reservoir Avenue
Providence, RI 02907
(401) 780-8680
masltdiaol.com

Wilma Properties, LLC (a RI domestic LLC):
RI Corporations ID 000140170

Attn.: Andrew Wilkes

40 Quail Hollow Road

Cranston, R1 02920

(401) 241-5470

aw/@awilx.com

Wolf Den Holdings LLC.
EIN 84-3301719

Attn. Frank Zaino, 111

400 Putnam Pike, #J212
Smithfield, RI 02917

(401) 636-2000

fzaino(@ cec-engineering.com

Ralph Shuster Metals, Inc.:
EIN 04-2171488

David Malkin, President
909 N. Main Street
Providence, RI 02904
(401) 277-0300
davidm@dsmrealty.com




Town of Wellfleet
Marijuana Host Community Agreement Policy

Ali applicants seeking to execute an HCA with the Town shall appear before the Selectboard and present their
plans for operation of a Marijuana Establishment. All materials must be received in the Town Administrator’s
office no later than noon on the Thursday preceding the Selectboard’s Tuesday meeting. Applicant shall verify
that all managers, directors, officers, investors, and others related to the establishment are free from any
disqualifying criminal convictions. All investors shall be identified in the presentation. Applicant should provide
the following:

1. Eight copies of the presentation to be given to the Selectboard
2. Eight copies of a site map of the property
3. Eight copies of a business summary of the proposed business (not to exceed four pages)

Should the Selectboard wish to proceed the Town Administrator will be directed to negotiate a Host Community
Agreement with the applicant. A finalized Host Community Agreement will be brought back to the Selectboard
at a subsequent meeting for approval and signature.

The Selectboard will consider the following when making a decision as to approving a Host Community
Agreement.

e Local - The Town will give priority to businesses for which a majority of owners and operators include
local proprietors. First pr'ibrity to businesses primarily owned and operated by Wellfleet residents with
second priority to those primarily owned and operated by residents of the Outer Cape (Provincetown,
Truro and Eastham) and third priority to those primarily owned and operated by residents on the
remainder of Cape Cod.

e Year-round Business — The Town requires that the business be open a minimum of ten months of the
year.

e Economic Vitality — The opportunity for jobs for local residents and the use of local residents and
businesses for construction and other business needs.

* Medical vs Recreational Dispensary — The Selectboard will give preference to those applicants who will
dispense both medical and recreational marijuana.

Host Community Agreement Decision: The Selectboard may sign a Host Community Agreement with marijuana
establishments at the conclusion of this process, however, the decision to sign a Host Community Agreement is
solely at the discretion of the Selectboard. If the applicant’s business plan does not meet the priorities
established by the Board or is not considered sufficient by the Selectboard, the Board may decline to enter into
a Host Community Agreement.

Prior to the opening the establishment the applicant will provide the Selectboard with an update not less than
once a year.

Zoning Board of Appeals - The Board of Appeals shall be the Special Permit Granting Authority (SPGA) with the
authority to hear and decide all applications for special permits, except for those special permits where the
Planning Board is expressly designated as the SPGA. Registered Marijuana Dispensaries (medical) and
Recreational Marijuana Dispensaries require a Special Permit to operate in the Town of Wellfleet. Section 8.4.2
of the Town’s zoning bylaws (on Town’s web site) describe the conditions the Board of Appeals will consider
when making a decision on a Special Permit.




Premises and uses regulated by the Board of Health, such as “Medical Product Manufacturer” will require
further application, fees and additional materials to be submitted to the Board of Health.

Adopted by the Wellfleet Selectboard on March 24, 2020



TOWN OF WELLFLEET AND
NATURE’S ALTERNATIVE, INC.
HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT

This Host Community Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this  day of May,
2021 by and between NATURE’S ALTERNATIVE, INC., a Massachusetts corporation, and any
successor in interest, with a principal office address of 20 Centerville Road, Warwick, RI 02886
(the “Company™), and the TOWN OF WELLFLEET, a Massachusetts municipal corporation with
a principal address of 286 Main St, Wellfleet, MA 02667 (the “Town”) (Company and Town,
collectively the “Parties”), acting by and through its Selectboard in reliance upon all of the
representations made herein.

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to locate an approximately 3,130 square foot Adult
Use Retail Marijuana Establishment (“RME”) for the retail sales of adult use marijuana and
marijuana products at a parcel of land with approximately approximately 101,192 square feet of
land located at 2393 State Highway (Assessor’s Parcel ID 23-211), which is owned by the Cape
Commerce Nominee Trust, J. Bruce MacGregor, Trustee, more accurately described by the deed
recorded with the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds Book 11494, Page 218 (the “Property™),
in accordance with and pursuant to applicable state laws and regulations issued by the Cannabis
Control Commission (“CCC”), or such other state licensing or monitoring authority, as the case
may be (each a “Licensing Authority,” and collectively “Licensing Authorities™), including, but
not limited to 935 CMR 500.000, and such approvals as may be issued by the Town in
accordance with its Zoning Bylaws and other applicable local regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Company intends to provide certain benefits to the Town in the event that
it receives the requisite licenses from the CCC or such other Licensing Authorities, as the case
may be, to operate the RME and any and all required local permits and approvals from the Town;

WHEREAS, the parties intend by this Agreement to satisfy the provisions of G.L. ¢.94G,
§3(d), applicable to the operation of the RME, such activities to be only done in accordance with
the applicable state and local laws and regulations in the Town;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the Company and the Town agree as follows:

1. Recitals

The Parties agree that the above Recitals are true and accurate and that they are incorporated herein
and made a part hereof.

2. Annual Pavments

In the event that the Company obtains the requisite licenses and/or approvals from the Licensing
Authorities, as may be required for the operation of the RME, and receives any and all necessary
and required permits and licenses of the Town, and at the expiration of any final appeal period



related thereto, said matter not being appealed further, which permits and/or licenses allow the
Company to locate, occupy, and operate the RME in the Town, then the Company agrees to
provide the following Annual Payments as described in this Section 2; provided, however, that if
the Company fails to secure any such other license and/or approval as may be required, or any of
the required municipal approvals, the Company shall reimburse the Town for its legal fees
associated with the negotiation of this Agreement.

A. Community Impact Fee

The Company anticipates that the Town will incur additional expenses and impacts on the Town’s
road and other infrastructure systems, law enforcement, fire protection services, inspectional
services, and permitting and consulting services, as well as unforeseen impacts on the Town.
Accordingly, in order to mitigate the financial impact on the Town and use of Town resources, the
Company agrees to pay an Annual Community Impact Fee to the Town, in the amount and under
the terms provided herein:

1.

Company shall pay an Annual Community Impact Fee in an amount equal to three
percent (3%) of the gross sales from marijuana and marijuana product sales at the
RME (the “Annual Community Impact Fee”). The term “gross sales” shall mean
the total of all sales transactions of the RME without limitation, whether
wholesale or retail, and shall include but not be limited to all sales occurring at
the RME, including the sale of adult use marijuana, marijuana infused products,
paraphernalia, and any other products sold by the RME.

The Annual Community Impact Fee shall be made in quarterly installments, in
arrears, per the Town’s fiscal year (July 1 - June 30). The Annual Community
Impact Fee for the first year of operation shall be prorated based on the number
of months the RME is in operation. The initial payment of the Annual
Community Impact Fee shall be due on the first day of the fourth (4™) month
following the date the Company begins operations at the RME. Subsequent
payments of the Annual Community Impact Fee shall be paid on a quarterly
basis thereafter, due on the first day of the applicable month, for the term of the
Agreement. The RME shall be deemed in operation upon receipt of both an
occupancy permit from the Building Commissioner and the issuance of a final
license from the CCC. The Annual Community Impact Fee shall continue for a
period of five (5) years. At the conclusion of each of the respective five (5) year
terms, the parties shall negotiate in good faith the terms of a new Annual
Community Impact Fee as an Amendment to this Agreement; provided,
however, that if the parties are unable to reach an agreement on a successor
Community Impact Fee, the Annual Community Impact Fee specified in
Paragraph 2.A.1 of this Agreement shall remain in effect and shall not be
reduced below the amount set forth above until such time as the Parties
negotiate a successor community impact fee.



3. With regard to any year of operation for the RME which is not a full calendar

year, the applicable Annual Community Impact Fee shall be pro-rated
accordingly.

The Town shall use the above referenced payments in its sole discretion, but shall
make a good faith effort to allocate said payments to offset costs related to road
and other infrastructure systems, law enforcement, fire protection services,
inspectional services, public health and addiction services and permitting and
consulting services, as well as unforeseen impacts upon the Town.

B. Additional Costs. Payments and Reimbursements

1.

Permit and Connection Fees: The Company hereby acknowledges and accepts,
and waives all rights to challenge, contest or appeal the Town’s building permit
fee and other permit application fees, sewer and water connection fees, and all
other local charges and fees generally applicable and of the same rates and fees
chargeable to other comparable commercial developments in the Town.

RME Consulting Fees and Costs: The Company shall reimburse the Town for
any and all reasonable consulting costs and fees related to any land use
applications concerning the RME, negotiation of this and any other related
agreements, and any review concerning the RME, including, but limited to,
planning, engineering, legal and/or environmental professional consultants and
any related reasonable disbursements at standard rates charged by the above-
referenced consultants in relation to the RME.

Other Costs: The Company shall reimburse the Town for the actual costs
incurred by the Town in connection with holding public meetings and forums
substantially devoted to discussing the RME and/or reviewing the RME and for
any and all reasonable consulting costs and fees related to the monitoring and
enforcement of the terms of this Agreement, including, but not limited to
independent financial auditors and legal fees.

Late Payment Penalty: The Company acknowledges that time is of the essence
with respect to its timely payment of all funds required under Section 2 of this
Agreement. In the event that any such payments are not fully made with five (5)
days of the date they are due, the Town shall provide the Company with written
notice of such failure to make a timely payment. The Company shall have a five
(5) day period to cure such failure to make timely payment from the date of
receipt of such notice. If the Company fails to make full payment within such cure
period, the Company shall be required to pay the Town a late payment penalty
equal to five percent (5%) of such required payments.

C. Annual Reporting for Host Community Impact Fees




The Company shall notify the Town when the Company commences sales at the RME and shall
annually submit annual financial statements to the Town Administrator no later than July 31, which
shall include certification of itemized gross revenues for the previous calendar year, and all other
information required to ascertain compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The Company
shall maintain books, financial records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the
requirements of this Agreement in accordance with standard accounting practices and any
applicable regulations or guidelines of the CCC. All records shall be kept for a period of at least
seven (7) years. Upon request by the Town, the Company shall provide the Town with the same
access to its financial records (to be treated as confidential, to the extent allowed by law) as it is
required by the CCC and Department of Revenue for purposes of obtaining and maintaining a
license for the RME.

During the term of this Agreement and for three (3) years following the termination of this
Agreement the Company shall agree, upon request of the Town, to have its financial records
examined, copied, and audited by an Independent Financial Auditor, the expense of which shall
be borne by the Company. The Independent Financial Auditor shall review the Company’s
financial records for purposes of determining that the Annual Payments are in compliance with the
terms of this Agreement. Such examination shall be made not less than thirty (30) days following
written notice from the Town and shall occur only during normal business hours and at such place
where said books, financial records and accounts are maintained. The Independent Financial Audit
shall include those parts of the Company’s books and financial records which relate to the payment,
and shall include a certification of itemized gross sales for the previous calendar year, and all other
information required to ascertain compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The independent
audit of such records shall be conducted in such a manner as not to interfere with the Company’s
normal business activities.

3. Local Vendors and Emplovment

To the extent such practice and its implementation are consistent with federal, state, and municipal
laws and regulations, the Company shall use its best efforts in a legal and non-discriminatory
manner to give priority to local businesses, suppliers, contractors, builders and vendors in the
provision of goods and services called for in the construction, maintenance and continued
operation of the Establishment when such contractors and suppliers are properly qualified and
price competitive and shall use its best faith efforts to hire Town residents and make reasonable
efforts to utilize women-owned, minority-owned, and veteran-owned vendors within the Town.
The Company shall report annually to the Selectboard on the number of Wellfleet residents
employed at the Establishment.

4. Local Taxes

At all times during the Term of this Agreement, property, both real and personal, owned or
operated by the Company shall be treated as taxable, and all applicable real estate and personal
property taxes for that property shall be paid either directly by the Company or by its landlord
and neither the Company nor its landlord shall object or otherwise challenge the taxability of such
property and shall not seek a non-profit or agricultural exemption or reduction with respect to
such taxes.



Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) if real or personal property owned, leased or operated by the
Company is determined to be non-taxable or partially non-taxable, or (ii) if the value of such
property is abated with the effect of reducing or eliminating the tax which would otherwise be paid
if assessed at fair cash value as defined in G.L. c¢. 59, §38, or (iii) if the Company is determined to
be entitled or subject to exemption with the effect of reducing or eliminating the tax which would
otherwise be due if not so exempted, then the Company shall pay to the Town an amount which
when added to the taxes, if any, paid on such property, shall be equal to the taxes which would
have been payable on such property at fair cash value and at the otherwise applicable tax rate, if
there had been no abatement or exemption; this payment shall be in addition to the payment made
by the Company under Section 2 of this Agreement.

5. Security

To the extent requested by the Town’s Police Department, and subject to the security and
architectural review requirements of Department of Public Health and the CCC, or such other
Licensing Authorities, as the case may be, the Company shall work with the Town’s Police
Department in determining the placement of exterior security cameras.

The Company agrees to cooperate with the Police Department, including but not limited to periodic
meetings to review operational concerns, security, delivery schedule and procedures, cooperation
in investigations, and communications with the Police Department of any suspicious activities at
or in the immediate vicinity of the RME and with regard to any anti-diversion procedures.

To the extent requested by the Town’s Police Department, the Company shall work collaboratively
with the Police Department to 1mplement a comprehensive diversion prevention plan to prevent
diversion, such plan to be in place prior to the commencement of operations at the RME.

In the event the Town’s Police Department deems it necessary for the protection of public safety,

the Company shall hire a police detail at its own expense to address any queuing of vehicles and/or
customers at the RME that presents a danger to public health and safety.

6. Community Impact Hearing Concerns

The Company agrees to employ its best efforts to work collaboratively and cooperatively with its
neighboring businesses and residents to establish written policies and procedures to address
mitigation of any concerns or issues that may arise as a result of its operation of the RME and
which presents a clear disruption to the use of such neighboring business’s or resident’s property,
including, but not limited to any and all concerns or issues that are raised at the Company’s
required Community Outreach Meeting relative to the operation of the RME. Said written policies
and procedures, as may be amended from time to time, shall be reviewed and approved by the
Selectboard prior to commencement of operations and shall be incorporated herein by reference
and made a part of this Agreement, the same as if each were fully set forth herein.

7. Additional Obligations




A. Permitting
The obligations of the Company and the Town recited herein are specifically contingent upon the
Company obtaining a license for operation of the RME in the Town, and the Company’s receipt
of any and all necessary local approvals to locate, occupy, and operate the RME in the Town.

B. Retained Authority of the Municipality

This agreement does not affect, limit, or control the authority of the Town boards, commissions,
and departments to carry out their respective powers and duties to decide upon and to issue, or
deny, applicable permits and other approvals under the statutes and regulations of the
Commonwealth, the General and Zoning Bylaws of the Town, or applicable regulations of those
boards, commissions, and departments or to enforce said statutes, bylaws, and regulations. The
Town, by entering into this Agreement, is not thereby required or obligated to issue such permits
and approvals as may be necessary for the RME to operate in the Town, or to refrain from
enforcement action against the Company and/or the RME for violation of the terms of said permits
and approvals or said statutes, bylaws, and regulations.

C. Annual Reporting

The Company shall file an annual written report with the Selectboard in connection with its annual
financial submissions on July 31 of each year for purposes of reporting on compliance with each
of the terms of this Agreement and shall, at the request of the Selectboard, appear at a regularly
scheduled meeting to discuss the Annual Report.

D. Annual Inspections

The Company agrees that it will voluntarily submit to a minimum of one (1) annual inspection by
the Police, Fire and Building Departments to ensure compliance with the terms of this Agreement
and other local approvals. Said annual inspection shall not preclude the municipality or any of its
departments from conducting inspections at other times during the year to address enforcement
matters or respond to complaints. A reasonable provision of access to the RME by local inspecting
agents shall be provided in accordance with state regulations concerning access to the RME.

E. Limitations on Other Uses

The Company agrees that it will not allow or engage in the on-site social consumption of adult use
marijuana and adult use marijuana products. The delivery of adult use marijuana and adult use
marijuana products directly to consumers shall only be permitted in compliance with state law,
subject to required local approvals and either amendment of this Agreement or negotiation of a
new Host Community Agreement to address such use.

F. Improvements to the Property

The Company shall make capital improvements to the site at which the RME is located such that
the property will match the look and feel of the Town, and be of construction standards at least at



the quality of other nearby businesses. The Company agrees to comply with all laws, rules,
regulations and orders applicable to the RME, such provisions being incorporated herein by
reference, and shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary licenses, permits, and approvals
required for the performance of such work.

8. Re-Opener/Review

The Company or any “controlling person” in the Company, as defined in 935 CMR 500.002, shall
be required to provide to the Selectboard notice and a copy of any other Host Community
Agreement entered into for any marijuana establishment in which the Company, or any controlling
person in the Company, has any interest and which is licensed by the CCC or DPH as the same
type of establishment as the entity governed by this agreement.

In the event the Company or any controlling person enters into a Host Community Agreement for
a retail marijuana establishment, either individually or as co-located uses, with another
municipality located on Cape Cod, Nantucket and/or Martha’s Vineyard with a census population
of less than 20,000 that contains financial terms resulting in payments of a Community Impact Fee
or other payments totaling a higher percentage of gross sales for the same type of establishment
than the Company agrees to provide the Town pursuant to this Agreement, then the parties shall
reopen this Agreement and negotiate an amendment resulting in financial benefits to the Town
equivalent or superior to those provided to the other municipality. The re-negotiation of the Host
Community Agreement under this provision would not preclude the Company from operating
during the negotiation of the successor agreement, provided the Company is in full compliance
with all other terms of this Agreement,

9. Municipal Support

The Town agrees to submit to the CCC, or such other Licensing Authorities, as the case may be,
the required certifications relating to the Company’s application for a license to operate the RME
where such compliance has been properly met, but makes no representation or promise that it will
act on any other license or permit request, including, but not limited to any zoning application
submitted for the RME, in any particular way other than by the Town’s normal and regular course
of conduct and in accordance with its rules and regulations and any statutory guidelines governing
them.

10. Term

Except as expressly provided herein, this Agreement shall take effect on the date set forth above,
and shall be applicable for as long as the Company operates the RME in the Town with the
exception of the Community Impact Fee, which shall be subject to the five (5) year statutory
limitations of G.L. ¢.94G, §3(d).

In the event the Company has not secured a final license from the CCC and all necessary local
permits from the Town and commenced operations at the RME within two (2) years from the date
this Agreement takes effect, this Agreement shall expire and the Company shall be required to



negotiate a new Host Community Agreement in order to operate the RME within the Town. The
Selectboard, in its discretion, may agree to an extension of the two (2) year expiration, for good
cause, which shall include the time required to pursue or await the determination of an appeal of
any permits required for the operation of the RME, the special permit or other legal proceeding.

11. Successors/Assions

The Company shall not assign, sublet, or otherwise transfer its rights nor delegate its obligations
under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent from the Town, and
shall not assign or obligate any of the monies payable under this Agreement, except by and with
the written consent of the Town. This Agreement is binding upon the parties hereto, their
successors, assigns and legal representatives.

Events deemed an assignment include, without limitation: (i) Company’s final and adjudicated
bankruptcy whether voluntary or involuntary; (ii) the Company’s takeover or merger by or with
any other entity; (iii) the Company’s outright sale of assets and equity, majority stock sale to
another organization or entity for which the Company does not maintain a controlling equity
interest; (iv) or any other change in ownership or status of the Company; (v) any assignment for
the benefit of creditors; and/or (vi) any other assignment not approved in advance in writing by
the Town.

12. Notices

Any and all notices, consents, demands, requests, approvals or other communications required or
permitted under this Agreement, shall be in writing and delivered by hand or mailed postage
prepaid, return receipt requested, by registered or certified mail or by other reputable delivery
service, and shall be deemed given when so delivered by hand, if so mailed, when deposited with
the U.S. Postal Service, or, if sent by private overnight or other delivery service, when deposited
with such delivery service.

To: Town Administrator
Town of Wellfleet
300 Main Street
Wellfleet, MA 02667

To Licensee: Nature’s Alternative, Inc.
20 Centerville Road
Warwick RI 02886
By e-mail: m.wilkes@terps.com

Copy to: Benjamin E. Zehnder, Esq.
La Tanzi, Spaulding & Landreth, LLP
8 Cardinal Lane
Orleans, MA 02653
By email: bzehnder@latanzi.com



13. Severability

If any term of condition of this Agreement or any application thereof shall to any extent be held
invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and
enforceability of the remaining terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be deemed
affected thereby unless the Town would be substantially or materially prejudiced. Further, the
Company agrees that it will not challenge, in any jurisdiction, the enforceability of any provision
included in this Agreement; and to the extent the validity of this Agreement is challenged by the
Company in a court of competent jurisdiction, the Company shall pay for all reasonable fees and
costs incurred by the Town in enforcing this Agreement.

14. Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and the Company submits to the jurisdiction of any of its
appropriate courts for the adjudication of disputes arising out of this Agreement.

15. Entire Agreement

This Agreement, including all documents incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the entire
integrated agreement between the Company and the Town with respect to the matters described
herein. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and representations, either
written or oral, and it shall not be modified or amended except by a written document executed by
the parties hereto.

16. Amendments/Waiver

Amendments, or waivers of any term, condition, covenant, duty or obligation contained in this
Agreement may be made only by written amendment executed by the Wellfleet Selectboard, or its
designee and an authorized representative from The Grateful Mind, prior to the effective date of
the amendment.

17. Headings

The article, section, and/or paragraph headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference
only, and shall in no way affect, modify, define or be used in interpreting the text of this
Agreement.

18. Counterparts

This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts all of which taken together, each of
which is an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any party
hereto may execute this Agreement by signing one or more counterparts.



19. Signatures

Facsimile or electronic signatures affixed to this Agreement shall have the same weight and
authority as an original signature.

20. No Joint Venture

The Parties hereto agree that nothing contained in this Agreement or any other documents executed
in connection herewith is intended or shall be construed to establish the Town, or the Town and
any other successor, affiliate or corporate entity as joint ventures or partners.

21. Nullity

This Agreement shall be null and void in the event that the Company does not locate the RME in
the Town or relocates the RME out of the Town; provided, however, that if the Company decides
not to locate the RME in the Town, the Company shall reimburse the Town for its legal fees
associated with the negotiation of this Agreement. Further, in the case of any relocation out of the
Town, the Company agrees that an adjustment of Annual Payments due to the Town hereunder
shall be calculated based upon the period of occupation of the RME within the Town, but in no
event shall the Town be responsible for the return of any funds provided to it by the Company.

22. Indemnification

The Company shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Town harmless from and against any and all
claims, demands, liabilities, actions, causes of actions, defenses, proceedings and/or costs and
expenses, including attorney’s fees, brought against the Town, their agents, departments, officials,
employees, insurers and/or successors, by any third party arising from or relating to the
development of the Property and/or RME. Such indemnification shall include, but shall not be
limited to, all reasonable fees and reasonable costs of attorneys and other reasonable consultant
fees and all fees and costs (including but not limited to attorneys and consultant fees and costs)
shall be at charged at regular and customary municipal rates, of the Town’s choosing, incurred in
defending such claims, actions, proceedings or demands. The Company agrees, within thirty (30)
days of written notice by the Town, to reimburse the Town for any and all costs and fees incurred
in defending itself with respect to any such claim, action, proceeding or demand. To the extent that
any of the Town’s insurance policies provide coverage for any Claim to which indemnity is being
sought hereunder, the Town shall be requested to first submit the Claim to its insurance carrier
before seeking indemnity from the Company, and the Company shall only be required to indemnify
the Town to the extent there is no coverage.

23. Third-Parties

Nothing contained in this agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action
in favor of a third party against either the Town or the Company.

10



24, Termination
This Agreement shall terminate at the time that either of the following occur:
A. If the Company ceases to operate, for any reason, an RME in the TOWN, then the

Agreement shall no longer apply nor shall the Company continue to pay an Annual
Community Impact Fee or other payments related to this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year
first written above.

TOWN OF WELLFLEET NATURE’S AITERNATIVE, INC. by:
Michael DeVasto Patrick J. Casey, III o
Chair of the Selectboard President

On behalf of the

Town of Wellfleet

11



SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST \ /. I
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021
BUSINESS ~F
REQUESTED BY: Interim Town Administrator ~ Charlie Sumner
DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss Mass Dot Projects ~ Main Street Route 6 and Route 6
Repaving
PROPOSED To Be Determined
MOTION:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST \ / I
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021
BUSINESS ~ G
REQUESTED BY: Interim Town Administrator Charlie Sumner
DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss and review 2020 with Powers & Sullivan the 2020
Management Letter and Audit
PROPOSED To Be Determined
MOTION:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




TOWN OF WELLFLEET, MASSACHUSETTS

MANAGEMENT LETTER

JUNE 30, 2020



Powers & Sullivan, LLC lzs

Certificd Public Accountants

100 Quannapowitt Parkway
Buite 101
Wakefield, MA 01880
T. 781-914-1700
F. 781-914-1701
www.powersandsullivan.com
To the Honorable Selectboard
Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. As described in the memorandum that
accompanies this letter, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control regarding the Town’s cash
reconciliation process that we consider to be a material weakness.

Additionally, during our audit we became aware of several matters that we believe are opportunities for
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter also
summarizes our comments and suggestions regarding those matters.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed
these comments and suggestions with various Town personnel and will be pleased to discuss them in further

detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the
recommendations.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management of the Town of Wellfleet,
Massachusetts, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

founy 4 Jud Ue

April 14, 2021



TOWN OF WELLFLEET, MASSACHUSETTS

MANAGEMENT LETTER
JUNE 30, 2020
CONTENTS
PAGE
MALErIal WEAKINESS.............c.ccoiiiieeieee ettt ettt ettt ettt st e e ee et s ae s ee e e sesee e 1
Cash RECONCIIAHONS..........cooiiii ettt e et e er e e eee e 2
ORI COMMENLS..............oeeeeeeee ettt ettt s et e et ettt e et e e e e e e e e e s et st eee s e e seeees oo 3
Maintaining Proper Vendor Records and Database ............c.ooooeiiiioiii et 4
Supporting Documentation for the Town’s Payroll Process..............cocoooeocoioniiicneiiee e 4
Automation of Compensated ADSENCES.........ccicieeeiieiieiiiee et e e 5
Recording Interfund Transfers and the Contribution to the OPEB Trust Fund.............cccooooovvvvie . 5
Commingling the Stabilization Funds and the OPEB Trust Fund with Other Funds .............cooooeov.oo.. 6
Accounting for the PEG Cable ACCESS FUNA ..o 6
Maintaining a Budget Reconciliation and Accounting for the General Fund Budget.............cccocooe....... 7
SUPPOM fOr RECEIVADIES ........c.cii ittt st et e e ee et s e 7
Reserve for Abatements/OVEIMAY .......... ..ottt et vene e 7
General Ledger Reporting and MainteNanCe.............cocviviieiictiiiece et e e e 8
Encumbrances and the Use of PUrchase Orders ................cocoeiviueiiiieic e, 8
General Ledger JOUrnal ENIES ...........ccceuieiiiiiriecse sttt e et e ere et sttt ee e eee e ee e, 9
Capital Asset Account MaiNteNANCE ........c.eovviiiiii et 9

inadequate Controls Over the General Ledger and Financial Statements...............ccccccocvevevveevenn... 10



Material Weakness



CASH RECONCILATIONS

Material Weakness Comment

Both the Town Treasurer and Town Accountant play a key role in developing and monitoring a sound internal
control structure. These roles are summarized as follows:

e The Treasurer is responsible for establishing and maintaining procedures to 1) properly safeguard the
Town'’s cash and investments and 2) assure that all receipts and disbursements are reported accurately
and timely.

» The Town Accountant’s office is responsible for establishing and maintaining procedures to assure that 1)
all Town receipts and disbursements are properly authorized and recorded in the general ledger
accurately and timely 2) all journal entries are properly recorded and documented and 3) all departments
are providing detailed and accurate accrual information on a timely basis.

One of the most effective controls to detect and correct errors in a timely manner is a timely process of reconciling
bank balances to the cash book in the Treasurer’s office and then reconciling those reconciled Treasurer's cash
book balances to the Town's general ledger. Performing these monthly recongciliations helps to ensure that errors
are detected and corrected timely and that records are complete and accurate. In 2020, the Town did not perform
timely reconciliations and cash recorded on the general ledger at June 30, 2020, has not been reconciled.

In 2020, the Town implemented a new general ledger software and in performing our auditing procedures, we
noted that beginning balance of cash imported into the new system for the Town’s general fund did not agree to
the ending balance of cash in the general fund from the previous year. This resulted in a $2.3 million variance in
beginning cash on the Town’s ledgers. We were able to determine that the missing beginning balance in cash
was recorded to fund balance in the general fund. This issue was not detected and corrected through the Town'’s
cash reconciliation process. We proposed an audit adjustment which has been reflected in the Town’s 2020
financial statements.

In 2020, the Treasurer’s Office recorded a payment (a wire transfer, not placed on a warrant) for the purchase of
land totaling $2.0 million. The Treasurer recorded the transaction in the cashbook reconciling to the bank, but the
transaction was not posted to the Town'’s general ledger. Because the Town did not reconcile cash between the
Treasurer's cashbook and the general ledger throughout 2020, this missing expenditure was not detected and
corrected in a timely manner. We proposed an audit adjustment which has been reflected in the Town’s 2020
financial statements.

After the two adjustments as noted above were considered, there remained an unknown variance between the
cashbook balance and the Town’s general ledger totaling $821,000, of which $56,000 relates to outstanding
checks. We proposed an audit adjustment of $765,000 which has been reflected in the Town'’s 2020 financial
statements.

Collectively, these instances constitute a material weakness in the Town'’s internal controls over cash.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Town complete a comprehensive evaluation of the cash management process with the
goal of completing full reconciliations of cash on a monthly basis. With the change in the general ledger software,
we also recommend that the Town enhance and update the cash reconciliation policy and formally document any
cash reconciliation procedures as well as ensure compliance with any such policy or procedures.



Other Comments



MAINTAINING PROPER VENDOR RECORDS AND DATABASE
Comment

An important element of the Town’s expenditure process should include maintaining proper vendor records and a
comprehensive database containing all pertinent information for each vendor used by the Town, including W-9
Forms. Maintaining complete and accurate W-9 forms helps the Town prepare the required 1099 Tax Forms for
independent contractor business that have been paid more than $600.

The Town has not properly maintained vendor records including the collection of W-9 forms. Deficiencies in this
process increase the risk that the Town will not prepare and file the appropriate 1099 Forms as required.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Town perform a review of the vendor listing and ensure that a vendor database is
accurate and complete. This includes the preparation of W-9 forms for each vendor on file to ensure the
appropriate 1099 forms are provided each year.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR THE TOWN’S PAYROLL PROCESS
Comment

Processing payroll is an integral part of the Town's day to day operations, and therefore should have strong
internal controls. Payroll processed for each pay period should be adequately supported including signed and
approved timesheets and proof of payrates. Additionally, both forms of supporting documentation should include
proper signatory authority prior to the disbursement of funds.

In performing a review of the Town’s internal control process for payroll operations, we noted that timesheets
were not properly maintained and were not readily available for review. Furthermore, timesheets and pay periods
were not standardized across departments and the timesheets did not require both the employee and their
supervisor's signature for approval and support of hours worked. Nonstandard pay periods increase the risk that
overtime, and other contractual benefits may not be calculated properly. Additionally, our review noted several
instances where unionized employees were compensated at a rate falling outside the executed bargaining
contract.

Furthermore, aside from the bargaining unit contracts, the Town does not have an annual salary notification or
payrate change form that is used consistently or timely which details the annual payrate increases, if applicable,
for each employee. These forms should be completed at each payrate change and should require the signature
of the employee and their supervisor and/or management.

Maintaining adequate records of hours work and payrates agreed upon by both the employee and Town
Management is an integral part of maintaining a strong internal control system over the Town’s payroll process.

Recommendation

We recommend the Town establish and document formal internal contro! policies over the Town's payroll
function, and to implement procedures to ensure compliance with such policies. We also recommend that as part
of that internal control process, the Town establish the use of standardized forms to track payrates earned, hours
worked, paid time-off and accrual balances as well as adopt a standard payroll period i.e. Sunday through
Saturday. A full review of current bargaining unit contracts is also recommended to ensure payrates and terms



reflect the agreements.

AUTOMATION OF COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Comment

The Town does not have a centralized electronic system to track and accrue sick, vacation, and compensatory
time. Compensated absences are specifically regulated by union contracts, and a decentralized and non-
automated system increases the risk that time earned and taken will not be recorded properly, thus increasing the
liability for the Town. Additionally, the records surrounding compensated absences displayed a variance from
bargaining unit contracts.

Since the Town utilizes Harpers for the Town’s payroll function, it is possible to record and monitor the
compensated absences liability through the payroll system. This would provide greater internal control over
accumulated sick and vacation time.

Recommendation
We recommend that the Town perform a detailed review of the accrued sick, vacation, and compensatory time for
each employee and department to ensure that time earned and previously tracked by the non-automated system

is accurate and reflects bargaining agreement terms. We then recommend that the Town implement an
automated system to properly monitor compensated absences.

RECORDING INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND THE CONTRIBUTION TO THE OPEB TRUST FUND

Comment

The Town does not currently reconcile budgeted transfers to the actual transfers recorded on the ledger. A lack
of reconciliation procedures surrounding the Town’s budgeted transfers increases the risk that those transfers, as
approved by Town Meeting, are not appropriately made in the proper period.

Consequently, in 2020, budgeted transfers were not recorded to the Town’s general ledger. Furthermore, the
Town did not record the $200,000 contribution to the Town’s Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Trust Fund
as voted at Town Meeting.

We proposed an adjustment to record budgeted transfers, including the contribution to the OPEB Trust Fund,
which have been reflected in Town’s 2020 financial statements.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Town implement procedures to reconcile any transfers as budgeted at Town Meeting to
transfers recorded to the general ledger.



COMMINGLING THE STABLIZATION FUNDS AND OPEB TRUST FUND WITH OTHER FUNDS
Comment

GASB Statement #74 establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for governments whose
employees are provided with Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB). For defined benefit OPEB plans that are
administered through trusts that meet specified criteria as described in GASB Statement #74, the trust is required
to be presented in a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position.

Massachusetts General Law (MGL) Ch.40 §5B allows for the establishment of Stabilization funds for one or more
different purposes. Stabilization funds are reported as part of the General Fund under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.

In 2020, the Town converted to a new general ledger system, and during the conversion, set up separate funds to
account for the Town's OPEB trust fund, and the Town's general stabilization fund. Throughout the year, the
balances and activity in each of these funds were posted to a different fund, which was used to account for the
Town'’s expendable trust funds, rather than the funds specifically set up for these purposes. We proposed an
adjustment to reclassify the balances and activity for both the OPEB trust fund and the stabilization fund for
separate reporting as a fiduciary fund and component of the general fund, respectively.

Recommendation
We recommend that the Town utilize the funds that have been set up in the general ledger to appropriately track
and record the balances and activity in these funds separately from other expendable trust funds for proper
reporting within the financial statements.
ACCOUNTING FOR THE PEG CABLE ACCESS FUND
Comment
The Massachusetts Department of Revenue (DOR) Informational Guideline Release No. 16-102 explains to local
officials the procedures and requirements for accounting for cable television public, educational and governmental
(PEG) activities.
The Release stipulates that the Town should either:

» Designate cable PEG access operations or services in an enterprise fund and separately account for

all franchise fees and other revenues derived from enterprise activities in the same manner as other

enterprise funds or;

e The Town may reserve the franchise fees and other cable related revenues for appropriation to
support PEG access services; in a receipts reserved for appropriation fund.

In reviewing the Town'’s special revenue funds, we noted that PEG cable access activity was reported in another
special revenue fund, and was not included as a receipts reserved for appropriation or an enterprise fund as
stipulated by the DOR.

Recommendation

We recommend that the PEG cable access operations are recorded in compliance with DOR guidelines.



MAINTAINING A BUDGET RECONCILATION AND ACCOUNTING FOR THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET
Comment

The Town is required to adopt and maintain a legal and balanced budget, and the Town utilizes their accounting
system to maintain budgetary control. In 2020, the Town was unable to provide a reconciliation of the final budget
recorded in the general ledger to the supporting Town Meeting votes or other documentation. This can put the
Town at risk of overspending appropriations and inaccurate financial reporting.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Town implement a process to verify budgetary compliance by reconciling from Town
Meeting votes to the amounts included on the tax recapitulation sheet and to the amounts recorded in the Town'’s
general ledger system.

SUPPORT FOR RECEIVABLES
Comment

An integral part of ensuring that the financial statements are accurate and complete is ensuring that all amounts
recorded to the Town's balance sheet are properly supported with underlying source documentation. Without
support or source documentation, the Town is at risk for maintaining inaccurate balances in the general ledger
and financial statements.

In 2020, we noted several accounts receivable balances in which supporting documentation was not provided
and/or the supporting documentation that was provided did not substantiate the amounts as reported on the
Town's general ledger.

Additionally, we noted that the Town does not have a strong internal control process to record activity regarding
its septic betterments. We've noted variances between the general ledger and the supporting documentation for
the past several years.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Town conduct a review for all of the Town’s outstanding receivables to determine if the
funds are still owed to the Town and if there are any receivables not properly recorded on the ledger. We also
recommend that the Town retain adequate supporting documentation for all receivables and other assets
recorded to the general ledger.

RESERVE FOR ABATEMENTS/OVERLAY

Comment

The Town Accountant’s Office and the Assessor’s Office are not managing and reconciling the Reserve for
Abatement accounts. The Town is required to maintain an overlay balance that exceeds the potential liability for

abatements. Without an accurate reconciliation between the general ledger and the Assessor’s records the
Board of Assessors could be making financial decisions for the Town based on inaccurate information.



Recommendation

In order to maintain the proper balances of overlay and to ensure that financial decisions are being made based
on accurate information, we recommend that the two departments that are responsible for this actively work
together to compare balances and activities, by year, and that these amounts are reconciled on a timely basis
along with all other amounts recorded on the general ledger.

GENERAL LEDGER REPORTING AND MAINTENANCE

Comment

Part of the Town’s accounting function is to ensure that the general ledger is adequately structured and managed
in a way that allows for proper tracking of specific funding sources against any related and legal expenditures.
This includes the use of funds or individual project codes that can identify specific funding sources and individual
balances.

In 2020, the Town converted their general ledger system and it was constructed in a way that comingled funds
and projects which hindered the ability to calculate and reconcile into beginning balance by project or fund from
the previous year. This also caused the inability to determine if capital projects and grants funds were properly
closed out at the end of the project or grant period. Commingling projects also increases the risk that funding
sources will not be applied to proper expenditures.

Furthermore in 2020, we noted that the general ledger did not balance in total by approximately $53,000 across
seven of the Town’s funds. Unbalanced ledgers are indicative of an underlying accounting issue and increases
the risk that accounts are not properly recorded.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Town review each project within the accounting structure across each of the Town’s
funds to ensure that each present an accurate balance. We then recommend that the Town implement policies
and procedures to ensure that transactions posted to the ledger are posted to the proper activity within the fund to
accumulate to a proper ending balance for a specific project or fund.

ENUMBRANCES AND THE USE OF PURCHASE ORDERS

Comment

A proper purchase order system allows for disbursements to be subject to the internal controls of the Town prior
to the purchase of goods or services. Purchase orders also allow management to have control over the
expenditure process and provides more accurate and useful financial information by allowing management to
monitor outstanding commitments against Town funds. A proper purchase order system can also mitigate risk
surrounding the Town’s year-end encumbrance process.

In 2020, we noted that the Town was not properly completing purchase orders prior to the purchase of goods and
services. Furthermore, we noted that year end encumbrances were questionable as to their validity given the
inadequate documentation to support the encumbrance and without completed purchase orders, as well as the
Town not having a process in place to reconcile when encumbrances are paid down.



Recommendation

We recommend that the Town implement a process to utilize purchase orders to strengthen controls over the
expenditure process as well as controls over the year-end encumbrance process.

GENERAL LEDGER JOURNAL ENTIRES
Comment

Manual adjusting journal entries are generally used to record year-end accruals, correct mispostings, and to
record certain non-cash transactions. During our audit, we noted that there were an extremely large number of
manual adjusting entries posted to the general ledger during the year. Additionally, we noted that some of the
journal entries did not contain sufficient supporting documentation.

The accounting system used by the Town, along with most systems, is designed to minimize the need for any
manual journal entries. Recording the transaction properly and charging it to the correct account at its inception is
the most efficient and accurate means of recording the Town'’s financial activity. For example, when a receipt is
received it is entered into the system and credited to the correct revenue account/fund. When employees or
vendors are paid the expenditure is to be charged to the account/fund that incurs the expense. The only need for
a journal entry is to correct errors, which should be minimal. If there is a need for a significant number of
corrections to the original transactions, there is a weakness in the design of the accounting process. If the Town
finds that journal entries are needed frequently, an immediate review of the policies and procedures surrounding
the transaction type in question should be performed to isolate where the deviation from prescribed policies and
procedures is occurring and what the correction should be.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Town work to identify the underlying issues resulting in the need for such an abundance
of manual adjusting entries. Further, we recommend that procedures be implemented to properly train non-
financial staff members charged with preparing source data so that errors and mispostings are minimized from the
inception of each transaction. We also recommend that the Town maintain proper supporting documentation for
all manual journal entries made throughout the year.

CAPITAL ASSET ACCOUNT MAINTENANCE

Comment

To comply with GASB Statement #34 reporting requirements, the Town had previously implemented a software
system to maintain a list of the Town’s capital assets as well as account for additions, disposals, and depreciation
on capital assets each year.

Over time, the capital asset system has not been monitored or properly tracked for additions and disposals.
Recommendation

We recommend that the Town perform a full review of the capital assets listed in the capital asset software

system to ensure that the assets listed are still in service and owned by the Town. Furthermore, we recommend
that the Town implement procedures to ensure proper management of the software system to verify that material



capital asset additions, disposals, and depreciation are properly tracked and recorded in the Town’s financial
statements.

INADEQUATE CONTROLS OVER THE GENERAL LEDGER AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comment

The accounting office is responsible for proper controls over the general ledger and for preparing financial
information used in compiling the financial statements. Other financial offices oversee and contribute to functions
impacting the general ledger and financial statements. If there are employees who lack the qualifications and
training to fulfill their assigned functions, i.e. if the person responsible for the accounting and reporting function
lacks the skills and knowledge to apply GAAP in recording the Town’s financial transactions and preparing its
financial statements, and if the person responsible for the cash book is unable to apply standard accounting
principles or payroll and accrual calculations and process are not understood by the individual(s) performing the
tasks, then the Town is at risk for material misstatements.

Throughout the audit of the 2020 financial statements, we had numerous questions about account balances and
transactions recorded on the Town's accounting ledgers or on the financial statements where it was difficult to
obtain answers or explanations without the assistance individuals who did not have responsibility over the general
ledger during the fiscal year.

Recommendation
We recommend that management re-evaluate individuals, and the roles and responsibilities of the accounting and

finance departments, to ensure that the books and records of the Town are being maintained in accordance with
internal policy and with legally prescribed external requirements.

10



TOWN OF WELLFLEET, MASSACHUSETTS

REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020



TOWN OF WELLFLEET, MASSACHUSETTS

REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Independent AUGIOI'S REPOM ... ..ot ettt e et e e et e e e et e e e e s e eeeseseeseee e e 1
Management's DiSCUSSION aNnd ANGIYSIS ..............c.civeiiiiniirit ettt et ettt ettt ee et eee e 3
Basic FInancial Statements ......... ..ot e oo ee e 10
Statement Of Nt POSIION .........ccuoiuii ettt et s e e e e 11
StAtEMENT Of ACHVILIES ........eeiiie et sttt ee et e ee e e e e e e e ees oo 12
Governmental fUnds = Balance SNEEL................cc.oouioi ettt et ee e e rer oo 14
Reconciliation of the governmental funds balance sheet total fund balances to the statement of net position .....15
Governmental funds — statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances ...................coco.co...... 16

Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances of governmental

funds to the statement Of ACHVIHIES ... 17
Proprietary funds — statement of net POSItION ..........ccooiiii i 18
Proprietary funds — statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position ............ccooceeevueeoeeeeeen, 19
Proprietary funds — statement of Cash fIOWS ... 20
Fiduciary funds — statement of fiduciary Net POSIION ... ..o i e 21
Fiduciary funds — statement of changes in fiduciary Nnet POSIHION .............ccoooe ot iieieeeeeeee oo 22
Notes to basic financial STAtEMENES ..ot eee e e ee e e e 23
Required Supplementany INFOrmation...............coi et e ee e e e e 55
General fund budgetary SChedUIE .............coo ittt e e e e e 56
Schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance — general fund — budget and actual .............. 57
Pension Plan SCREAUIES ...........cooc ettt st et s aesae s e e e e e e e etee e 58
Schedule of Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability.................c.c.ocooooeeiii i, 59
Schedule of the TOWN'S CONHDULIONS ... e e e ems e ee e e e re e et 60
Schedule of the special FUNAING @MOUNLS ............cooviiiiiiee ettt e e e e et eae s saa 61
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan SChedules ............c.ccorieoieiiiie ettt 62
Schedule of changes in the Town’s net OPEB liability and related ratios .........ccccoovoiviieeieceee e 63
Schedule of the TOWN’S CONIDULIONS ........ceererce et s bbb s b et ee et eeeene e 64
Schedule of INVESIMENE FEIUMS ..........ooi ettt ettt ee st e e e ee e e ee e e sen e 65
Notes to required supplementary INfOrMatioN ..............covoviiiiriiiiii et 66

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on ComplianCe...........ccouvveeiiiiiiciniicieeeeeeeeeeeee e, 70



Powers & Sullivan, LLC lzs

Certified Publiec Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report 100 Quannapowitt Parkway
Suite 101
To the Honorable Selectboard Wakefield, MA 01880
Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts T. 781-914-1700
F. 781-914-1701
Report on the Financial Statements www.powersandsullivan.com

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Wellfleet,
Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts' basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, located on the following pages, and required supplementary information, as listed in the
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management'’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 14, 2021, on our
consideration of the Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Town of Wellfleet's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

fouy ¢ Al U

April 14, 2021



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusefts 3 Management’s Discussion and Analysis



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Wellfleet (Town), we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented in this report.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial statements.
These basic financial statements comprise of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all assets, liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of
resources, with the difference as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned
but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (govemmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-fype activities). The governmental
activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, health and human services, culture
and recreation, COVID-19, and interest. The business-type activities include the activities of the Water and
Marina enterprise funds.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Govermnmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 4 Management’s Discussion and Analysis



The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison schedule has
been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. The Town maintains only one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-fype activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for the Water and Marina activities.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the Town's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for propriety funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Financial Highlights. As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the Town of Wellfleet, governmental assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $9.6 million at the close of 2020. Key components of the
Town’s governmental financial position are listed below.

Beginning net position was restated downwards in the amount of $498,981 related to changing the measurement
date of the OPEB liability to coincide with the reporting date of the financial statements. Previously, this
measurement was one year behind the rest of the financial statements.

2019
2020 (as restated)
Assets:
Current assets... TR 17,408,739 $ 17,896,299
Capital assets, non deprecuable . 9,158,255 12,562,592
Capital assets, net of accumulated deprematlon.... 22,143,574 16,707,815
Total assets......ccccvreeieniirniiirreccr e ereresen 48,710,568 47,166,706
Deferred outflows of resources..........ccoeevevemnnnenes 2,759,428 3,783,824
Liabilities: -
Current liabilities (excluding debt)....................... 4,644,948 1,597,755
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt).................. 22,734,902 24,514,922
Cumentdebt...........ccooi i 1,264,008 1,378,817
Noncurrent debt.............cocociii 11,338,744 12,602,752
Total liabilities.........cccovneireiimcreccnnineenrnnns 39,982,602 40,094,246
Deferred inflows of resources..........cccccermuecrnnnnns 1,877,608 199,319
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets........................ 16,237,869 15,288,838
Restricted...........c.oceeeei i e 3,431,689 3,094,218
Unrestricted.............c.ccoeve i e (10,059,772} (7,726,091)
Total net position............ccceiciirennicininneean. $ 9,609,786 $ 10,656,965

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 5 Management’s Discussion and Analysis



Net position of $16.2 million reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and
equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The Town uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Although the investment in its capital assets is reported net of its related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of net position, $3.4 million, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is a deficit of $10.1 million. This is
mainly due to the recognition of a $13.9 million net pension liability and a $8.7 million net OPEB liability.

The governmental activities net position decreased by $1.0 million during the current year. This decrease was
primarily due to a decrease in revenue from operating grants and contributions, while expenses increased from
the previous year. Expenses mainly increased for the education function, which was related to increases in
educational assessments.

The following table provides a summary of the financial highlights of the Town’s governmental activities for 2020
and 2019.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts

2020 2019
Program Revenues:
Charges for senices............ccccccceeviviiiicicceeeee e $ 1,547,394 § 1,950,998
Operating grants and contributions...... 2,477,688 4,135,792
Capital grants and contributions................ccccoocieiien e 796,124 824,140
General Revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds payable............cccccoeeieiiin i 17,489,068 17,323,681
Tax and otherliens...............cccccoiiiiiiiiin i 200,266 -
Motor wehicle, other excise, hotel/motel and meals taxes..... 960,004 908,495
Penalties and interest ontaxes............cocceeeeveiee v ienenns 91,926 88,632
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs............... 57,064 8,316
Unrestricted investment income 236,281 159,890
Total reVeNUES........c.cccremmiriinrercrierrrarvenersasernenernens 23,855,815 25,399,944
Expenses:
General GQOVBMMENt.............oeiiiiir e e, 3,467,833 3,559,265
Public safety.............ccccoeee e 6,492,418 6,385,527
Education................. 7,892,257 6,838,594
Public works....................... 3,014,772 3,151,404
Health and human senices.... 1,252,580 1,054,299
Culture and recreation................cocvee v ceeime s iee e 1,866,337 1,782,036
COVID-19.....ooiiiii e e e e 221,104 -
Interest........c.coevvveennenn. 410,832 405,622
Total eXPenSes.......cccmerersisiiriennnsnmnsisninennsnsassenennen: 24,618,133 23,176,747
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers............ccooverveverninieinn (762,318) 2,223,197
QLI L =T (284,861) (69,512)
Change in net Position.........cccceeiirimmicrcreinrnecrscrnarersenninn (1,047,179) 2,153,685
Net position, beginning of year (as restated)..................... 10,656,965 8,503,280
Net position, end of year............ccciiemmciinnranimenesieecsnian. 9,609,786 10,656,965

Management’s Discussion and Analysis



The following table provides a summary of the financial highlights of the Town’s business type activities for 2020
and 2019.

There was a decrease of $198,000 in net position reported in connection with the Water and Marina enterprise
business-type activities as compared to a decrease of $311,000 in the prior year.

2019
2020 (as restated)
Assets:
Current assets.........ccoccoeeveiiicirii e B 1,475,582 $ 1,228,612
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.... 9,614,507 10,063,106
Total assots......couimreiiniiarrnimaiiinnnincnnnnirenn, 11,090,089 11,291,718
Deferred outflows of resources............cceveeveenenas 50,695 38,143
Liabilities:
Cumrent liabilities (excluding debt)....................... 97,343 84,300
Noncurrent liabilities {excluding debt).................. 378,166 255,029
Currentdebt..........ccoovvvvvvienniiennnnns 160,734 160,036
Noncument debt........ R 2,636,536 2,797,270
Total liabilities.............ccceiiiiirrecsiiencernnnanns 3,272,779 3,296,635
Deferred inflows of resources...........c.cccoeevereeeene 35,402 2,013
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets. 6,817,237 7,105,800
Restricted...............coovvvieeeenn 352,230 321,730
Unrestricted..........c..oocei v e, 663,136 603,683
Total net position...........c.ccieemrmiimnnrecnaens $ 7,832,603 $ 8,031,213
2020 2019
Program Revenues:
Charges for Serces...........ccccccviviceccc i viiienene e, $ 810,183 $ 770,046
Operating grants and contributions................c..c....... 3,852 B
General Revenues:
Unrestricted investment income...................cocceeeeee 3,008 7,265
Total revenues. 817,043 777,311
Expenses:
WAoo 477,016 514,131
MariNA......corveeirr e e s 823,498 643,577
Total @XPONSes....ccuuueiiiniirieiisnescienanacnmnnerenens 1,300,514 1,157,708
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers.......c.covvermnerernanns (483,471) (380,397)
Transfers.......coouimmemieinreenisnnassenssesssasssassasssoas 284,861 69,512
Change in net position.......coeeieeciicniniieernnenscessensenen (198,610) (310,885)
Net position, beginning of year (as restated).............. 8,031,213 8,342,098
Net position, end of year.........c.ccccccccecceerrvevveserrrvenes $ 7,832,603 $ 8,031,213

The water enterprise fund increased $31,000. In addition to transfers from other funds, this is primarily due to the
fact that rates are designed to cover operating costs.

The marina enterprise fund net position decreased by $230,000. This was primarily due to an increase in the
enterprise fund’s net pension liability.

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis



As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's
net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

At the end of the current year, governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $11.2 million
comprised of $4.6 million in the general fund, $2.1 million in the Community Preservation fund, a $483,000 deficit
in the gifts and grants fund, $2.8 million in the revolving funds, a deficit of $402,000 in the major capital projects
funds, and $2.5 million in the nonmajor governmental funds.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance
of the general fund was $3.1 million, while total fund balance equaled $4.6 million. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 14.0% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 20.7% of that same amount. The general fund increased by $192,000. This increase was
primarily the result of an increase in the real estate and personal property tax collections received within the 60
days subsequent to year end, as well as activity in the general fund articles fund; offset by the use of prior year
fund balance to cover current year budgetary operations.

The Community Preservation fund is used to account for financial resources to purchase land for open space
conservation land primarily through land bank surtax, intergovernmental revenue, and bond proceeds. This major
fund experienced an increase of $300,000 in 2020.

The gifts and grants fund is used to account for financial resources related to intergovernmental and departmental
grants, various contributions and donations, and investment income. This fund experienced a decrease of $2.1
million, which is due to the $2.0 million purchase of a parcel of land, and the timing of state and federal grant
expenditures and when revenues are received.

The receipts reserved fund is used to account for financial resources reserved for specific purposes including
ambulance, Balers field, beach, and shellfish receipts. This fund experienced a decrease of $255,000.

The highway fund is used to account for financial resources required for the maintenance and construction of the
Town’s roads. The highway fund revenues equaled the expenditures.

The major capital projects fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other

capital assets of the governmental funds. This fund experienced a decrease of $626,000, which is due to the
timing difference between capital expenditures and the financing of those capital costs.

Town of Wellifleet, Massachusetts 8 Management’s Discussion and Analysis



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The initial budget and the encumbrances carried forward from the previous year (original budget) totaled $23.1
million. There were no net changes between the original and final budget.

General fund revenues came in $202,000 less than budgeted while general fund expenditures came in $770,000
less than budgeted.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2020, amounts to $40.9 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, machinery and equipment, vehicles,
drainage and water systems, infrastructure, and software. The Town’s current year acquisitions totaled $3.6
million.

Long-term debt. Atthe end of the current year, the Town had total bonded debt outstanding of $15.4 million.

Standard and Poor has established the Town of Wellfleet's credit rating at “AAA,” which is Standard and Poor’s
highest credit rating. This rating is the result of the prudent fiscal management policies the Town has and
continues to pursue.

Please refer to the Notes 4, 6 and 7 and for further discussion of capital asset and debt activity.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an interest
in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Town Accountant, Town Hall, 300 Main Street,
Wellfleet, Massachusetts 02667.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 9 Management’s Discussion and Analysis



Basic Financial Statements

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 10 Basic Financial Statements



Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020
===

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents..............c.ccciniime e cne s 14,635,163 § 1,084,992 § 15,720,155
Receivables, net of for L
Real estate and personal property taxes 749,139 - 749,139
Tax liens... . 241,900 - 241,900
Communlly preservahnn fund suﬂax 24,352 - 24,352
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes. 82,984 - 82,984
User charges..........ccovevmiimneinanenene - 8,390 8,380
Deparimental and other. 271,511 29,970 301,481
Intergovernmental........ - 1,298,073 - 1,298,073
LOBNS.... .o ieeininae et inims b r b e s s e s 105617 352230 457 847
Total current assats.. 17.408.739 1,475,682 18,884,321
NONCURRENT:
Capital assets, nondepreciable... 9,168,256 - 9,158,255
Capital assets, net of acwmulated depreqatlon 22143574 9,614,507 31,758,081
Total noncument assets..........cvcevriian csseacs s e 31,301,829 9,614,507 40,916,336
TOTAL ABSETS . uviims v ireers i snesis i cnesenren e shsans cansre s enanns 48,710,568 11.090,089 59 800,657
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions... 2,219,451 45,295 2,264,746
Deferred outflows related to other postemploymem benaﬁts 539 977 5.400 545,377
TOTAL DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES... 2759428 50,695 2,810,123
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable...........ccccvee i s i s 834,238 25,718 859,956
Accrued payrofl. 583,339 11,217 594,556
Other liabilities. 97,179 4,920 102,098
Accrued interest... 124,984 31,488 156,472
Compensated absence: 544,000 24,000 568,000
Notes payable............ . 2,461,208 + 2,461,208
Bonds payable............ooovuiiiiieiiiec e e e e 1,264,008 160,734 1424742
Total current liabilities...........coccvvveir i cnnen 5,908,956 258,077 6,167.033
NONCU RRENT:
Comp b 180,000 8,000 188,000
Net penslon liabifity... errean 13,894,542 283,562 14,178,104
Net other postemplaymem beneﬁts 8,660,360 86,604 8,746,964
Bonds payable..........cccoevveinenees 11,338,744 2636.536 13,975,280
Total noncurrent abilities. ........vuiviiieemrimecre e 34073846 3,014,702 37,088,348
TOTAL LIABILITIES... ... e e e s e e 39,982 602 3272779 43,255,381
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions........... 1,597,469 32,601 1,630,070
Deferved inflows related to other pnsterrphyment benefit 280,139 2,801 282 940
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES.... 1,877,608 35,402 1,813,010
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital 88setS................co v ieinrcininen 16,237,869 6,817,237 23,055,106
Restricted for:
Loans... 105,617 352,230 457,847
Permanent funds
EXpendable............co e 890,338 - 890,339
Nonexpendable..........c...e..e 275,120 - 275,120
G ity preservatit - " 2,160,613 - 2,160,613
Unrastricted........oocevviemiiee i i e et (10,059,772} 663,136 (9,396 636)
TOTAL NET POSITION.... 9609786 $ 7,832,603 $ 17,442,389

See notes to basic financial statements.

11

Basic Financial Statements



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Govemmental Activities:

General govemment...................ccce.e ..
Public safety........cccoovoiviiiiiiiiiins
Education.............cooeeveiiiiiiicii
Publicworks..........ccccoceveevvn e,
Health and human services.....................

Culture and recreation.........
COVID-19.

Interest.......cc.coeve i

Total Governmental Activities.................

Business-Type Activities:

Water.......coii e e
Marina........ccoeieiie e e

Total Business-Type Activities...............

Total Primary Government....................

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetfts

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Net (Expense)
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue

$ 3,467,833 $ 367,405 $ 280,340 $ 538,568 $ (2,281,520)
6,492,418 149,704 331,887 - (6,010,827)
7,892,257 34,980 820,518 - (7,036,759)
3,014,772 19,388 653,585 257,556 (2,084,243)
1,252,580 74,987 112,570 - (1,065,023)
1,866,337 900,930 57,684 - (907,723)
221,104 - 221,104 - -

410,832 - - - (410,832)
24,618,133 1,547,394 2,477,688 796,124 (19,796,927)
477,016 238,568 - - (238,448)

823,498 571,615 3,852 - (248,031)
1,300,514 810,183 3,852 - (486,479)

$ 25,918,647 $ 2,357,577 $ 2,481,540 $ 796,124 $ (20,283,406)

(Continued)
12 Basic Financial Statements



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Changes in net position:
Net (expense) revenue from previous page................c..ccce.. $ (19,796,927) $ (486,479) $ (20,283,406)
General revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds payable 17,489,068 - 17,489,068
Tax and other liens..........cc.ocoeveveciiiin i s eee e 200,266 - 200,266
Motor vehicle, other excise, hotel/motel and meals taxes.... 960,004 - 960,004
Penalties and interest on taxes.............c.ccc oo v v vevienennns 91,926 - 91,926
Grants and contributions not restricted to
SPECIfic Programs..........c..coveeee v v e e e 57,064 - 57,064
Unrestricted investmentincome..........c.ccoceeeiiin e eneen. 236,281 3,008 239,289
Transters, NOL............uveeuniie e et ere et eee e e e e (284,861) 284,861 -
Total general revenues and fransfers.............c..cocee v vev e 18,749,748 287,869 19,037,617
Change in net position.............ccccc i ievieececien e e (1,047,179) (198,610) (1,245,789)
Net position:
Beginning of year (as restated).............o.ccooeiiiiiiiiiie e 10,656,965 8,031,213 18,688,178
Endofyear..........coooo i e B 9,609,786 $ 7,832,603 $ 17,442,389
See notes to basic financial statements. {Concluded)

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 13 Basic Financial Statements



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2020

Community Major Nonmajor Total
Preservation Gifts Receipts Capital tal
General Fund and Grants Reserved Highway Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivall $ 5,513,106 § 2,155372 § 529,122 § 2,862,595 $ - $ 1234829 § 2,340,139 § 14,635,163
Recei net of llectibl
Real estate and personal property taxes.............. 749,139 5 - - - 748,139
Tax [lens. 235,839 6,081 - - - - - 241,900
Community preservation fund surtax.. - 24,352 - - - - 24,352
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.. . 82,984 - - - - - 82,984
Deg and cther... - - 72,654 - - 198,857 271,511
g - - 1,149,911 - 148,162 1,298,073
Loans......cocoemvinnniiniinens - - - - - - 105,617 105,617
TOTALASSETS.......ccooieeevevrvnenreiriseinienenne. § 8,581,068 § 2185785 § 529,122 § 2935249 3 1,149,811 § 1234829 $ 2,782,775 $ 17,408,739
——— e —— e —— e — S —— " ———— " s—————— ———
LIABILITIES
bl 608,553 $ 24,818 % 7.206 § 100 $ - $ 175428 § 18,135 § 834,238
Accrued paynol...........ccceeeeicenninenicinene 581,221 354 654 - - . 1,110 583,339
Other lablfties. .........ccoee i 52,783 - 4,697 39,699 ] . 97,179
Notes payabl . - - 1,000,000 - - 1,461,208 2,461,208
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,242,557 25,172 1,012,557 39,799 - 1,636,634 19,245 3,975,964
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
[\ 715,030 30,413 - 72,655 1,149,911 - 304,474 2,272,483
FUND BALANCES
p - - - 275,120 275,120
..... - 2,130,200 - 2,822,795 - 2,193,936 7,146,931
Commitied. 1,467,605 - - - - - 1,467,605
Assigned 26,732 - - - 26,732
Unaesigned..........c..couereiniercrmmmmenenreananinnes 3,128,144 - {483,435) - - (401,805) 2,243,904
TOTAL FUND BALANCES........coneomienninorccranennns 4,623,481 2,130,200 (483,435) 2,822,795 N {401,805) 2,469,056 11,160,282
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES.........c...... $ 6,581,068 § 2,185,785 $ 528122 § 2935249 $ 1,149,911 $ 1,234,829 § 2,792,775 $ 17,408,739

See notes to basic financlal statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts

14

Basic Financial Statements



RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020

Total governmental fund balances..............oueviiiiiiiiii e $ 11,160,292

Capital assets (net) used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported inthe funds................ccoceiiiiiimiiiiiee e 31,301,829

Accounts receivable are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are unavailable in the funds..................cooevvveiiviniennnn 2,272,483

The statement of net position includes certain deferred inflows of resources
and deferred outflows of resources that will be amortized over future periods.
In governmental funds, these amounts are not deferred...................ccoevvevieeie e, 881,820

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due...............c.cocceevnne. (124,984)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds:

Bonds payable........... (12,602,752)
Net pension liability (13,894,542)
Net other postemployment benefits (8,660,360)
Compensated AhSENCES..........c..ccoivtiiirieier e ceee e e e e e ere st e (724,000)
Net effect of reporting long-term liabilities.............c..coeeevieiiiieiiiii e (35,881,654)

Net position of governmental activities..............ccccceiiiiiiei e e $ 9,609,786

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 15 Basic Financial Statements



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 302020
=

Community Major Nonmajor Total
Preservation Gifts Receipts Capital tal G tal
General Fund and Grants Reserved Highway Projects Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
netoftaxrefunds.................... (ORI 17984844 5 - B - 8 - % -8 - 8 - § 17,984,944
Tax Liens. 61,129 61,129
Motor vehkle and other exclse taxes. 521,688 - - - - - - 521,688
Hotelimetel and meala tax. 668,121 - - - - - - 866,121
Penalties and interest on taxes.. 91,926 - - - - 91,926
g 317.046 198,130 132,858 445,102 . 60,011 1,153,148
Intergovernmental - COVID-19 relief... ... ... - - * - + 221,104 221,104
ntal - teachers 551,236 - - - - 551,236
Departmental and other. 575,069 - 270 1,872,922 - 44,567 2,492,828
Community preservation tax.. - 532,313 - - B 532,313
Contributions and donations... - - 15812 - - 61,374 77.286
Investment incoms. 18,193 36,161 3435 272 - - 16,188 74,249
Miscellaneous.... - 37514 - - 58,062 93576
TOTAL REVENUES...... ccooviiteiee et e ceereen 20,787,352 766,604 189,990 1,873,194 445,102 459,306 24,521,548
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government,, 1,773,023 313948 2,024,855 3275 ¥ 70,951 340,967 4,527,019
Public safety. 3,800,022 - 99,963 60,418 68,451 4,128,854
Education... 6,509,789 - 45,201 - 75,401 6,630,391
Public warks........ccouiinn 2,055,707 - 2.429 3,535 445,102 625,482 25,337 3,164,592
Health and human servic 787,781 - 108,946 - - 1,846 898,573
Culture and recreation. 1,380,542 - 10,765 - - 35,925 1,427,232
COVID-19, - - - - 221,104 221,104
Pension benefitB...........cooueeeveeeeecre cianens 1,238,696 - - - - - 1,238,696
Pension benefits - teachers retirement. 551,236 - - - - - 551,236
Property and liability insurance....... 311,908 - - - - - 311,909
p benefits. 1,876,682 - - - - - 1,876,682
State and county charges..... 314,770 - - - - - 314,770
Debt service:
Principal, 1,288,817 50,000 - - = - - 1,338,817
Interest............... 382473 2,900 - - - - - 385,373
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......osvetmrvievensos svesmsiosnn 22371 447 366,848 2,299,159 6,810 445,102 756,851 769,031 27,015,248
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
QVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES... .....ccovmnniomnnicaninnnae 1,584,095) 399,756 {(2,109,169) 1,866,384 - 1756851 309,725) 2,493,700)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USESY,
Transters 2,084,008 131,015 100,000 2,315,021
(307,861) {100,000) N (2,121,515) - {70,506) 12,599 882}
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)..... 1,776,145 {100,000) - (2,121,515) - 131,015 28,494 | 284,861
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES... 182,050 299,756 (2,109,169) (255,131) - (625,836) (280,231) (2,778,561)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.............c.ce... 4,431,431 1,830,444 1,625,734 3,077,926 - 224 031 2,749,287 13938 853
FUND BALANCES AT ENDOF YEAR........coocoveve e § 4623481 $ 2,130,200 $ {483,435) § 2,822,795 § - § 1401,805) § 2.469,056 $ 11,160, 2&

See notes to basic financlal statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachuseftts 16 Basic Financial Statements



RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds............

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay...........oceeeee e

Depreciation EXPENSA... ... .coiii i ittt e e e e e e e e e e e eeaes e e b ee e e een seeeeaee o

Net effect of reporting capital @ssets.............cc.oiiee e ieecei e e e

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are unavailable in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounts receivable differ between the two statements. This amount

represents the net change in unavailable reVeNUE............ .o cee e veeie e et e e e e e e e aea e

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect
on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are unavailable and amortized in the Statement of Activities.
Debt service principal PayMENnts... ... ..o vt oo vesvee e erer e vt e s e cr e re e eaeanes

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds.
Net change in compensated absences accrual...
Net change in accrued interest on long-term debt . =y
Net change in deferred outflow/(inflow) of resources reIated to pensions...
Net change in net pension liability...

Net change in deferred outﬂow/(lnﬂow) of resources related to other postemployment benef ts...
Net change in net other postemployment benefits liability... ..........oeuvrveiiiiinscer e ee e e ee s

Net effect of recording long-term liabilities.............cc.ccccevieeiii v iee i

Change in net position of governmental activities................cc.c.ovev v ciiiiicii e

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 17

$ (2,778,561)
3,652,727
(1,521,305)
2,031,422
(665,733)
1,338,817
(35,000)
(25,459)
(2,192,624)
1,744,581
(510,061)
45439
(973,124)
$ (1,047,179)

Basic Financial Statements



PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Water Marina Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:

Cash and cash equIValents. ...................cececevrerncveneecrsvecennneries $ 361,394 $ 723598 $ 1,084,992

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

User charges 8,390 . 8,390

Departmental and other.... - 29,970 29,970

LOBNS......coouiiiiiiiiiiieii e s sa e be sen e srane e 352,230 - 352,230

Total current 8s8ets...........c.cccveuniiiiricivinirereveneiennnenenne: 722,014 753,568 1,475,582
NONCURRENT:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation............ccccceeeeennns 5,992,276 3,622,231 9,614,507
TOTAL ASSETS.. . erieenciiiiser s s e reneser e s rnnseaeaseraasseanasverasansansans 6,714,290 4,375,799 11,090,089
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows related to pensions. “ 45,295 45,295

Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits.... . - 5,400 5,400
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES..........c.ccccerueene. - 50,695 50,695
LIABILITIES
CURRENT: )

Warrants payable.............cccoeveeiiiiiiieciiiiinnen e 54 25,664 25,718

Accrued payroll 655 10,562 11,217

Accrued interest 24,907 6,581 31,488

Other Liabilities. - 4,920 4,920

Compensated absences.. - 24,000 24,000

Bonds payable..............coonuiimmmeninni e e e 55,734 105,000 160,734

Total current liabilities..................coverciiinicr i 81,350 176,727 258,077
NONCURRENT:

Compensated BDSENCES.............euvuimiimunmeniiiiiner ceaareernsireenes - 8,000 8,000

Net pension liability. - 283,562 283,562

Net other postemployment benefits - 86,604 86,604

Bonds payable.............cceeiiiiiciicrrce e e en e e e e 2,051,536 585,000 2,636,536

Total noncumrent iablites. ...........c.cecveerrieiirecriercrerersresens 2,051,536 963,166 3,014,702
TOTAL LIABILITIES......c.otiiieeiieiiicrrninens s ns s snsmssvssasenavnns 2,132,886 1,139,893 3,272,779
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows related to pensions..........ccccccceeveemriniiciceninrneeenns - 32,601 32,601

Deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits.............. - 2,801 2,801
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES........cccccovveceeenennns - 35,402 35,402
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets.................cccvvvviiirnneenn. P 3,885,006 2,932,231 6,817,237
Restricted for Loans. 352,230 - 352,230
Unrestricted. 344,168 318,968 663,136
TOTAL NET POSITION.......coitiieiiimiiiiin e sscn e e $ 4,581,404 $ 3,261,199 § 7,832,603

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 18 Basic Financial Statements



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Marina Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for SeIVICRS..........cccvviviine i e cere e aee $ 238,568 571615 $ 810,183
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of services and administration...................cc.......oeeuneeee. 136,268 406,839 543,107
Salafies and Wages...........c..eeeiiereiiiieiie e rere e 20,328 213,946 234,274
Depreciation..............ceeeiiiiiiiiie e e 266,454 182,145 448,599
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.......cccoiiiiiir e, 423,050 802,930 1,225,980
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)......cccoviviirviiiiieericeeeeennenn, (184,482) (231,315) (415,797)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment iNCOMEe........c.coeeiniiiiiei e 1,484 1,524 3,008
Interest EXPENSE..........coiiiiiiiiieeee e e (53,966) (20,568) (74,534)
Intergovernmental.............cooooiiiin i e - 3,852 3,852
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.........ccoocvvviviiiiiiieeeen, (52,482) (15,192) (67,674)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS........ccccccvevereerienee (236,964) (246,507) (483,471)
TRANSFERS:
Transfers iN.......cccoooiinin e e e e 267,861 17,000 284,861
CHANGE IN NET POSITION. ......cccivieiitvee e eeenees 30,897 (229,507) (198,610)
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (as restated).............. 4,550,507 3,480,706 8,031,213
NET POSITIONATEND OF YEAR........ccveeviei e $ 4,581,404 $ 3,251,199 $ 7,832,603

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 19

Basic Financial Statements



PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Water Marina Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers and USers..........ccceeeiieiiiiiiiinnennerin e eeineneens $ 210,659 $ 571,615 § 782,274

Payments to vendors.............cccevveeieniiieneeieciienennen (136,214) (235,497) (371,711)

Payments to employees (20,259) (226,477) (246,736)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVATIES..........cocvvuiiiiiiecce e, 54,186 109,641 163,827
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

TranSfers iN.......cooveiir it e e e eresbr e er b e seemrnana e 267,861 17,000 284,861
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principal payments on bonds and NoteS.........c.ccceveivermiecririnreeiniecveennnnn. {55,036) (105,000} (160,036)

Intergovernmental FeVENUE.......c..covueuciiiiirimie i e eevre e - 3,852 3,852

INtErest EXPENSE. ... .. i trrcie s ee s e e rer e e re it rrr e enaas (54,701) (21,750) (76,451)
NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES........... (109,737) (122,898) (232,635)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

INVestMent INCOME..........ceueiuricr it ce e e e er e e 1,484 1,524 3,008
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.......cccoooeviriieeiinicininnnen, 213,794 5,267 219,061
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR...........cccccuuuee. 147,600 718,331 865,931
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR..........cccveeviimeerennienens $ 361,394 $ 723,598 $ 1,084,992
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating iNCOME (I0SS)...ccecuurerriueiierieierrie et rer e eer et s e e aean s $ (184,482) § (231,315) $ (415,797)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash from operating activities:
Depreciation.............cooo i 266,454 182,145 448,599
Deferred (outflows)/inflows related to pensions..........c...c.ocvvveiieeieennee. - 15,737 16,737
Deferred (outflows)/inflows related to other postemployment benefits...... - 5,100 5,100
Changes in assets and liabilities:
USer Charges.....ccucveruueerminiererrirerreaeeenrnesranasssrneresnerersnsserinessanes 2,591 - 2,591
LOBNS.....uiviiirerrirerierin e eeeneree e (30,500) - (30,500)
Warrants payable...............ccccoe v, 54 25,548 25,602
Accrued payroll............ccocei i 69 3,369 3,438
Other liabilities.............c.ccoveerriieiiriie e, - 4,920 4,920
Compensated abSences..........covvvvevneeeuininiinernnnnns - (21,000) (21,000)
Net pension liability..................ccooeeriiiieennen. - 125,591 125,591
Other postemployment benefits - (454) (454)
Total adjustments............coovvveircieriee e e e 238,668 340,956 579,624
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES........cccivii vt neees $ 54,186 $ 109,641 $ 163,827

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts

20

Basic Financial Statements



FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020

Other
Postemployment
Benefit
Trust Fund Agency
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents................c..cccceeeeievceeec . $ 36,084 % 460,152
Investments:
U.S. treasunies.........oovvuiii e vt e e eee e 141,143 -
Government sponsored enterprises................cccccveeviennnns 133,751 -
Corporate bonds............cooeiiiiiiiiiiic e e 250,196 -
Equity securities..........cccocuiiiiiieii 714,126 -
Equity mutual funds..................cooeiii 602,735 -
Fixed income mutual funds................cooiiiiiiiiiin .. 292,189 -
TOTAL ASSETS. .. ...t ee et eee e e enen, 2,170,224 460,152
LIABILITIES
Liabilities due depositors.........cooevveiiivieiiiiiiiiir e eeeeens - 460,152
NET POSITION
Restricted for other postemployment benefits....................... $ 2,170,224 $ -

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 21 Basic Financial Statements



FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Other
Postemployment
Benefit
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer contributions................oocoiimiciii $ 200,000
Employer contributions for other postemployment benefit payments.... 518,063
Total contributions.............ccccooiciri i 718,063
Net investment income:
Net change in fair value of investments...............cccocevvii i, 60,526
INVESIMENt INCOME.... ..ttt et e et e ee e e eeeaee s 48,447
Less: investment expense.............ccccoeeiiiiiie i e (9,455)
Net investmentincome................ooeiieevercec i 99,518
TOTAL ADDITIONS.......coiiiiiiiiii et e et e e 817,581
DEDUCTIONS:
Other postemployment benefit payments......................c.e e, 518,063
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION..........c........... 299,518
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR............coooviiiiii e, 1,870,706
NET POSITION ATEND OF YEAR........coeviiiiiiieee et e $ 2,170,224

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 22 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts (Town) have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described
herein.

A. Reporting Entity

The Town is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Selectboard.

For financial reporting purposes, the Town has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions
and institutions. The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially
accountable as well as other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Town are such that exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. It has
been determined that the Town has no component units that require inclusion in these basic financial statements.

B. Joint Ventures

A joint venture is an organization (resulting from a contractual arrangement) that is owned, operated or governed
by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants
retain an ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. Joint control means that no single
participant has the ability to unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of the joint venture.

The Town participates in two joint ventures with other municipalities, the Nauset Regional School District and the
Cape Cod Regional Technical High School. These joint ventures are designed to pool resources and share the
costs, risks and rewards of providing educational services. The 2020 assessment to the Town by the District was
$3.2 million for the Nauset Regional School District and $4 15,000 for the Cape Cod Regional Technical High
School.

The Town is indirectly liable for the Districts’ debt and other expenditures and is assessed annually for its share of
operating and capital costs.

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net position and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.
Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which are supported primarily by user fees and charges.

Fund Financial Statements
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual

governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 23 Basic Financial Statements



ic Financial Year Ended June 30, 2020

Major Fund Criteria
Maijor funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:

e Iftotal assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least
10 percent of the corresponding element (assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows or resources, etc.) for all funds of that category or type (total governmental
or total enterprise funds), and

e If the total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at
least 5 percent of the corresponding element for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

Additionally, any other governmental or enterprise fund that management believes is particularly
significant to the basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a particular function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include the following:

¢ Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

e Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular
function or segment.

o Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial

statements. Exceptions are charges between the general fund and the enterprise funds. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 24 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of
the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liguidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60 days after
year-end. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become measurable
and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those that
are required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Community Preservation fund is used to account for financial resources to purchase land for open space
conservation land under the Community Preservation Act.

The gifts and grants fund is used to account for financial resources related to intergovernmental and departmental
grants, various contributions and donations, and related investment income.

The receipts reserved fund is used to account for financial resources reserved for a specific purpose including
ambulance, Bakers field, beach, and shellfish receipts.

The highway fund is used to account for activities reimbursed through the State’s Chapter 90 highway
improvement program.

The major capital projects fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets of the governmental funds.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than permanent funds or capital projects.

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or

assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets of the governmental funds.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 25 Basic Financial Statements



ic Financial S Year Ended June 30, 2020

The permanent fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent
that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmental programs.

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The water enterprise fund is used to account for financial resources required for the construction and operation of
the Town’s water system.

The marina enterprise fund is used to account for the Town's marina activities.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the governmental programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The other postemployment benefit trust fund accumulates resources to provide funding for future OPEB (other
postemployment benefits) liabilities.

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity.

E. Cash and Investments

Govermment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments are carried at fair value.

F. Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of
accounting. The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds
financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 26 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1% of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessors for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes
are due on November 1% and May 1% and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by the
respective due date. Real estate and personal property taxes levied are recorded as receivables in the year of
the levy.

Real estate tax liens are processed by the fourth quarter of every year on delinquent properties and are recorded
as receivables in the year they are processed.

Real estate receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100% coliectible. Accordingly,
an allowance for uncollectibles is not reported.

Personal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated
based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Motor Vehicle and Other Excise

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered and are recorded as receivables in
the year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles registered and the
fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of
value.

The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.
Community Preservation

Community Preservation surcharges are billed with the real estate and personal property tax levy and are 3% of
the total real estate tax bill. These surcharges are due on November 15t and May 1% and are subject to penalties

and interest if they are not paid by the respective due date. The surcharges are recorded as receivables in the
year of the levy.

Community Preservation surcharge liens are processed by the fourth quarter of every year on delinquent
properties and are recorded as receivables in the year they are processed.

The Community Preservation receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100%
collectible. Accordingly, an allowance for uncollectibles is not reported.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables consist primarily of parking tickets and ambulance charges receivable and
are recorded as receivables in the year accrued. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated based on historical
trends and specific account analysis.

Intergovernmental

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For
non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the

provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying
expenditures are incurred and all other grant requirements are met.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 27 Basic Financial Statements



asic Fi ial Year Ended June 30, 2020

These receivables are considered 100% collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.
Loans

The Town administers septic loans to qualifying residents in relation to septic system repairs. Upon issuance, a
receivable is recorded for the principal amount of the loan.

The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.
G. Inventories
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
government-wide and fund financial statements, and therefore are not reported.

H. Capital Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, building
improvements, machinery and equipment, vehicles, drainage and water systems, infrastructure (e.g., roads, water
mains, sewer mains, and similar items), and software, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activity column of the government-wide financial statements, and the proprietary fund financial statements.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or at estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not
available. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Except
for the capital assets of the governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements,
construction period interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of $5,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction,
respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

Capital assets (excluding land) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives of capital
assets are as follows:

Estimated

Useful Life
Capital Asset Type {(in years)
Land improvements............ccocei v iie i 5-50
Buildings and facilities................cccee v, 5-50
Building improvements..............ccccov e ieiieni e 5-50
Machinery and equipment.............c.cccoieiiinnns 3-20
Vehicles.......ccooo e 5
Drainage and water systems.............ccccoeeeieniiinnnnn 20-40
Infrastructure..........c.oooeiei i 10 - 50
Software..........cccoe i 3

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 28 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statementis Year Ended June 30, 2020

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the year of the purchase.

|. Deferred Outfiows/Inflows of Resources

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The Town reports deferred outflows related to pensions and other
postemployment benefits in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The Town reports deferred outflows related to pensions and other postemployment
benefits in this category.

Govemmental Fund Financial Statements

In addition to liabilities, the governmental funds balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents assets that have been recorded in the governmental fund financial statements but the revenue is not
available and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until it becomes available. The Town
has recorded unavailable revenue as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds balance sheet.
Unavailable revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide (full accrual) financial
statements.

J. Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported
in the statement of net position as “internal balances”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these fransactions are classified as “Due from other funds”
or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

K. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds. These
transactions are reported as transfers in and transfers out.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 29 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported
in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net’.

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

L. Net position and Fund Equity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net position)

Net position is reported as restricted when amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net position has been “restricted for” the following:
“Loans” represents the Town’s septic loan program’s outstanding loans receivable balance.

“Permanent funds - expendable” represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are restricted by
various trust agreements.

‘Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may be
expended.

“Community preservation” represents amounts restricted for the purpose of ongoing community preservation
activities.

“Gifts and grants” represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net position and
unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town's policy to
consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned
based on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent.

The governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:

‘Nonspendable” fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

“Restricted” fund balance includes amounts subject to constraints placed on the use of resources that are either

externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or that are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 30 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

“Committed” fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. Town meeting is the
highest level of decision making authority for the government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the
end of the year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place
until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.

“Assigned” fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the Town'’s intent to be used for specific
purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. The Selectboard has by resolution authorized the Town
Accountant to assign fund balance. The Board may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund
balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's budget. Unlike
commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not
normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment.

“Unassigned” fund balance includes the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes within the general fund.

The Town’s spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be allocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the
order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one
purpose.

M. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Barnstable
County Retirement Association (BCRA) and additions to/deductions from the Association’s fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the BCRA. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

N. Long-term Debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statement of net position.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond premiums are reported as
other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.

Q. Investment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 31 Basic Financial Statements



es ic Financi Year Ended June 30, 2020

P. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Govermnment-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities.

Q. Fund Deficits

Several individual fund deficits exist at June 30, 2020, within the major capital projects fund and the gifts and
grants funds. These deficits will be funded through grants and other available funds.

R. Use of Estimates

Govermment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

S. Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in this
column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

T. Fair Value Measurements

The Town reports required types of financial instruments in accordance with the fair value standards. These
standards require an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs (such as quoted prices in active markets)
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs (such as appraisals or valuation techniques) to determine fair value.
Fair value standards also require the government to classify these financial instruments into a three-level
hierarchy, based on the priority of inputs to the valuation technique or in accordance with net asset value practical
expedient rules, which allow for either Level 2 or Level 3 depending on lock up and notice periods associated with
the underlying funds.

Instruments measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 32 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Level 1 — Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical instruments as of the reporting date.
Instruments, which are generally included in this category, include actively traded equity and debt securities, U.S.
government obligations, and mutual funds with quoted market prices in active markets.

Level 2 — Pricing inputs are other than quoted in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable
as of the reporting date, and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies.
Certain fixed income securities, primarily corporate bonds, are classified as Level 2 because fair values are
estimated using pricing models, matrix pricing, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs are unobservable for the instrument and include situations where there is little, if any,
market activity for the instrument. The inputs into the determination of fair value require significant management
judgment or estimation.

In some instances, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy
and is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Market price is affected by a number of factors, including the type of instrument and the characteristics specific to
the instrument. Instruments with readily available active quoted prices generally will have a higher degree of
market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. It is reasonably possible
that change in values of these instruments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially
affect amounts reported in these financial statements. For more information on the fair value of the Town's
financial instruments, see Note 2 — Cash and Investments.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities,
certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank deposits and the State Treasurer's
Investment Pool. In addition, there are various restrictions limiting the amount and length of deposits and
investments.

It is the Town'’s policy to invest public funds in a manner which will provide the maximum security with the highest
investment return while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the Town. The Town follows the policies
established under Massachusetts General Laws. The Commonwealth’s statutes authorize the investment in
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements,
money market accounts, bank deposits and the State Treasurer's Investment Pool (Pool).

The Town maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type’s portion of
this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as “Cash and Cash Equivalents”. The deposits and
investments of the Trust Funds are held separately from those of other Town funds.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be
returned to it. The Town's deposit and investment policy allows for unlimited investments in MMDT, U.S.
Treasuries and Agencies that will be held to maturity with maturities up to one year from the date of purchase,
and bank accounts and Certificates of Deposit with maturities up to one year which are fully collateralized or fully
insured. At year-end, the carrying amount of deposits totaled $16,180,307 and the bank balance totaled
$16,236,569. Of the bank balance, $1,000,000 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance, $14,561,352 was
covered by the Depositors Insurance Fund, and $675,217 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 33 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

As of June 30, 2020, the Town had the following investments and maturities:

Maturities
Investment Type Fair value Under 1 Year 1-5 Years 6-10 Years
Debt securities:
U.S. treasury notes......................... § 141,143 $ - $ 83,920 $ 57,223
Government sponsored enterprises.... 133,751 - 106,843 26,908
Corporate bonds.........cccccoeeieeeeeeeeenns 250,196 30,198 194,117 25,881
Total debt securities..............c........... 525,090 $ 30,198 $ 384,880 $ 110,012

Other investments:

Equity securities............ccoeeeeeel 714,126
Equity mutual funds........................ 602,735
Fixed income..........ccceevevieeeeeeennnns 292,189
Money market mutual funds.............. 36,084
Total investments...............c...ceeveeneen. $ 2,170,224

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the Town will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of an outside party. The Town
has custodial credit risk exposure of $525,090 because the U.S. treasury notes, government sponsored
enterprise securities and corporate bonds are uninsured, unregistered and held by the counterparty.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer. Quality ratings for the debt
securities are as follows:

Gowernment

Sponsored Corporate
Quality Rating Enterprises Bonds
AA+................ $ 133,751 $ -
AA.........oo.. - 26,367
AA-. ..o, - 57,892
At i, - 25,877
A, - 31,119
Acriiciiireeae - 26,532
BBB+.............. - 56,528
BBB............... - 25,881
Total............... $ 133,751 $ 250,196

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Town places no limit on the amount the government may invest in any one issuer. As of June 30, 2020, the
Town'’s investment in equity investments did not exceed 5% of the total investment for any one issuer.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 34 Basic Financial Statements



ic Financi Year Ended June 30, 2020

Fair Value of Investments

The Town holds investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Because investing is not a core
part of the Town'’s mission, the Town determines that the disclosures related to these investments only need to be
disaggregated by major type. The Town chooses a tabular format for disclosing the levels within the fair value
hierarchy.

The following table presents financial assets at June 30, 2020, that the Town measures fair value on a recurring
basis, by level, within the fair value hierarchy:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
June 30, Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
Investment Type 2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments measured at fair value:
Debt securities:
U.S. treasury notes............... .. 8§ 141,143 $ 141,143 $ - $ -
Government sponsored enterprises. 133,751 133,751 - -
Corporate bonds 250,196 - 250,196 -
Total debt securities................cccoveeen. 525,090 274,894 250,196
Other investments:
Equity securities................cccoeveinennne 714,126 714,126 - -
Equity mutual funds... 602,735 602,735 -
Fixed income..................... 292,189 292,189 -
Money market mutual funds................. 36,084 36,084 - -
Total other investments.............cc....c..... 1,645,134 1,645,134 - -
Total investments measured at fair value...... $ 2,170,224 § 1,920,028 $ 250,196 $ -

U.S. treasury notes, government sponsored enterprises, equity securities, equity mutual funds, fixed income, and
money market mutual funds, classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in
active markets for those securities. Corporate bonds classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to
benchmark quoted prices.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 35 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020
NOTE 3 -~ RECEIVABLES

At June 30, 2020, receivables for the individual major and non-major governmental funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Aliowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:

Real estate and personal property taxes....... $ 749,139 $ - $ 749,139
Tax liens.........coiev v i e e 241,900 - 241,900
Community preservation fund surtax............ 24,352 - 24,352
Motor wehicle and other excise taxes........... 82,984 - 82,984
Departmental and other.............coooevevennnn .l 271,511 - 271,511
Intergovemmental..................................... 1,298,073 - 1,298,073
LOANS.... ..t e s 105,617 - 105,617
Total....cocciirei il $ 2,773,576 $ - 8 2,773,576

At June 30, 2020, receivables for the water and marina enterprise funds consist of the following:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:

Water user charges..................c.ccouue..... $ 8,390 $ - $ 8,390
Waterloans............cccoovviviivinincenceiiinnns 352,230 - 352,230
Marina departmental and other................ 29,970 - 29,970
Total....cooooeee $ 390,590 $ - % 390,590

Governmental funds report deferred inflows of resources in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current year, the various
components of deferred inflows of resources reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Other
General Land Town Gowemmental
Fund Acquisition Highway Rewohing Funds Total
Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes......... $ 396,141 $ - $ - 8 - $ - $§ 396,208
TaxX eNS.......ccceviiiriiiiii e ee e 235,839 6,061 - - - 241,900
Community preservation fund surtax...... - 24,352 - - - 24,352
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes..... 83,050 - - - 82,084
Departmental and other....................... - - - 72,655 198,857 271,511
Intergovemmental...........c..cooeeeiireeiiiee e, - - 1,149,911 - - 1,149,911
LOBNS... ..o cciree e e e - - - - 105,617 105,617
Tt .. $ 715,030 $ 30413 $ 1140911 $ 72655 $ 304,474 $ 2,272,483

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 36 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land... PR 7,168,255 § 2,000,000 $ $ 9,158,255
Constmchon in progress 5,404,337 - (5,404,337) -
Total capital assets not being depreciated.... 12,562,592 2,000,000 (5,404,337) 9,158,255
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements.............cc e cee e i nicenen, 1,021,942 77,145 - 1,099,087
Buildings... . 19,218,736 - - 19,218,736
Buildings and lmpro\ements 1,056,537 5,580,195 - 6,636,732
Machinery and equipment... 5,352,680 557,756 (370,868) 5,539,568
Vehicles... 1,481,646 309,193 (28,986) 1,761,853
Drainage and water systems 836,153 - - 836,153
Infrastructure... 5,009,914 432,775 - 5,442,689
Soﬂware 84,620 - - 84,620
Total capital assets being depreciated......... 34,062,228 6,957,064 (399,854) 40,619,438
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements.........cc.coe v iec e (430,075) (62,771) - (482,846)
Buildings... . (8,528,142) (457,008) - (8,985,150)
Buildings and |mprovements (439,860) (198,770) - (638,630)
Machinery and equipment... (3,735,492) (450,858) 370,868 (3.815,482)
Vehicles... . . (908,090) (205,767) 28,986 (1,084,871)
Drainage and water systems (153,837) (17,618) - (171,455)
Infrastructure... (3,115,112) (131,316) - (3.246,428)
Soﬂvmre (43,805) (7,197) - (51,002)
Total accumulated depreciation.................. {17,354,413) (1,521,305) 399,854 (18,475,864)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net............ 16,707,815 5,435,759 - 22,143,574
Total governmental activities capital assets, net..... $ 29,270,407 § 7,435,759 § (5,404,337) $ 31,301,829
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Water:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure..........cccooveveeeueeeies e e, $ 8,692,875 $ - 3 - $ 8,592,875
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure...............ccoeeeminiiiee e, (2,334,145) (266,454) - (2,600,599)
Total water activities capital assets, net................ $ 6,258,730 $  (266,454) $ - 8 5,992,276
Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 37 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Marina Enterprise Activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements..............c.cevvieeeererenenneenn, $ 6,679,095 $ - 8 - $ 6,679,095
Buildings..........coeviiiiciiiec e, 114,201 - - 114,201
Machinery and equipment................c...c...c.... 105,657 - - 105,657
Total capital assets being depreciated......... 6,898,953 - - 6,898,953
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements.............cccceeeveveneeeienniennen, (2,912,350) (174,962) - (3,087,312)
Buildings........ccoovveimiiiiiicie e, (87,759) (4,305) - (92,064)
Machinery and equipment................cocceereenennn (94,468) (2,878) - (97,346)
Total accumulated depreciation.................. (3,094,577) (182,145) - (3,276,722)
Total marina activities capital assets, net.............. $ 3,804,376 $§ (182,145) $ - $ 3,622,231

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General govemmMENt.............ooiiiiiiiin i e e $ 121,039
Public safety........cocoiviiiiiiii e 686,217
Education.........cc.cooiiiiii e e e 145,980
PUBKIC WOIKS.........ceieiii e et e re e e e 447,882
Health and human Semices..............ccovveeiiiiiiiie e e e 52,770
Culture and recreation...............oooeve e ceiince e e vnnee 67,417
Total depreciation expense - govemmental activities...................... $ 1,521,305

L 1= TR $ 266,454
[ F- 1 - T TR 182,145
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities..................... $ 448,599

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 38 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 5 ~ INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In:

Nonmajor Water Marina
General Capital govemmental Enterprise Enterprise

Transfers Out: fund Projects funds fund fund Total
Generalfund.............c.cccvvveceeee. $ - 8 40,000 $ - $ 267,861 $ - 8 307,861 (1)
Community Preservation fund.......... - - 100,000 - - 100,000 (2)
Receipts resened funds................ 2,013,500 91,015 - - 17,000 2,121,515 (3)
Nonmajor governmental funds........ 70,506 - - - - 70,506 (4)
Total..........c.ciiiiiiiiiiiiiicn . 2,084,006 $ 131,015 $ 100,000 $ 267,861 $ 17,000 $ 2,599,882

1) Represents budgeted transfers from the general fund to the water enterprise fund and capital projects
fund.

2) Represents a transfer from the Community Preservation fund to the expendable trust funds.

3) Represents budgeted transfers from receipts reserved funds for the general fund operating budget and
transfers from the revolving funds to the major capital project fund.

4) Represents transfers from nonmajor governmental funds for the general fund operating budget.

NOTE 6 — SHORT-TERM FINANCING

Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

» Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax anticipation
notes (RANS or TANS).

» Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing through
issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes (GANS).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise fund,
respectively.

Details related to the short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Balance at Balance at
Rate June 30, Renewed/ Retired/ June 30,
Type Purpose (%) Due Date 2019 Issued Redeemed 2020
Governmental Funds:

BAN Municipal Purpose.... 2.30% 05/29/20 $ 40,000 $ - % (40,000) $ -
BAN Municipal Purpose.... 1.63% 09/18/20 - 1,220,000 - 1,220,000
BAN Municipal Purpose.... 1.64% 09/18/20 - 1,241,208 - 1,241,208
Total Govemmental Funds................c.occceeveenee. $ 40,000 § 2,461,208 $  (40,000) $ 2,461,208

On the scheduled due date of September 18, 2020, the Town renewed the $2,461,208 BANSs at an interest rate of
0.58% due on September 17, 2021.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 39 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Under the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 10, Municipal Law authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of the
equalized valuation. Debt issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being "inside the
debt limit". In addition, however, debt may be authorized in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt,
when issued, is designated as being "outside the debt limit". Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at
June 30, 2020, and the debt service requirements are reported on the following page.

Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule — Governmental Funds

Original Interest Ouistanding

Maturities Loan Rate atJune 30,
Project Through Amount (%) 2020
General Obligation Bonds:
Refunding Debt of 2014............................ 2028 $§ 6,500,000 2.00-3.00 $ 4,085,000
General Obligation bonds...................c...... 2031 2,489,756 173 1,515,000
General Obligation bonds...............c...c...... 2042 7,476,000 2.05-4.00 6,560,000
Subtotal General Obligation Bonds... 12,160,000
Direct Borrowings and Placements:
MCWT Municipal Water System................ 2024 881,090 0.00 225,000
MCWT Pool Program.............c.cccevevineeene., 2026 200,000 458 60,000
MCWT - Series 18 - CW-10-11........cccccvveen. 2035 200,000 2.00 157,752
Subtotal Direct Borrowings and placements... 442,752
Total Bonds Payable, net.............ccccccoiiiiiiiiiini it § 12,602,752

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 40 Basic Financial Statements



Basic

cial

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for Governmental bonds payable in future years are as

follows:
General Obligation Bonds Direct Borrowings and Placements
Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Total
2021....c.eeee. 1,190,000 $ 343766 $ 1,533,766 $ 74,008 $ 11,314 § 85322 $ 1,619,088
2022... 1,105,000 307,818 1,412,818 74,204 8,555 82,759 1,495,577
2023... 1,045,000 273,968 1,318,968 74,404 5,605 80,000 1,398,977
2024... v 985,000 241,968 1,226,968 79,600 2,602 82,211 1,309,179
2025.............. 975,000 210,943 1,185,943 19,817 2,410 22,227 1,208,170
2026.............. 910,000 183,968 1,093,968 20,031 2,214 22,245 1,116,213
2027... 770,000 162,191 932,191 10,249 2,014 12,263 944,454
2028 695,000 143,643 838,643 10,472 1,808 12,280 850,923
2028 . 420,000 130,968 550,968 10,699 1,600 12,299 563,267
2030.............. 410,000 121,848 531,848 10,932 1,386 12,318 544,166
2031.....cueu.nen. 410,000 112,530 522 530 11,169 1,166 12,335 534,865
2032... . 295,000 101,038 396,038 11,412 944 12,356 408,394
2033.............. 295,000 92,188 387,188 11,660 714 12,374 399,562
2034...... ... 295,000 83,338 378,338 11,914 482 12,396 390,734
2035... 295,000 74,488 369,488 12,172 244 12,416 381,904
2036... 295,000 65,638 360,638 - - - 360,638
2037... . 295,000 56,787 351,787 - - - 351,787
2038.............. 205,000 47,936 342,936 - - - 342,936
2039.......0coun.. 205,000 38,350 333,350 - - - 333,350
2040... . 205,000 28,762 323,762 - - - 323,762
2041.............. 295,000 19,174 314,174 - - - 314,174
2042.............. 295,000 9,588 304,588 - - - 304,588
Total.............. $ 12,160,000 $ 2,850,808 $ 15,010,808 $ 442,752 $ 43,058 $ 485,810 $ 15,495,708
Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule — Enterprise Funds
Original Interest Outstanding
Maturities Loan Rate at June 30,
Project Through Amount (%) 2020
Refunding Debt of 2014........................... 2027 % 940,000 2.00-3.00 $ 690,000
Water Well, Storage & Mains (USDA)........ 2049 1,500,000 2.38 1,235,480
Water Expansion - Loan 2 (USDA)............. 2054 1,000,000 275 871,790
Total Bonds Payable, Net.............ccoeoiiie i et et e B 2,797,270
e

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 41 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for Enterprise bonds payable in future years are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2021....eeuneees $ 160,734 $ 72,430 $ 233,164
2022.............. 156,448 67,936 224,384
2023.............. 157,180 63,499 220,679
2024.............. 157,929 59,045 216,974
2025.............. 153,696 54,649 208,345
2026.............. 154,481 50,308 204,789
2027.............. 165,284 45,949 201,233
2028.............. 61,107 42,997 104,104
2029.............. 61,950 41,450 103,400
2030.............. 62,812 39,883 102,695
2031.............. 63,695 38,295 101,990
2032.............. 64,598 36,685 101,283
2033.............. 65,524 35,056 100,580
2034.............. 66,471 33,404 99,875
2035.............. 67,441 31,729 99,170
2036.............. 68,433 30,032 98,465
2037.............. 69,449 28,311 97,760
2038.............. 70,490 26,566 97,056
2039.............. 71,555 24,795 96,350
2040.............. 72,645 23,000 95,645
2041.............. 73,762 21,179 94,941
2042.............. 74,905 19,331 94,236
2043.............. 76,075 17,456 93,531
2044.............. 77,272 15,554 92,826
2045.............. 78,499 13,623 92,122
2046.............. 79,754 11,662 91,416
2047.............. 81,039 9,672 90,711
2048.............. 82,355 7,652 90,007
2049.............. 83,515 5,600 89,115
2050.............. 25,642 3,525 29,167
2051.............. 25,642 2,820 28,462
2052.............. 25,642 2,114 27,756
2053.............. 25,642 1,409 27,051
2054.............. 25,604 704 26,308
Total.............. $ 2797270 $ 978,320 $ 3,775,590

The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At June 30, 2020, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

Paving South Wellfleet Lot.............cocoviiiiiiiiiiiiciiie e $ 6,948
Elementary SChool ROOf......... oo e eee 338,909
HVAC Town Hall FUMACce..........cvvviievieiiieeiee eetee e eeecee eeeean e 75,000
Harbor Dredging. ... . ...ccc oo i i cre e e et e e e aes 7,662,000
Police Station Construction.............ccoocii i 540,000
Land ACQUISIEION. .. .......cr it i e e e et e v rerses s er e re e een 1,000,000
Total .. e e e B 9,522,857

Changes in Long-term Liabilities

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 42 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Bonds and Bonds and

Beginning Notes Notes Other Other Ending Due Within
Balance Issued Redeemed Inc De Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds.................$ 13,430,000 $ - $ (1,270,000) $ -8 - $ 12,160,000 $ 1,190,000
Direct borrowings and placements..... 511,569 - (68,817) - - 442,752 74,008
Total bonds payable..................... 13,941,569 - (1,338,817) - - 12,602,752 1,264,008
Compensated absences 689,000 - - 724,000 (689,000) 724,000 544,000
Net pension liability................c.oo... 15,639,123 - - 55,745 (1,800,326) 13,894,542 -
Net other postemployment benefits... 8,705,789 - - 1,175,575 (1,221,014) 8,660,360 -
Total governmental activity
long-term liabilities (as restated)....$ 38,975,491 $ - $ (1,338,817) 8 1,955,320 $ (3,710,340) $ 35,881,654 $ 1,808,008
Business-Type Activities:
General obligation bonds................. $ 2,957,306 $ - $ (160,036) $ - $ - § 2,797,270 $ 160,734
Compensated absences.................. 53,000 - - 32,000 (53,000) 32,000 24,000
Net pension liability........................ 157,971 - - 162,332 (36,741) 283,562 -
Net other postemployment benefits... 87,058 - - 11,756 (12,210) 86,604
Total business-type activity
long-term Kabilities (as restated).... $ 3,255,335 $ - § (160,036) $ 206,088 $ (101,951) $ 3,199,436 $ 184,734

NOTE 8 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS
The Town classifies fund balance according to constraints imposed on the use of those resources.

There are two major types of fund balance, which are nonspendable and spendable. Nonspendable fund
balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted to cash or they are
legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid items, inventories,
and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The Town has reported principal portion of endowment funds are
nonspendable.

in addition to the nonspendable fund balance, GASB 54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances,
based on a hierarchy of spending constraints.

» Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation.

» Committed: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level
of decision making authority.

» Assigned: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government to be used for a
particular purpose.

» Unassigned: fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particular purpose and the
deficit fund balances for other funds that would otherwise be restricted, committed or assigned.

Massachusetts General Law Ch.40 §5B allows for the establishment of Stabilization funds for one or more
different purposes. The creation of a fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body and must clearly
define the purpose of the fund. Any change to the purpose of the fund along with any additions to or
appropriations from the fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body. Additions to the fund may be made
by a majority vote of the legislative body. At year end the balance of the General Stabilization Funds is $962,000
and is reported as unassigned fund balance within the General fund.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 43 Basic Financial Statements



ial Stateme Year Ended June 30, 2020

The Town has classified its fund balances with the following hierarchy:

Nonmajor Total
Community Gifts Receipts Capital Govemmental Govemmental
General Presenation and Grants Reserved Projects Funds Funds
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund prncipal.........c...cccvereerieianns $ - 8 - 8§ - % - 8 - % 275,120 $ 275,120
Restricted for:
Community presenation 2,130,200 - - - - 2,130,200
School lunch............... - - - - - 65,047 65,047
Other special MBVBNUL.............c.eeeseerrrecnrerrnen - - - - - 569,686 569,686
Receipts resened funds..... - - - 2,822,795 - - 2,822,795
Municipal buildings... - - - - - 626,464 626,464
Town s(nrmwatedwastewater remediatlon. - - - - - 42,400 42,400
Expendable trust funds... - - - - - 890,339 890,339
Committed to:
Articles and continuing appropriations:
General govomment.............cccecverneniinarannn 336,345 - - - - - 336,345
Public sefety........... 329,562 - - - - - 329,562
Public works............... 777114 - - - - - 777114
Culture and recreation. 24,584 - - - - - 24,584
Assigned to:
Encumbrances:
Education. 26,732 - - - - - 26,732
Unassigned....... 3,129,144 - (483,435) - (401,805) - 2,243,904
Total Fund Balances.............cccccceviciiicinnce . § 4,623,481 § 2,130,200 § (483,435) $§ 2,822,795 § (401,805) § 2,489,056 $ 11,160,292
NOTE 9 - RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets: errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. The Town participates in
a premium-based health care plan for its active employees. The amount of claim settiements has not exceeded
insurance coverage in any of the previous three years.

The Town also participates in a premium-based workers’ compensation insurance plan for its employees, except
for police officers and firefighters for which the Town is self-insured. The Town’s incurred but not reported claims
for workers' compensation are not material at June 30, 2020, and therefore are not reported.

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLAN
Plan Descriptions

The Town is a member of the Bamstable County Retirement Association (the “Association®), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible employees of the 50 member units. The
Association is administered by five board members (Board) on behalf of all current employees and retirees except
for current teachers and retired teachers. Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions of the plan. The Association issues a publicly available financial report in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). That report may be obtained
by contacting the Association located at 750 Attucks Lane, Hyannis, Massachusetts, 02601.

The Town is a member of the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS), a cost-sharing muiti-
employer defined benefit plan. MTRS is managed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (Commonwealth) on
behalf of municipal teachers and municipal teacher retirees. The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor
and is responsible for 100% of the contributions and future benefit requirements of the MTRS. The MTRS covers
certified teachers in cities (except Boston), towns, regional school districts, charter schools, educational
collaboratives and Quincy College. The MTRS is part of the Commonwealth's reporting entity and the audited
financial report may be obtained by visiting http://www.mass.gov/osc/publications-and-reports/financial-reports/.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 44 Basic Financial Statements



Basic Fi i Year Ended June 30, 2020

Special Funding Situation

The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make 100% of all actuarially
determined employer contributions on behalf of the Town to the MTRS. Therefore, the Town is considered to be
in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions and the Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor in MTRS. Since the Town does not contribute
directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. The total of the Commonwealth provided
contributions have been allocated based on each employer’s covered payroll to the total covered payroll of
employers in MTRS as of the measurement date of June 30, 2019. The Town's portion of the collective pension
expense, contributed by the Commonwealth, of $551,236 is reported in the general fund as intergovernmental
revenue and employee benefits and other fixed charges in the current fiscal year. The portion of the
Commonwealth’s collective net pension liability associated with the Town is $4,545,627 as of the measurement
date.

Benefits Provided

Both the Association and System provide retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Massachusetts Contributory Retirement System benefits are, with certain minor exceptions,
uniform from system to system. They provide for retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a
member's highest three-year average annual rate of regular compensation. For persons who became members
on or after April 2, 2012, average salary is the average annual rate of regular compensation received during the
five consecutive years that produce the highest average, or, if greater, during the last five years (whether or not
consecutive) preceding retirement. Benefit payments are based upon a member's age, length of creditable
service, level of compensation, and group classification. Members become vested after ten years of creditable
service.

Employees who resign from service and who are not eligible to receive a retirement allowance or are under the
age of 55 are entitled to request a refund of their accumulated total deductions. Survivor benefits are extended to
eligible beneficiaries of members whose death occurs prior to or following retirement.

Cost-of-living adjustments granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the
Commonwealth’s state law during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the
pension fund. Cost-of-living adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Board and are borne by the
System.

Contributions

Chapter 32 of the MGL governs the contributions of plan members and member units. Active plan members are
required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 9% of gross regular compensation with an
additional 2% contribution required for compensation exceeding $30,000. The percentage rate is keyed to the
date upon which an employee's membership commences. The member units are required to pay into the
Association a legislatively mandated actuarial determined contribution that is apportioned among the employers
based on active current payroll. The Town’s proportionate share of the required contribution and its actual
contribution for the year ended December 31, 2019, was $1,242,517 and $1,247,696, respectively, which was
21.36% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with plan member
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 45 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Pension Liabilities

At June 30, 2020, the Town reported a liability of $14,178,104 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2019, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2020. Accordingly,
update procedures were used to roll back the total pension liability to the measurement date. The Town’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Town's long-term share of contributions to
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. At
December 31, 2019, the Town's proportion was 1.887%, which decreased from its proportion measured at
December 31, 2018, of 1.999%.

Pension Expense
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town recognized a pension expense of $1,837,067. At June 30, 2020, the
Town reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions of $2,264,746 and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions of $1,630,070.

The balances of deferred outflows and inflows at June 30, 2020, consist of the following:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflows of Inflows of
Deferred Category Resources Resources Total
Differences between expected and actual experience................ $ - % (119,509) % (119,509)
Difference between projected and actual earnings, net............... - (847,304) (847,304)
Changes in assumptions...........coeeveevivie i e, 1,648,302 - 1,648,302
Changes in proportion and proportionate share of contributions. .. 616,444 (663,257) (46,813)
Total deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources................ccceeeee. $ 2,264,746 $ (1,630,070) $ 634,676

The deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2027 .. s $ 218,539
2022...... e 231,820
2023, . e 414,014
20240t e, (248,846)
2025, ... 19,149
Total....ccecee e s $ 634,676

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the January 1, 2020, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement that was updated to December 31, 2019;

Valuation date.............cceeriiieneeinennceennns January 1, 2020

Actuarial cost method.................c.....cc. Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method.
Projected salary increases..................... 3.25%

Investment rate of retum........................ 7.15% (previously, 7.375%)

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 46 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Cost of living adjustments...................... 3% of the first $18,000 of retirement income

Mortality rates...................c....uenvveee.... Pre-Retirement: The RP-2014 Blue Collar
Employee Mortality Table projected
generationally with Scale MP-2017
Health Retiree: The RP-2014 Blue Collar Health
Annuitant Mortality Table projected
generationally with Scale MP-2017
Disabled Retiree: The RP-2014 Blue Collar
Health Annuitant Mortality Table set forward
one year and projected generationally with
Scale MP-2017

Investment Policy

The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established by PRIT. Plan assets are
managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of achieving a fully funded status for the benefits
provided through the pension plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target
asset allocation as of January 1, 2020, are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Asset Allocation Real Rate of Retum
Domestic equity......................co.oo.... 21.00% 6.15%
International developed markets equity.. 13.00% 6.78%
International emerging markets equity... 5.00% 8.65%
Core fixed income.............c.cccoeeeeeenn . 15.00% 1.11%
High-yield fixed income...................... 8.00% 3.51%
Real estate.............c.ceeeveiiin . 10.00% 4.33%
Commodities................occeeeiieenn s, 4.00% 4.13%
Hedge fund, GTAA, Risk parity............ 11.00% 3.19%
Private equity..........c....ccccoervveennnnns 13.00% 9.99%
Total.....oee e 100.00%

Rate of Return

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments,
net of pension plan investment expense, was 16.09%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and

that contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 47 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended Jupe 30, 2020

assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15%, as well as what the

net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.15%) or
1-percentage-point higher (8.15%) than the current rate:

Cument
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
The Town's proportionate share of the
net pension liability.......................... 3 18,644,929 $ 14,178,104 $ 10,425,457

Changes in Assumptions

The net investment return assumption was lowered from 7.375% to 7.15%, and the administrative expense
assumption of the Association was changed from $1,500,000 to $1,850,000.

Changes in Plan Provisions

None.

NOTE 11 — POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description — The Town of Wellfleet administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (Plan).
The Plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the Town’s group
health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Chapter 32B of the MGL assigns authority
to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Benefit provisions are negotiated between the Town and
the unions representing Town employees and are renegotiated each bargaining period. The Retiree Health Plan
does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Funding Policy — The contribution requirements of plan members and the Town are established and may be
amended by the Town. The “required” contribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. The
Town contributes 75% of the cost of current-year premiums for eligible retired plan members and their spouses.
Plan members receiving benefits contribute the remaining 25% of their premium costs. For 2020, the Town's
contribution to the plan totaled $718,063.

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts passed special legislation that has allowed the Town’s to establish a
postemployment benefit trust fund and to enable the Town to begin pre-funding its OPEB liabilities. The Trust is
managed by a 5 member Board of Trustees who are authorized to manage the Trust in accordance with the Trust
Agreement.

During 2020, the Town pre-funded future OPEB liabilities by contributing $200,000 the Other Postemployment

Benefit Fund in excess of the pay-as-you-go required contribution. These funds are reported within the Fiduciary
Funds financial statements. As of June 30, 2020, the balance of this fund totaled $2,170,224.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 48 Basic Financial Statements



asic

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms — The following table represents the Plan's membership at June 30, 2018;

Active members..........c..cco i e 98
Inactive members currently receiving benefits............... 97
Total......coo e e 195

Components of OPEB Liability -~ The following table represents the components of the Plan’s OPEB liability as of

June 30, 2020:

Total OPEB liability....
Less: OPEB plan's fiduciary net position.........

Net OPEB liability......

The OPEB plan's fiduciary net position

as a percentage of the total OPEB liability.....

................................. $ 10,917,188
(2,170,224)

................................. $ 8,746,964
19.88%

Significant Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018, actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,
unless otherwise specified, that was updated to June 30, 2020, to be in accordance with GASB Statement #74:

Valuationdate..................cooceevnnennnnnn.

Actuarial cost method...........................

Inflation........c.oovvvveiiie e

Salary increases.......cc.coveevvevieiiiieiiennne.

Investment rate of retum..............c.c.......

Mortality rates..........ceeevvieeieiiiiniiens

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts

June 30, 2018
Entry Age Normal- Level Percentage of Payroll

3.25%

Senvice-related increases for Group 1 (excluding teachers) and
Group 2 employees: 6.0% decreasing over 11 years to an
ultimate leve!l of 4.0%. Senice-related increased for Group 4
employees: 7.0% decreasing ower 8 years to an ultimate level
of 4.5%. Senice related increases for Teachers: 7.5%
decreasing over 20 years to an ultimate lewvel of 4.0%

7.00%

Preretirement mortality rates: Healthy Non-Teachers: RP-2014
Employee Mortality Table projected generationally with Scale
MP-2017. Healthy Teachers: RP-2014 White Collar Employee
Mortality Table projected generationally with Scale MP-2016

Postretirement mortality rates: Healthy Non-Teachers: RP-2014
Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected generationally with
Scale MP-2017. Healthy Teachers: RP-2014 White Coliar
Annuitant Mortality Table projected generationally with Scale
MO-2016. Disabled Non-Teachers: RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant
Mortality Table set forward one year projected generationally
with Scale MP-2017. Disabled Teachers: RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Table set forward four years and projected
generationally with Scale BB2D from 2014

49 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Health care trend rates.......................... CCMHG: Under 65: 0% for 1 year, then 7.0% decreasing by
0.25% each year to an ultimate level of 4.5% per year. Over 65:
7.25% decreasing by 0.25% each year to an ultimate level of
4.5% per year. GIC: Medical/Prescription Drug: 8.0%
decreasing by 0.5% for 5 years, then by 0.25% for 2 years to
an ultimate level of 5.0% per year. EGWP: 5.0%. Part B: 4.5%.

Rate of Retum — For the year ended June 30, 2020, the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments,
net of investment expense, was 5.27%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance,
net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return of by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and subtracting expected investment expenses and
a risk margin. The target allocation as of June 30, 2018, and projected arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class, after deduction inflation, but before investment expenses, used in the derivation of the long-
term expected investment rate of return assumption are summarized below:

Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Asset Allocation Real Rate of Retum
Domestic equity............cccccovcenneeennns, 21.00% 6.15%
International developed markets equity.. 13.00% 6.78%
Interational emerging markets equity... 5.00% 8.65%
Core fixed income............cccoeeeevivennn.. 15.00% 1.11%
High-yield fixed income...................... 8.00% 3.51%
Realestate..........ccoocoovivnieiininiinn, 10.00% 4.33%
Commodities.............ccoeoeeeeerieerennen. 4.00% 4.13%
Hedge fund, GTAA, Risk parity............ 11.00% 3.19%
Private equity............ccocovvneieiennnl 13.00% 9.99%
Total.....o i 100.00%

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following table presents the net other
postemployment benefit liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the net other
postemployment benefit liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (6.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.00%) than the current discount rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) {8.00%)
Net OPEB liability........................... $ 10,156,924 $ 8,746,964 $ 7,578,783

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 50 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates — The following table
presents the net other postemployment benefit liability, calculated using the current healthcare trend rate as well
as what the net other postemployment benefit liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare trend rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher,

1% Decrease Current Trend 1% Increase

Net OPEB liability............. $ 7,324,293 $ 8,746,964 $ 10,501,249

Discount Rate ~ The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2020, and
June 30, 2019. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will
be made in accordance with the Plan’s funding policy. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be sufficient to make all projected benefit payments to current plan members.

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Plan
Total OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (@ -(b)
Balances at June 30, 2019........cccceerrrivriee e, $ 10,663,563 $ 1,870,706 $ 8,792,857

Changes for the year:

SemviCe COSE........evveiiiiiiee e e 371,073 - 371,073
Interest...........ccooi i, 754,292 - 754,292
Contributions - employer...............cccoccevennn, - 718,063 (718,063)
Net investment income.....................cc..oe e, - 99,518 (99,518)
Changes of assumptions................c..ccvuveeneee. (353,677) - (353,877)
Benefit payments...........cccoeeeei i (518,083) (518,063) -
Netchange..........c.ccoeeieiiin i, 253,625 299,518 (45,893)
Balances at June 30, 2020..........ccccceveeeereeinnnee. $ 10,917,188 $ 2,170,224 $ 8,746,964

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB —For
the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $1,187,331. At June 30, 2020, the Town
reported $545,377 of deferred outflows of resources and $282,940 of deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Infiows of
Deferred Category Resources Resources Total
Differences between expected and actual experience................ $ 89,275 % - $ 89,275
Difference between projected and actual eamings, net............... 30,779 - 30,779
Changes in assumptions..............cccooee i e 425,323 (282,940) 142,383
Total deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources................cc.evveneen. $ 545,377 $ (282,940) $ 262,437

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 51 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

Amounts reported as deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:
Measurement date year ended June 30:

2027 oo, $ 199,914
2022, een e, 195,205
2023 et e, (69,633)
2024.......ooeeeeeeeeeeeee e (63,049)
TOML...evvrreemeeereeeeseeeeeeeeeseeeeseesssasens $ 262,437

Changes of Assumptions

This valuation includes the repeal of the excise tax on high cost health plans, which was effective December 20,
2019.

Changes in Plan Provisions

None.

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS

The Town has entered into or is planning to enter into contracts relating to various capital projects totaling
approximately $9.5 million.

NOTE 13 — CONTINGENCIES

The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. These programs are subject to financial and
compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies
cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Various legal actions and claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of
individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at June 30, 2020,
cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the financial
position at June 30, 2020.

NOTE 14 — COVID-19

On March 10, 2020, the Massachusetts Governor declared a state of emergency in response to the coronavirus
outbreak. The World Health Organization officially declared the novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) a pandemic the
following day. In an attempt to slow the spread of COVID-19, governments issued various stay at home orders
that caused global economic shutdowns and substantial financial market impact. Starting in March 2020, the
Governor continued to issue orders allowing governments to operate and carry out essential functions safely.
These included modifying the state’s Open Meeting Law, issuing a stay-at-home order, and introducing a phased
approach to reopening State businesses. The Town is considered an essential business and although it was
closed to the public for a period of time, departments remained operational and most employees continued to
perform their daily duties.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachuseftts 52 Basic Financial Statements



ial S e Year Ended June 30, 2020

A number of businesses have been forced to stop or significantly reduce operations decreasing, the Town’s
portion of certain revenue. The Town has also incurred unanticipated costs specifically related to the pandemic.

On March 27, 2020, the United States Federal Government established the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic
Security (CARES) Act in response to the economic downfall caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. This Act
requires that the payment from these funds be used only to cover expenses that; are necessary expenditures
incurred due to the public health emergency with respect COVID-19; were not accounted for in the budget most
recently approved as of March 27, 2020; and were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and
ends on December 31, 2021. The Commonwealth and communities throughout the Commonwealth were
awarded a portion of this federal funding. In addition to funding from the CARES Act, there are several other
federal and state grants available.

The full extent of the financial impact cannot be determined as of the date of the financial statements.

NOTE 15 - RESTATEMENT OF NET POSTION PREVIOUSLY REPORTED

Beginning net position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and the marina enterprise fund
have been restated as management as determined that it would be preferable to use the respective year end
measurement dates for GASB Statement #75 to coincide with similar information reported for GASB Statement
#74. Accordingly, the beginning net position was updated to bring the measurement date from June 30, 2018 to
June 30, 2019. The cumulative effect of the revision is as follows:

06/30/2019 Restatement for the
Previously update of the 06/30/2019
Reported OPEB Restated
Balances measurement date Balances
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Gowemmental activties............................... $ 11,155,946 $ (498,981) $ 10,656,965
Business-type activities........................L 8,036,203 (4,990) 8,031,213
Total... ..o . B 19,192,149 $ (503,971) $ 18,688,178
Business-type Activities - Enterpise Funds
Marina enterprisefund.................................. § 3,485,696 $ (4,990) $ 3,480,706

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 14, 2021, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
NOTE 17 - IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
During 2020, the following GASB pronouncement was implemented:
o GASB Statement #95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. This
pronouncement postponed the effective dates of certain provisions in GASB Statements and

Implementation Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to be effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2018 or later.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 53 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2020

The following GASB pronouncements will be implemented in the future:

The GASB issued Statement #84, Fiduciary Activities, which is required to be implemented in 2021.
The GASB issued Statement #87, Leases, which is required to be implemented in 2022.

The GASB issued Statement #89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period, which is required to be implemented in 2022.

The GASB issued Statement #90, Majority Equity Interests — an amendment of GASB Statements #14
and #61, which is required to be implemented in 2021.

The GASB issued Statement #91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which is required to be implemented in
2023.

The GASB issued Statement #92, Omnibus 2020, which is required to be implemented in 2022.

The GASB issued Statement #93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, which is required to be
implemented in 2022.

The GASB issued Statement #94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements, which is required to be implemented in 2023.

The GASB issued Statement #96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, which is
required to be implemented in 2023.

The GASB issued Statement #97, Cerfain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Infernal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, in which certain
paragraphs are required to be implemented in 2021 and 2022.

Management is currently assessing the impact the implementation of these pronouncements will have on the
basic financial statements.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 54 Basic Financial Statements



Required Supplementary Information

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 55 Required Supplementary information



General Fund
Budgetary Schedule

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all the financial resources,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 56 Required Supplementary Information



GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts Variance
Original Final Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
Budget Budget Amounts To Next Year Budget
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds.............. .3 18,235,911 § 18,235911 § 17777944 % - (457,967)
Tax liens.............ccceeververnnrennnnen - - 61,129 - 61,129
Motor vehicle and other exclse taxes... 636,361 536,361 521,688 - (14,873)
Hotel/motel and meals tax.............. 361,000 361,000 666,121 - 305,121
Penalties and interest on taxes.. 78,000 78,000 91,926 - 13,926
Intergovernmental................ 319,991 319,991 317,046 - (2,945)
Departmental and ather......................... . 683,160 683,160 575,069 - (108,091)
Investment iNCoMe...........ccccvieeiicii i e s 77,188 77,188 78,552 - 1,364
TOTAL REVENUES........c.covvireeiiernreriaeen 20,291,611 20,291,611 20,089,475 - (202,136)
EXPENDITURES:
Current;
General GOVEIMMENE..........ceuue e cesaeeaeees e e ee e 1,804,825 1,804,825 1,751,629 - 53,196
Public safety.............c.ccoovi e 4,015,272 4,015,272 3,893,409 - 121,863
Education.............ccooviiiiniime e e e e e e e 6,308,627 6,308,627 6,200,573 26,732 81,322
Public works.............c.ccooee e 2,133,628 2,133,528 1,979,205 - 154,323
Health and human services...... 800,597 800,597 787,781 - 12,816
Culture and recreation............. 1,334,701 1,334,701 1,310,681 24,020
Pension benefits..................coeveee et 1,247,696 1,247,696 1,247,696 - -
Property and liability insurance................ 312,000 312,000 311,909 - 91
Employee benefils............cooeoe vvecveenviinnens 1,815,677 1,915,577 1,909,682 - 5,895
State and county charges............cccccovvrevvevvecenene 459,040 459,040 314,770 - 144,270
Debt service:
PANCIPAL........cce i e e e e 1,435,881 1,435,881 1,288,817 - 147,064
Interest, 407,704 407,704 382,473 - 25,231
TOTAL EXPENDITURES............. 22,175,448 22,175,448 21,378,625 26,732 770,091
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES..........cccccceeevvunnrenns (1,883,837) (1,883,837) (1,289,150} (26,732) 567,955
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES}:
Use Of prior year réserves..........cveeevee veeveeeenceieenenn, 400,126 400,126 - - (400,126)
Use of free cash 445,342 445,342 - - (445,342)
. 1,996,000 1,996,000 2,046,508 - 50,506
Transfers Out.. ... e e (957,631} (957,631) 957,631) - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES).......covvcevree e nnen 1,883,837 1,883,837 1,088,875 - (794,962}
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE...........cccooviiiiircveiinaane - - (200,275) (26,732) (227,007)
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year............... 3,495,738 3,495,738 3,495,738 - -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, End of year...............ccc.... $ 3495738 $ 3,495,738 § 3,295463 $ (26,732) § (227,007)
See notes to required supplementary information.
Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 57 Required Supplementary Information




Pension Plan Schedules

The Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability presents multi-year trend information
on the Town’s net pension liability and related ratios.

The Schedule of the Town’s Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the Town’s required and
actual contributions to the pension plan and related ratios.

The Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liability for the Massachusetts Teachers
Contributory Retirement System presents multi-year trend information on the liability and expense assumed by
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on behalf of the Town along with related ratios.

These schedules are intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten year trend is compiled, information
is presented for those years for which information is available.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 58 Required Supplementary Information



SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE

OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

BARNSTABLE COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Net pension Plan fiduciary

Proportionate liability as a net position as

Proportion of share of the percentage of a percentage of
the net pension net pension Covered covered the total

Year liability (asset) liability (asset) payroll payroll pension liability
December 31, 2019........... 1.887% 14,178,104 $ 5,728,056 247.52% 62.34%
December 31, 2018........... 1.999% 15,797,094 5,861,119 269.52% 57.63%
December 31, 2017........... 1.923% 13,084,397 5,403,056 242.17% 61.86%
December 31, 2016........... 1.855% 13,034,923 5,177,718 251.75% 57.28%
December 31, 2015........... 1.852% 11,493,202 4,991,054 230.28% 58.10%
December 31, 2014........... 1.853% 10,463,426 4,861,336 215.24% 60.43%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts

59 Required Supplementary Information



SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S CONTRIBUTIONS
BARNSTABLE COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Contributions in

relation to the Contributions as

Actuarially actuarially Contribution a percentage of
determined determined deficiency Covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
June 30, 2020..................... $ 1,242,517 $ (1,247,696) $ (5,179) $ 5,842,617 21.36%
June 30, 2019...................e 1,256,352 (1,256,352) - 5,978,341 21.02%
June 30, 2018..................... 1,150,399 (1,150,399) - 5,511,117 20.87%
June 30, 2017.......oeeeevenenenn 1,051,633 (1,051,633) - 5,281,272 19.91%
June 30, 2016........c.....eeeeet 985,738 (985,738) - 5,090,875 19.36%
June 30, 2015..........cccceueeent 965,243 (965,243) - 4,958,563 19.47%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 60 Required Supplementary Information



SCHEDULE OF THE SPECIAL FUNDING AMOUNTS
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to
make all actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers which
creates a special funding situation. Therefore, there is no net pension liability to recognize. This
schedule discloses the Commonwealth's 100% share of the associated collective net pension
liability; the portion of the collective pension expense as both a revenue and pension expense
recognized; and the Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total liability.

Expense and

Commonwealth's Revenue Plan Fiduciary Net
100% Share of the Recognized for the Position as a
Associated Net Commonwealth's Percentage of the
Year Pension Liability Support Total Liability
2020...........ccce.ls $ 4,545627 $ 551,236 53.95%
2019.........cceeeene 5,012,790 507,974 54.84%
2018.........coenn 5,176,268 540,262 54.25%
2017, 4,969,100 506,881 52.73%
2016..........c.cee 4,695,423 380,841 55.38%
2015.......cnnnn 3,855,336 227,342 61.64%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information
is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 61 Required Supplementary information



Other Postemployment Benefits
Plan Schedules

The Schedule of Changes in the Town's Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios presents multi-year trend
information on the Plan’s net other postemployment benefit liability and related ratios.

The Schedule of the Town's Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the Town's actual
contributions to the other postemployment benefit plan and related ratios.

The Schedule of Investment Return presents multi-year trend information on the money-weighted investment
return on the Plan’s other postemployment assets, net of investment expense.

These schedules are intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten year trend is compiled, information
is presented for those years for which information is available.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 62 Required Supplementary information



SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE
TOWN'S NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2017 2018 2019 2020

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost......ccovvircciiiceenirciee s e $ 218,902 $ 226,564 $ 257,337 $ 371,073

Interest 560,869 587,730 613,614 754,292

Differences between expected and actual experience.... - 223,186 372,322 -

Changes of assumptions.............ccccoeeiveneereerevvennenene, - 1,063,308 (100,222) (353,677)

Benefit payments...........ccccenrviivennccneninnen e (394,966) (412,739) (539.994) (518,063)
Net change in total OPEB liability................ccoceverrvenenens 384,805 1,688,047 603,057 253,625
Total OPEB liability - beginning..........cccocccereeinrirnirnrnnns 7,987,654 8,372,459 10,060,506 10,663,563
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)............ccccoovvviieueinnnnnnn, $ 8,372,459 $ 10,080,506 $ 10,663,563 $ 10,917,188
Plan fiduciary net position

Employer contributions............ccccoevevvrrerernieeiinininnene. $ 644,966 $ 662,739 $ 789,994 % 718,063

Net investmentincome............ccooecminciiiiceccce e, 46,503 53,149 144,971 99,518

Benefit payments.............coveruiiieiniinnriiennene e e (394,966) (412,739) (539,994) (518,063)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position...............c........ 296,503 303,149 394,971 299,518
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning of year.................. 876,083 1,172,586 1,475,735 1,870,706
Plan fiduciary net position - end of year (b)..................... $ 1,172,586 $ 1,475,735 $ 1,870,706 $ 2,170,224
Net OPEB liability - ending (a)(b).........cosceinciiccncenennne $ 7,189,873 § 8,584,771 § 8,792,857 $ 8,746,964
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total OPEB liability..............cccoeviniirriiiccciiieeeennnn. 14.01% 14.67% 17.54% 19.88%
Covered-employee payroll................ccccoiiiimieiiccciinnnanns $ 5,177,718 Not Available Not Available Not Available
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll............cco.ccoeiiiicireinnen. 139.05% Not Available Not Available Not Available

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 63 Required Supplementary Information



SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Contributions in

relation to the Contributions as

Actuarially actuarially Contribution a percentage of

determined determined deficiency Covered- covered-
Year contribution contribution (excess) employee payroll employee payroll
June 30, 2020................ 892,506 $ (718,063) $ 174,443 Not Available Not Available
June 30, 2019................ 864,413 (789,994) 74,419 Not Available Not Available
June 30, 2018................ 651,702 (662,739) (11,037) Not Available Not Available
June 30, 2017................ 629,664 (644,966) (15,302) 5,177,718 12.46%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts

64

Required Supplementary Information



SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Annual money-weighted
rate of return,

Year net of investment expense
June 30, 2020.............cceueieneinne. 5.27%
June 30,2019.........ccoociiininiiinne e 7.75%
June 30,2018...........cooiiiiiiiee, 3.97%
June 30, 2017.......ccooiiiiii e, 4.21%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 65 Required Supplementary Information



Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2020
NOTE A - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting. The Selectboard
and Finance Committee present an annual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues and
other financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. Town Meeting, which
has full authority to amend and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority
vote.

Increases or transfers between and within departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budget, requires
majority Town Meeting approval via a supplemental appropriation.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each year. Others are continuing
appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior year be carried
forward and made available for spending in the current year. These carry forwards are included as part of the
subsequent year's original budget. Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal level of spending (salaries,
expenses and capital) authorized for an appropriation account. However, the payment of debt service is
statutorily required, regardless of whether such amounts are appropriated. Additionally, expenditures for
disasters, natural or otherwise, and final judgments may exceed the level of spending authorized by two-thirds
majority vote of Town Meeting.

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The original
2020 approved budget authorized $23.1 million in appropriations and other amounts to be raised and $400,000 in
encumbrances and appropriations carried over from previous years. There was no change during the year from
original budget.

The Town Accountant has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control is
exercised through the accounting system.

B. Budgetary - GAAP Reconciliation

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Municipal Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the year ended June 30, 2020, is
presented below:

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis.............c.c.ccevvevernnens $ (200,275)

Perspective differences:
Activity of the stabilization fund recorded in the

general fund for GAAP.........c.oueietiirc e e (20,359)
Activity of the general fund articles fund
recorded in the general fund for GAAP.............cc.ceeeeiieeiiennennnnn, 221,941
Basis of accounting differences:
Net change in recording 60 day receipts..........ccccccevveerernernnennnn. 207,000
Net change in recording accrued payroll...............cccoceceerrennnnn.. (16,257)
Recognition of revenue for on-behalf payments........................... 551,236
Recognition of expenditures for on-behalf payments.................... (551,236)
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis............ccoveveviicinnieennnnn. $ 192,050
B s —1

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 66 Required Supplementary Information



Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE B — PENSION PLAN

Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

The Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability details the allocated percentage of
the net pension liability (asset), the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the covered employee
payroll. It also demonstrates the net position as a percentage of the pension liability and the net pension liability
as a percentage of covered payroll.

Schedule of Town's Contributions

Governmental employers are required to pay an annual appropriation as established by PERAC. The
appropriation includes the amounts to pay the pension portion of each member’s retirement allowance, an amount
to amortize the actuarially determined unfunded liability to zero in accordance with the system’s funding schedule,
and additional appropriations in accordance with adopted early retirement incentive programs. The

appropriations are payable on July 1 and January 1. The Town may choose to pay the entire appropriation in July
at a discounted rate. Accordingly, actual contributions may be less than the “total appropriation”. The pension
fund appropriation is allocated to the Town based on covered payroll.

Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liabilities

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make all
actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers which creates a special funding
situation. Since the Town does not contribute directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. This
schedule discloses the Commonwealth's 100% share of the collective net pension liability that is associated with
the Town; the portion of the collective pension expense as both a revenue and pension expense recognized by
the Town; and the Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total liability.

Changes in Assumptions

The net investment return assumption was lowered from 7.375% to 7.15%, and the administrative expense
assumption of the Association was changed from $1,500,000 to $1,850,000.

Changes in Plan Provisions

None

NOTE C - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Town of Wellfleet administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (Plan). The Plan provides
lifetime healthcare, dental and life insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the Town’s health
insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members, including teachers.

The Schedule of Changes in the Town's Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

The Schedule of Changes in the Town’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios details the Plan’s net other
postemployment benefit liability (asset) and the covered-employee payroll. It also demonstrates the Plans net
position as a percentage of the total liability and the Plan’s net other postemployment benefit liability as a
percentage of covered-employee payroll.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 67 Required Supplementary Information



Notes fo Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2020

Schedule of the Town’s Contributions

The Schedule of the Town's Contributions includes the Town’s annual required contribution to the Plan, along
with the contribution made in relation to the actuarially determined contribution and the covered employee payroll.
The Town is not required to fully fund this contribution. It also demonstrates the contributions as a percentage of
the covered payroll. Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the
end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. Methods and assumptions used to determine the
contribution rates are as follows:

Valuation date.............c..ooeeevvviieeninnnn, June 30, 2018

Actuarial cost method...........................  Entry Age Nomal- Lewel Percentage of Payroll
Inflation...........ccco i, 3.25%

Salary increases..................................  Senice-related increases for Group 1 (excluding teachers) and

Group 2 employees: 6.0% decreasing over 11 years to an
ultimate level of 4.0%. Senice-related increased for Group 4
employees: 7.0% decreasing over 8 years to an ultimate level
of 4.5%. Senice related increases for Teachers: 7.5%
decreasing over 20 years to an ultimate level of 4.0%

Investment rate of retum........................ 7.00%

Mortality rates.....................................  Preretirement mortality rates: Healthy Non-Teachers: RP-2014
Employee Mortality Table projected generationally with Scale
MP-2017. Healthy Teachers: RP-2014 White Collar Employee
Mortality Table projected generationally with Scale MP-2016

Postretirement mortality rates: Healthy Non-Teachers: RP-2014
Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected generationally with
Scale MP-2017. Healthy Teachers: RP-2014 White Collar
Annuitant Mortality Table projected generationally with Scale
MO-2016. Disabled Non-Teachers: RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant
Mortality Table set forward one year projected generationally
with Scale MP-2017. Disabled Teachers: RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Table set forward four years and projected
generationally with Scale BB2D from 2014

Health care trend rates......................... CCMHG: Under 65: 0% for 1 year, then 7.0% decreasing by
0.25% each year to an ultimate level of 4.5% per year. Over 65:
7.25% decreasing by 0.25% each year to an ultimate level of
4.5% per year. GIC: Medical/Prescription Drug: 8.0%
decreasing by 0.5% for 5 years, then by 0.25% for 2 years to
an ultimate level of 5.0% per year. EGWP: 5.0%. Part B: 4.5%.

Schedule of Investment Return

The Schedule of Investment Return includes the money-weighted investment return on the Plan’s other
postemployment assets, net of investment expense.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetfts 68 Required Supplementary Information



Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2020

Changes in Assumptions

This valuation includes the repeal of the excise tax on high cost health plans, which was effective December 20,
2019.

Changes in Plan Provisions

None.

Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts 69 Required Supplementary Information



Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance

70



Powers & Sullivan, LLC lzs

Certificd Public Accountants

100 Quannapowitt Parkway
Suite 101

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING Wakefield, MA 01880

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH et
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS F. 781-914-1701

www.powersandsullivan.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Selectboard
Town of Wellfleet, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Welifleet,
Massachusetts, (the “Town”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Town'’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated April 14, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
However, as described below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies described below to be material
weaknesses.

» An inadequate design of internal control over the Town’s cash reconciliation process. In 2020, the Town
did not have sufficient internal controls in place to ensure that all activity was recorded within the general
ledger. Inconsistencies and errors in recording the Town’s cash transactions were not detected and
corrected in a timely manner.

71



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

fouy 4 Jud U

April 14, 2021

72



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

VII

SELECTBOARD REPORTS:

Reported by:

Topic:

Miranda-

Wilson

Discussion of Doodle Poll for Round the Discussed

Round Table




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST \ / I II
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021
1

TOWN ADMINISTRATORS REPORT

e Interim Town Administrator will go over a letter
send from Beth Albert, Barnstable County
Administrator ~ regarding American Rescue Plan —

Fiscal Recovery Fund



BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

RONALD BERGSTROM
Chatham
SUPERIOR COURTHOUSE
3195 MAIN STREET MARK R. FOREST
P.0. BOX 427 Yarmouth
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 SHEILAR. LYONS
PHONE: (508) 375-6648 Wellfleet

FAX:(508)362-4136

HOME RULED CHARTERED
IN 1989

May 13, 2021

To:  Board Chairs, Councilors and Town Managers
From: Beth Albert, Barnstable County Administrator

Subject: American Rescue Plan — Fiscal Recovery Fund

As part of the American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act 0f 2021 signed into law by President Biden on
March 11, 2021, Barnstable County is slated to receive approximately $41 million in ARP funds.
The U.S. Treasury Department released the Interim Final Rule and guidance on May 10, 2021.

Eligible uses of the Fiscal Recovery Funds include supporting the public health response,
addressing the negative economic impact of the public health emergency on small businesses and
non-profits, including impacted industries such as tourism, travel, and hospitality, serving the
hardest hit communities and families, investing in water and sewer infrastructure, and investing
in broadband infrastructure.

Since the end of March 2021 an internal work group has been meeting to begin to develop a
planning framework that will maximize the impact of this one-time funding. The work group
has been tasked by the County Commissioners to identity programs and plans that make the best
use of ARP funds and align with the eligible uses identified in the legislation. The framework
being developed by the County will identify opportunities for investment in regional priorities —
wastewater, water quality, and broadband infrastructure. Strategic planning to leverage ARP aid
is a critical component of the planning framework and we will be looking to partner with others
to leverage other sources of state and federal funding to achieve results and lasting benefits to the
residents of Barnstable County.



Page 2 of 2

At this time, we are reviewing the guidance released by the Treasury. Over the next few weeks,
we will begin to develop criteria and a process for reviewing potential regional projects.

The County has a strong record of convening groups and marshalling resources to achieve
regional goals — the good news is that the justifiable uses of APR funds align very well and are
targeted to address regional issues that impact Cape Cod — water quality, wastewater, and
broadband. The County is committed to working collaboratively to invest in regional solutions
that will benefit Cape Cod beyond 2024.

Sincerely,

e /T

Elizabeth Albert
Barnstable County Administrator



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

[X

TOPICS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS

Requested by:

Topic:

Requested to be on:




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

MINUTES

REQUESTED BY: Executive Assistant

DESIRED ACTION: | Approval of Minutes for May 12, 2021

PROPOSED I move to approve the Minutes of May 12, 2021 as printed in
MOTION: Draft form
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




DRAF T A full recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website.

Wellfleet Selectboard
Virtual Meeting
Wednesday May 12, 2021; 6PM
Meeting Minutes

Members Present: Michael DeVasto, Chair; Janet Reinhart, Ryan Curley, Helen Miranda

Wilson

Members Absent: Justina Carlson
Others Present: Charlie Sumner, Interim Town Administrator; Chief Rich Pauley, Fire

Chief; Chief Michael Hurley, Police Chief; Harry Terkanian, Warrant assistant;
Rebekah Eldridge, Executive Assistant; John Wolf, Resident; Heather Doyle, Cape
Cod Ocena Community; Walter Baron, Old Wharf Dory Company; Michael Ceraldi,
Ceraldi Restaurant; Ben Zehnder, Attorney for Nature’s Promise; Suzanne Grout-
Thomas. Beach Director; Jennifer Wertkin, Library Director; Robin Robinson, Chair
of the Library Board of Trustees; Nancy Civetta, Shellfish Constable

Chair DeVasto called the meeting to order at 6:01pm

IL.

II1.

Announcements, Open Session and Public Comments
Note: Public comments must be brief. The Board will not deliberate or vote on any
matter raised solely during Announcements & Public Comments.
e Chair DeVasto welcomed the interim Town Administrator Charles Sumner
and also thanks Chief Pauley for standing in as acting Town Administrator.
e Board Member Wilson stated there is a meeting at the end of May to discuss
the “Right to Farm”.
e Chief Pauley informed the Board that he had a good meeting with Sumner and
Terkanian and thanked Terkanian for all his hard work.

COVID-19 Updates and Recommendations
e Board Member Wilson asked that the Board think about when they would
discuss town activities.

Use of Town Property
A. Cape Cod Ocean Community/Heather Doyle - Newcomb Hollow Parking Lot (5
Total Days)

e Doyle gave an update on what she is planning to do for the five dates. She
explained that they inform the public about safety products being offered, she
explained they don’t sell products just offer explanations.

e Board Member Curley questioned the use of drones. Doyle explained that she
put it in there to show what they have done in the past.

e Thomas questioned the dates. Doyle stated the dates June 26™, rain date of
the 27", July 24" rain date of the 25", August 21%, rain date August 22",
September 18%, rain date of 19™,

e Silverman explained that the dates of June 26" and 27" are town meeting
dates and asked that she pick a different weekend.

1



DRAF T A full recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website.

¢ Board Member Reinhart moved, Board Member Curley seconded; and it
was voted to approve the request from Cape Cod Ocean Community use
of town property with the dates proposed June 18, 2021 with the rain
date of June 19, 2021; July 17, 2021 with the rain date of July 18, 2021;
August 21, 2021 with the rain date of August 22, 2021; September 18,
2021 with the rain date of September 19, 2021.
Roll Call Vote: 4-0

B. Old Wharf Dory Co./Walter Baron - Mayo Beach; 9/25/21 (11am — 4 pm)

e Baron explained to the Board that because of the pandemic he wasn’t
able to have this last summer but would like to have it again this year.
He called it the Wellfleet Rolling Rendezvous. The Board had no issues.

¢ Board Member Reinhart moved; Chair DeVasto seconded; and it
was voted to approve the use of Mayo Beach for September 25, 2021
from 11am to 4pm for the Old Wharf Dory Co for the rolling
rendezvous.

Roll Call Vote: 4-0

C. Luise Geueke - Mayo Beach; 5/7/22 (1pm — 2:45 pm) _
¢ Geueke was not on the meeting so the board moved this to a future
meeting.
e No action was taken.

D. Ceraldi Restaurant/Michael Ceraldi - Parking Lot and grass area of 15 Kendrick
Ave to have outdoor dining like last summer.

e Ceraldi presented to the Board explaining his plan for outdoor seating as
he had done last summer. Board Member Curley expressed his concern
regarding the large space. Ceraldi explained the fire department had laid
this design out for safety. The Board discussed this further, explaining the
need for the barriers not having the traffic interfere with pedestrians. Chief
Pauley asked the Board to approve the application and allow the staff to
figure out the logistics and changes if needed.

e Board Member Reinhart moved; Board Member Wilson seconded;
and it was voted to approve the use of 15 Kendrick Ave. parking lot
and grass area for outdoor dining like the summer of 2020.

Roll Call Vote: 3-1

E. Susie Nielsen/Megan Hinton - Art installations at various locations 7/17/21 —
9/15/21
e This was moved to a later date as the applicant tabled this for a future
meeting.
e No Action was taken.

IV.  Board/Committee Appointments and Updates
A. Elisabeth Salén - Local Housing Partnership



D RAF T A full recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website.

V. Business

Chair DeVasto explained that he spoke with Salén the previous day and
explained she is working, and he stated that he would be inclined to
approve her application. Board Member Wilson expressed that she would
have appreciated her being here.
Board Member Reinhart moved; Board Member Wilson seconded;
and it was voted to approve Elisabeth Salén to the Local Housing
Authority for a term of 1 year.

Roll Call Vote: 4-0

A. Extension of Community Host Agreement — Nature’s Alternative/Ben Zehnder

Chair DeVasto explained that he had spoken to town counsel and they
have advised the Board to continue this to a future meeting, so they are
able to review the documents. Zehnder spoke to the Board about the
agreement and asked that they try to move this along quickly so that they
business can open. Chair DeVasto explained that the meetings of the
Selectboard next week are for all budgets and warrants but May 25, 2021
they can be on the agenda.
Board Member Wilson moved; Board Member Reinhart seconded;
and it was voted to continue the discussion of the extension of the
community host agreement to Tuesday May 25, 2021.

Roll Call Vote: 4-0

B. Extension of Emergency Order pertaining to Maguire Landing and Beach Fire
Permits — Suzanne Grout Thomas

Thomas explained to the Board that she would like Maguire Landing to
continue to be a resident beach this year until a more permanent decision
can be made. She also asked the Board to lift the fire permit ban for the
summer, explaining that the National Seashore would be offering fire
permits as well as the town of Truro. Chair DeVasto stated he had no
issues with this.
Board Member Curley moved; Board Member seconded; and it was
voted to approve the extension of the emergency order limiting
Maguire Landing to residents and nonresident taxpayers and to lift
the ban of fire permits to allow them for the summer of 2021.

Roll Call Vote: 4-0

C. Discussion of Town Meeting

Reconfirm Annual Town Meeting Date — Town

Reconfirm Annual Town Meeting Rain Dates

Reconfirm Annual Town Election

Board Member Reinhart moved; Board Member seconded; and it
was voted to reconfirm Wellfleet’s Annual Town meeting be held on
Saturday June 26, 2021 at 10am with the rain dates of June 27,
28™, & 29" and the Annual Town Election be held on Wednesday
June 30-2021 at the Council on Aging from 12pm to 7pm.

3



D RAF T A full recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website.

D. Annual Town Meeting- To approve 100-person quorum — Dan Silverman/Town
Moderator

e Chair DeVasto explained that this is so that there needs to be a minimum
of 100 people at town meeting. HE stated that doesn’t mean that more
than 100 people can’t be there, town meeting is open to all residents of
Wellfleet.

¢ Board Member Reinhart moved; Board Member Wilson seconded;
and it was voted to approve the 100-person quorum for the Annual
Town Meeting held on June 26, 2021.

® The Board discussed allowing anyone in the ballfield including
nonresidents. Silverman explained to the Board that this is determined
by the Town Moderator.

E. To discuss and possibly approve the June 26, 2021 Town Meeting Warrant

¢ Chair DeVasto addressed the Board with the letter that they received
from Terkanian earlier in the day. Terkanian gave an update on town
finances and what he has been working on. Explaining that free cash
can’t be accessed at this time. HE explained that there are a series of
accounts that show changes between 7 accounts that add up to $400,000
and wasn’t sure what the process was in coming up with this budget. He
gave an example of the town administration budget has gone up a
significant amount and he wasn’t understanding why. He continued with
the articles total with override and debt exclusion to 8 million dollars and
stated that there are some articles that don’t need to be done this year and
he explained he wasn’t sure that the residents of Wellfleet are going to
approve this large amount of money. He stated that the overall problem
needs to be addressed in order to get the warrant together and ready to go
to the printer.

e Chair DeVasto continued the discussion stating that they originally
placed them all into overrides and debt exclusions. He stated with the
wastewater articles there was only one article that needed to be apart of
the warrant for this year and that was the 95 Lawrence Road Article. He
stated that just because they are authorized borrowing doesn’t mean
there will be a cost to taxpayers there are grants that could be received,
but not knowing free cash he stated these could be moved to the 2022
town warrant.

e Board Member Curley wanted to break down the discussion into topics.
He stressed it would need to be item by item. Chair DeVasto stated he
wanted to get a sense from the Board where they were fiscally.

e They began with the stabilization fund, Board Member Curley asked
Terkanian that they are requesting to increase the rental tax from 4 to 6%
he asked what the timeline would be for that. Terkanian gave some
strategies on how to make this work and stated using the stabilization
fund for one time would be okay but it can’t be continued to be done
every year.

e Board Member Reinhart stated that she agreed having the items
addressed separately and was in favor of cutting the costs. Board

4



D RAF T A full recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website.

Member Wilson stated that a lot of the articles aren’t “oven ready”
although she is in support of the articles, she doesn’t think they need to
be on this year’s warrant. She continued stating that she believes the 95
Lawrence Road article remain on the warrant.

e Terkanian went over reoccurring items verses one-time items. He gave
examples of police cruisers, fire cars, shellfish trucks, and DPW
equipment. He continued discussing the wastewater articles and
explained that he spoke with Hillary Lemos the health agent for
Wellfleet and stated that she explained without a wastewater permit was
needed in order to figure out what was needed for a wastewater plant,
also DEP has stated that the town needs the capital part of the Lawrence
Rd project needs to be done now but other items can wait. He continued
with having a capital project in this year’s warrant asking the residents
for money that the town wont use for a few years. He gave more
examples of things that can postpone and things that are so small that
they can be put into budgets.

e Board Member Wilson stated she didn’t want to cut into the stabilization
fund and ask the townspeople to pay higher taxes.

e Chair DeVasto asked the Board to discuss and possibly remove the
wastewater warrant articles.

e Board Member Wilson moved; Board Member Reinhart seconded;
and it was voted to remove articles numbered 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17,
18 & 20 (wastewater articles) keeping Article 19 on the 2022 Annual
Town meeting warrant regarding 95 Lawrence Road.

Roll Call Vote: 4-0

e Board Member Curley asked if the Transfer station and guard shack be
removed. Chief Pauley expressed that he and Sumner were getting
together to see where items could be moved and what funds could be
spent and will have a better idea at Monday night’s meeting.

e Warrant articles continued to be discussed and Terkanian requested that
this year they remove the request for the new computer system for
administration.

e Board Member Curley asked to hear from administration; Sumner stated
that if the Board was willing to use some of the stabilization fund, they
could come up with a plan and take a look at the funding requests.

o Civetta spoke to the Board asking that they take this to the Shellfish
Advisory Board to get their thoughts and recommendations. So they are
going against each other. She also suggested it go before the Board of
Health just to get their feedback as well. Chair DeVasto asked if it could
just be placed.

e Board Member Reinhart moved; Chair DeVasto seconded; and it
was voted to place the Right to Farm Article on the Annual 2020
Town Meeting Warrant

Roll Call Vote: 3-1 (Wilson voted No)

e The Board decided to wait to place and recommend the Transfer tax until

Board Member Carlson was available to vote.

5



DRAF T A full recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website.

e They continued on to the Animal Bylaw. It was discussed at great
length; the wording was discussed along with the fee schedule.

e Chair DeVasto moved; Board Member Wilson seconded; and it was
voted to place the Animal Control Bylaw on the 2021 Annual Town
Warrant

Roll Call Vote: 3-1 (Curley Abstained)

¢ Board Member Wilson moved; Board Member Reinhart seconded;
and it was voted to recommend the Animal Control Bylaw on the
2021 Annual Town Warrant

Roll Call Vote: 3-1 (Curley voted No)

e The Board continued to move down the articles, moving to the Police
Union Contract, there was no discussion.

¢ Board Member Reinhart moved; Board Member Wilson seconded;
and it was voted to place the Police Union Changes and one-year
extension onto the Annual 2021 Town Meeting Warrant

Roll Call Vote: 4-0

e They Moved on to the Cable Access Fund and discussed if it was
worded correctly. Terkanian explained that this creates a specific fund
that operates as it always has, and he pointed out his changes which had
to do with transferring money which he explained is already in the
General Budget.

e Board Member Curley moved; Board Member Wilson seconded;
and it was voted to place public education and governmental PEG
access and Cable related fund Article into the 2021 Annual Town
Meeting Warrant

Roll Call Vote: 4-0

¢ Board Member Curley moved; Board Member Wilson seconded;
and it was voted to recommend public education and governmental
PEG access Cable related fund Article

Roll Call Vote: 4-0

¢ Board Member Curley moved; Board Member Reinhart seconded;
and it was voted to place the article to amend the local excise tax on
short term rentals

Roll Call Vote: 4-0

e Chair DeVasto moved; Board Member Curley seconded; and it was
voted to recommend the article to amend the local excise tax to 6%
on short term rentals.

Roll Call Vote: 3-1 (Wilson voted No)

e Board Member Curley moved; Board member Reinhart seconded;
and it was voted to place and recommend an article on the
underground fuel tanks at the marina.

Roll Call Vote: 4-0



DRAF T A full recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website.

¢ Board Member Reinhart moved; Board Member Wilson seconded;
and it was voted to place and recommend the Wellfleet Affordable
Housing Trust Bylaw into the 2021 Annual Town Warrant.

Roll Call Vote: 4-0

e They discussed schedule B and Chief Pauley explained that this is still in
the works and should be ready in the next day.

e They continued with the marina enterprise budget which they had
already approved the budget and the water budget they discussed was
still up in the air and would have a better idea in a day or two.

F. To discuss and possibly approve the Fiscal Year 2022 Budgets

e Chief Pauley explained to the Board that he had asked Jennifer Wertkin
to be on the meeting to explain the needs of her budget. She stressed that
she would like this budget approved as soon as possible because she
needs staff at the library. She explained the difference in her budget was
because of the staff. They discussed the budget further and figuring out
the numbers so Wertkin could have the same number of staff members.
Board Member Wilson stated she couldn’t vote on a budget that she
hasn’t seen. Chief Pauley explained that the town has been so busy with
budgets and warrant articles that this isn’t normally how he would do a
budget but is requesting that they approve this budget so they can move
forward with the budgets and get the Board a clean copy.

e They continued with other warrant articles. Chair DeVasto stated he
wanted to place the right to farm articles and didn’t want to add in Board
Member Wilson’s amendments. Wilson responded to Chair DeVasto.
They discussed this article at great length. Terkanian suggested the
change of a few words and they agreed to him changes it.

e Board Member Curley moved; Board Member Reinhart seconded;
and it was voted to approve the Fiscal Year 2022 Library Budget
610 for the total dollar amount of $531,865.59.

Roll Call Vote: 4-1 (Wilson abstained)

V1.  Selectboard Reports
A. Wilson reported she went to a webinar regarding civil conduct. She expressed to
the board that it is recorded, and she expressed how amazing this presentation
was. She will send the Board a link to watch it.
VII. Town Administrator’s Report
A. Sumner informed the Board that he has spoken with Lisa Souve and she will be
starting the following Monday to help with the finances. He also informed the
Board that he is also meeting with another finance person next Wednesday to
see if she will be willing to come also help with finances.
B. Chief Pauley stated he had a good day with Charlie meeting with staff and
getting some issues resolved. He continued with how appreciative he was to the
Board for their support.



DRAF T A full recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website.

VIII. Topics for Future Discussion

A. Board Member Wilson MOU IV for the Herring River Project she explained
that she and Board Member Reinhart are on it. She stated that the language
allows them to appoint anyone of their choosing to the council. She explained
they needed to think of someone who can carry them through. The Board agreed
they would look.

B. Board Member Wilson asked if the Town Accountant job had been posted yet.
Sumner stated that he would recommend the Board wait to post it the job until
the finances are corrected to make the job more appealing.

IX.  Correspondence and Vacancy Reports
A. Board Member Curley stated that Lance Miller has resigned from the Bike &
Walkaways Committee and expressed his gratitude.
X. Minutes
¢ Chair DeVasto moved; Board Member Reinhart seconded; and it was
voted to approve the minutes as listed below and printed Draft.
April 13,2021
April 20, 2021
April 27, 2021 -
April 29, 2021

XI. Adjournment
¢ Board Member Reinhart moved; Board Member Wilson seconded; and it

was voted to adjourn.
Roll Call Vote: 4-0

Meeting adjourned 9:01PM



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 25, 2021

ADJOURNMENT
REQUESTED BY: Selectboard Chair Michael DeVasto
DESIRED ACTION: | To Adjourn
PROPOSED I move to Adjourn
MOTION:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




